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BYD Electronic (International) Company Limited
(“BYD Electronic” or the “Company”; together with
its subsidiaries known as the “Group”; stock code:
0285) was spun off from BYD Company Limited
(“BYD”, stock code: 1211) and listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
on 20 December 2007. BYD Electronic is a global
leading platform-based high-end manufacturing
enterprise, providing customers with new materials
development, product design and development,
parts and components as well as complete machine
manufacturing, supply chain management, logistics,
after-sales and other one-stop services. The
Group engages in a wide variety of businesses
ranging from smart phones, tablet PCs, new energy
vehicles, residential energy storage, smart home,
game hardware, unmanned aerial vehicles, Internet
of Things, robots, communication equipment, health
devices to other diversified market areas.

bEmEEF (B ARAA (T
HMEF|HAL2F] > ERHMEL
AGEIALE] ; KRR 1 0285)
R-BBRtF+-"A-+BH@AkE
HEOARAR(TLkEE] ; RO
R A1 D HFEREEBBERS
FRERBILEN -LEHEFRE
RELENTEEBRHEELE &
ERAFFRERUEHMMHFER  Em
RETHEE  TAGRBHRRE -
HERER WARERE-URN
BRI - AEMEKEZ  HRERE
FH-FRERK - MEFRSIE -
FRf#E  HEXRE - ERES
BAK  UBS - HEABFE
R BERERBESSTIEHS
BE -

4
LY



H
%

TN E

TripmRMIaE
e

O Financial Highlights 2
HBHE -
O Corporate Information 3
Z NEIEH
Chairman’s Statement . 5
—I FREEE .
m Management Dlscussion and Analysis 9
Z ERERESNT
DII’GC* and Senior Manag 24
] == N
29

ental, Social and Governance Report ,46 .
SRR

ort of the Directors 111

gmE &
Independent Auditor’s Report 133
B E R RS
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss 1 41'
SHHBRE e
Co solldated Statement of Comprehensive Income 142
& :vT (=) Llf(ﬁ:li% L]

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 143
BB IR R
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 145
At BEHR -

' _ Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 147
L\ﬁfﬁﬁ—iiﬁiﬁ

@ —
e Notes to FlnancnarStatemen___ —— . 1450 -
J

—

- e
'cial Summary




e

S

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
BBHE

FIVE-YEAR COMPARISON OF KEY FINANCIAL FIGURES

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HILLEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

TEFEMBHB LR

—2__ —F—— —Z-F —E-AF| ZBN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR | ARETRE| ARBTRT| ARBTT| ARETET

Revenue & ¥ &8 107,186,288 89,056,978 73,121,075 53,028,376 41,047,139
Gross profit & Fl| 6,350,268 6,029,165 9,628,843 3,957,328 4,171,983
Gross profit margin (%) % %12 (%) 6 7 13 7 10
Profit attributable to owners of the parent

BRAEmES ARG RF 1,857,618 2,309,882 5,441,371 1,597,645 2,188,620
Net profit margin (%) 7% K8 2= (%) 2 3 7 3 5

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—HLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

—=2_— T —F | Z2ZEF| ZE2—hEF| ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR | AREFT| AREFTIT| ARETT| ARETFT

Net assets 5 & EH 25,635,069 24,027,103 22,272,293 16,989,473 15,825,332
Total assets & E 4218 56,994,373 41,175,282 37,976,088 28,026,974 26,051,172
Gearing ratio (%) (Note) B AN & & £t 3R (%)

(P 3E) -13 -10 -3 -5 -30
Current ratio (times) B LL K (£2) 1.34 1.70 1.76 1.64 1.70
Receivables collection (days) (Note)

FEMEESRE B4 (B) (B FE) 47 54 60 58 70
Inventory turnover (days) 77 &8 (H) 50 39 36 39 48

Note: Gearing ratio = Total interest-bearing bank borrowings net of cash and bank deposits/equity
Receivables include trade receivables and receivables financing
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REVENUE BREAKDOWN BY LOCATION OF CUSTOMERS
BEFMEMEDTEXE
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2022 I The People’s Republic of

China (the “PRC”) PRC (including
(including Hong Kong, Hong Kong, Macau
Macau and Taiwan) and Taiwan)
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Bao He Road
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INVESTOR AND MEDIA RELATIONS CONSULTANT
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Tel: (852) 2136 6185
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Dear Shareholders,

I, on behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
BYD Electronic (International) Company Limited (“BYD Electronic” or the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (which are collectively referred to as the
“Group”), hereby present the annual report of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year” or the “Period”) to all Shareholders.

Looking back at 2022, affected by the globally soaring inflation, the
ongoing fluctuations of the COVID-19 pandemic, the intensified geopoalitical
tensions and other uncertainties, the global economic recovery was subject
to diverse challenges. However, China’s economy has demonstrated
strong resilience and dynamism despite adversity. With pandemic
prevention and control efficiently coordinated and the economy driven
forward steadily, leading position in the world in economic development
continued to be maintained. The gross domestic product (GDP) of China
increased by 3.0% year on year, and the total economic output exceeded
RMB121 trillion in 2022.

Suffering from uncertain economic outlook and weak consumer demands,
consumer electronics market continued to be under pressure, with the
global smartphone market shipments hitting a record-breaking low in the
last 10 years. According to the data from the research agency IDC, global
smartphone shipments in 2022 decreased significantly by 11.3% year-on-
year to 1.21 billion units and the global PC market shipments decreased by
16.5% year-on-year to 292.3 million units. The global tablet PCs shipments
decreased by 3.3% year-on-year to 162.8 million units. Information
released by the China Academy of Information and Communications
Technology shows the annual mobile phone shipments in the Chinese
market amounted to 272 million units in 2022, down approximately 22.6%
year-on-year, while the shipment of 5G mobile phones decreased by
approximately 19.6% year-on-year to 214 million units.
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During the Year, against the background of soaring energy prices and the
introduction of favorable energy storage policies in various countries, the
global demand for residential energy storage showed a spurt of growth.
It was estimated by Gaogong Industry Research that in 2022, the global
capacity of new residential energy storage installed would reach 15GWh,
representing a significant increase of 134% year-on-year. The increasing
popularity of 5G and artificial intelligence technologies application gave
rise to diversified application scenarios, driving the rapid expansion of new
intelligent products market scale. IDC estimated that the sales of China’s
complete home smart market was expected to exceed RMB10 billion in
2022 and would continue to grow rapidly at a compound rate of 46.9%
over the next 5 years.

During the Year, under the combined impetus of favorable policies, the
rise of Chinese automotive brands and innovative breakthroughs in vehicle
intelligence and networking technologies, new energy vehicles experienced
rapid soar in its market penetration and continued explosive growth
in its sales volume. According to the China Association of Automobile
Manufacturers, the annual sales volume of new energy vehicles in 2022
reached 6.887 million units, representing a year-on-year growth of 93.4%,
and its market share increased significantly from 13.4% in 2021 to 25.6%
in 2022.

During the Year, the Group recorded a turnover of approximately
RMB107,186 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 20.36%, and
the profit attributable to the owners of the parent company of RMB1,858
million, representing a decrease of 19.58% as compared with that of
2021. The Board of Directors recommended a final dividend for the Year of
RMBO0.165 per ordinary Share (2021: RMBO0.103 per ordinary Share).

As a global leading platform-based high-end manufacturing enterprise,
BYD Electronic is well-positioned to provide customers with one-stop
services integrating product design and development, manufacturing of
spare parts and complete machine, supply chain management, logistics,
and after-sales service. BYD Electronic, thanks to its globally-leading
R&D and manufacturing strengths, diversified product mix and abundant
customer resources, is progressing steadily towards high quality business
development and has demonstrated good resilience.

{ : |—« BYD ELECTRONIC (INTERNATIONAL) COMPANY LIMITED » ANNUAL REPORT 2022 I
N /

FR - EREREREARZEL A FEF TR
RNBEET  2RFAMBETERERFEA
R-BalEMGT T -__F2FH
FEREHTIE M Z B15GWh » B L KB &
134% - BB KR A5G K A T2 A8 1lT fE /A 18
EZTCERES  RENASEERTSER
BRARRIER - IDCTERT  —E-—_FHEH2E
BTG HEEREBETBREBEARE100(ET -
A B AR RSE R LA46.9% ) E & 18 = R i%E
REREER -

FA - HERIBEMNTERE - RERERRE
UEHE K T B R BB A I BT RN S 2 E R E)
T MH2BERRREH  HEHE BB
R -BPBRAETIERGMER  — 2=
MR AESFHEE688.78H  RLEER
93.4% * MHEBEHR T —FH13.4% KR
BAE -5 = —&Ff256% °

EIEFNA @ NEBSRSEEBHARE107,186
A& A EF20.36% @ FRFHA AFEN
AR ZEZ—F )519.58% = AR 1,858
BB EEgEIRBEFTFARERESHRE
BRARBOI1GIL(ZE-—F : FREARK
AR¥0.1037T) °

EREHBENTRESHEEDLE » kd
EFEINAEFPREEMRIMIIE  TH
FRBREE  HEREE YRMNERE—
AR - KFERERBENMBEMBEE
N ERNEREEAREENTEREIR
THETFEBHAESMmERRBLAT UK
BRIFHOEIE -



In respect of the consumer electronics business, the Group continued
to deepen its strategic cooperation relationships with major customers,
and further consolidated its industry leadership position. In terms of major
overseas customers, the Group strived to intensify its cooperation with
major overseas customers, continued to increase its share and shipment
of core products, as well as continued to expand product categories,
driving a continuous growth in business scale. As the market demand
for smartphones has weakened, the Group’s revenue from the Android
complete machine assembly and components and parts business was
affected to a certain extent.

The Group further deepened its layout of new intelligent products business
segment, and continued to accelerate new project cooperation with top
customers in the industry, driving a continued growth in the shipment
of residential energy storage, unmanned aerial vehicles and other new
intelligent products and maintaining a rapid growth in business scale.
The shipment of the Group’s residential energy storage products grew
rapidly during the Year, with business scale expanding several times,
which became an important driving force for the growth of revenue of the
new intelligent products business. While continuing to deepen its R&D
and manufacturing cooperation with customers, the Group continued
to develop new customers and new product categories to tap into the
vast business opportunities in the new intelligent products market and
to promote the Group’s diversified businesses towards high-quality
development.

In terms of the new energy vehicles business, the development of new
energy vehicles has entered a market-driven stage of large-scale and high
quality development, with the market penetration of the new energy vehicle
gathering pace and the production and sales volume continuing to grow at
a high rate. China’s new energy vehicle market has ranked first in the world
for eight consecutive years. Benefiting from the accelerated development
of vehicle intelligence and networking, shipments of the Group’s products
of intelligent cockpits and network connection grew significantly, leading
the new energy vehicle business segment to maintain a strong growth
impetus. At the same time, the Group has continued to invest in research
and development and technological innovation, introducing various
product lines such as intelligent driving system, thermal management
system, intelligent chassis and suspension to further enhance its market
competitiveness. The Group will deepen its cooperation with domestic
and international vehicle enterprises, continue to develop new customers
and actively increase its market share, striving to become a global leading
solution provider in the new energy vehicle industry.
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In terms of corporate responsibilities for economic, environmental
and social sustainable development, BYD Electronic fully assisted the
Chinese government in achieving the goal of “carbon neutrality” through
continuously optimizing green technologies, products and solutions and
focusing on the green and low-carbon development of the industry. In the
face of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group actively contributed to public
welfare and charitable causes and donated materials to help fight the
COVID-19 pandemic in various areas.

Looking forward to 2023, the domestic economy will continue to
maintain the keynote of “pursuing progress while ensuring stability”. The
government is committed to boosting domestic demand and unleashing
the consumption potential of people to promote sustainable and healthy
economic development, while progressively moving towards achievement
of the goal of “carbon neutrality”, and will continue to strongly support
industries related to new energy vehicles and electronic intelligent
manufacturing. With the deep integration of 5G, artificial intelligence
and intelligent networking technologies, the application scenarios of
new intelligent products are becoming more and more refined and the
market scale continues to expand, while the evolution of automobiles
into greater intelligent terminals becomes inevitable. At the forefront of
industry transformation and upgrading, BYD Electronic will firmly seize the
market opportunities, continuously enhance independent innovation and
research capability, promote the optimization and upgrade of intelligent
manufacturing, deeply explore the growth potential of the business and
emerging market, opening up the second growth curve for the Group.

In conclusion, |, on behalf of BYD Electronic, would like to thank our
customers, business partners, investors, and shareholders for their
continuous support, as well as all of our staff for their contributions and
efforts over the past year.

Wang Chuan-fu
Chairman

Shenzhen, the PRC, 28 March 2023
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a global leading platform-based high-end manufacturing
enterprise, providing customers with product design and development,
parts and components as well as complete machine manufacturing, supply
chain management, logistics, after-sales and other one-stop services.
The Group’s diversified businesses cover smart phones, tablet PCs, new
energy vehicles, residential energy storage, smart home, game hardware,
unmanned aerial vehicles, Internet of Things, robots, communication
equipment, health devices and other diversified market areas. Leveraging
on its industry leading research and development and manufacturing
capabilities, diversified product portfolio and abundant customer resources,
the Group’s business is progressing steadily towards high quality
development and has demonstrated good resilience.

In 2022, the global inflationary pressure rose, major developed economies
tightened their monetary policies significantly, the global economic growth
generally slowed down, the COVID-19 pandemic continued to resurge and
geopolitical tensions intensified, all of which also added to the uncertainties
in the world economy. Supported by the government’s optimized and
adjusted pandemic prevention policy and the in-depth implementation
of economic stabilization measures, the gross domestic product (GDP)
of China grew by 3% year-on-year for the Year. The Group responded
proactively and maintained steady operations in the face of the complex
and severe external environment. While continuing to deepen partnerships
with major overseas and domestic customers, the Group actively seized
market opportunities and accelerated its deployment in the new paths to
cultivate new growth engine for its business development. During the Year,
although the weaker demand in the Android smartphone market brought
certain pressure on the business, benefiting from the increased share of
major overseas customers and the rapid growth of new businesses such
as new intelligent products and automotive products, the Group achieved
stable and healthy development as a whole, with its revenue scale
reaching a new high. In 2022, the Group recorded sales of approximately
RMB107,186 million, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately
20.36%. Influenced by various factors, the Group’s capacity utilization rate
was low in the first half of the year and its profitability was under pressure.
With the optimization of business structure, capacity utilization rate and
profitability recovered in the second half of the year and earnings improved
quarter by quarter. During the Period, profit attributable to shareholders
dropped by approximately 19.58% year-on-year to approximately
RMB1,858 million.
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In respect of the consumer electronics business, the global smartphone
market shipments hit a record-breaking low in nearly 10 years as consumer
sentiment remained poor amidst an uncertain economic outlook and rising
inflation. According to the data from the research agency IDC, global
smartphone shipments in 2022 decreased significantly by 11.3% to 1.21
billion units. The global PC market shipments in 2022 decreased by 16.5%
t0 292.3 million units. The global tablet PCs shipments decreased by 3.3%
year-on-year to 162.8 million units. Information released by the China
Academy of Information and Communications Technology shows that
annual mobile phone shipments in the Chinese market amounted to 272
million units in 2022, down by approximately 22.6% year-on-year, while the
shipment of 5G mobile phones decreased by approximately 19.6% year-
on-year to 214 million units. As a global leader in smartphones and other
smart terminals, the Group has leveraged its excellent scientific research
technology and superior product design and manufacturing capabilities
to continue to deepen its strategic cooperation relationships with major
customers, and further consolidate its industry leadership position. In terms
of major overseas customers business, the Group’s share and shipment
of assembly and components and parts for core products continued to
increase, and the structural parts projects of new product categories were
also successfully introduced into mass production, resulting in continuous
business growth. In terms of major Android customers, the Group
continued to serve the mainstream products in the Android market in an
all-around way. As the market demand for smartphones has weakened,
the Group’s revenue from the Android complete machine assembly and
components and parts business was affected to a certain extent. During
the Year, the Group recorded a revenue of RMB82,209 million in the
consumer electronics business, representing an increase of approximately
14.77% compared to 2021. Revenue from components and parts was
approximately RMB14,155 million, representing a decrease of 9.58% year-
on-year, while revenue from assembly was approximately RMB68,054
million, representing an increase of 21.57% year-on-year.
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In respect of new intelligent product business, with the increasing
popularity of 5G and artificial intelligence technologies, the huge application
prospect leads to the rapid growth of new intelligent products market
scale. Driven by high on-grid tariff and energy security needs, coupled with
the favorable policies related to the energy storage industry introduced by
the countries all over the world, the global demand for residential energy
storage embraced explosive growth. It was estimated by Gaogong Industry
Research that in 2022, the global capacity of new residential energy
storage installed would reach 15GWh, representing a significant increase
of 134% year-on-year. With the transformation and upgrade of China’s
national consumption structure, coupled with the penetration of the Internet
of Things, cloud computing and other technologies in diversified application
scenarios, China’s smart home market continues to expand. IDC estimated
that the sales of China’s complete home smart market was expected to
exceed RMB10 billion in 2022 and would continue to grow rapidly at a
compound rate of 46.9% over the next 5 years. During the Year, the Group
further deepened its layout in residential energy storage, smart home,
game hardware, unmanned aerial vehicles and other business segments,
and continued to accelerate new project cooperation with top customers in
the industry in each segment, resulting in continued growth in the shipment
of new intelligent products and robust business development momentum.
The Group’s residential energy storage products have served the overseas
markets for many years and have gained a good industry reputation. During
the Year, the shipment of these products grew rapidly, with business scale
expanding several times, which became an important driving force for the
growth of revenue of the new intelligent products business. Together with
leading brands of unmanned aerial vehicles, the Group has continued to
increase the shipment of consumer unmanned aerial vehicles, industrial
unmanned aerial vehicles and agricultural unmanned aerial vehicles, and
its market share continues to grow. In 2022, the Group’s new intelligent
products business recorded revenue of approximately RMB15,207 million,
accounting for 14.19% of the total revenue, representing an increase of
22.19% over 2021.
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In terms of the new energy vehicles business, the development of new
energy vehicles has entered a market-driven stage of large-scale and
high quality development, with the market penetration rate rising rapidly
and the production and sales volume continuing to grow at a high rate.
China’s new energy vehicle market has ranked first in the world for eight
consecutive years. Under the combined impetus of favorable policies,
the rise of Chinese automotive brands and innovative breakthroughs in
vehicle intelligence and networking technologies, new energy vehicles
continued to grow explosively. According to the China Association of
Automobile Manufacturers, the annual sales volume of new energy vehicles
in 2022 reached 6.887 million units, representing a year-on-year growth
of 93.4%, and its market share increased significantly from 13.4% in 2021
to 25.6%. During the Year, benefiting from the accelerated development
of vehicle intelligence and networking, shipments of the Group’s products
of intelligent cockpits and intelligent network connection grew significantly,
doubling the revenue scale of the new energy vehicle business segment.
At the same time, the Group insisted on the technology-centered and
innovation-oriented philosophy. Relying on the industry-leading research
and development capability in software and hardware, material science,
mold technology and precision machining capacity, the Group would
comprehensively deploy multiple core product lines of new energy vehicles
to further enhance its market competitiveness. In 2022, the Group’s
revenue from the automotive intelligent system business amounted
to approximately RMB9,263 million, accounting for 8.64% of the total
revenue, representing an increase of approximately 145.71% over the last
year.

The Group actively undertook the responsibility for the sustainable
development of economy, environment and society, holistically assisted
the government in achieving the goal of “carbon neutrality”, continuously
optimized green technologies, products and solutions and focused on the
green and low-carbon development of the industry. During the COVID-19
pandemic, the Group actively contributed to public welfare and charitable
causes and donated materials to help fight the COVID-19 pandemic in
Xi'an, Hong Kong, Anyang, Shenzhen and other areas.
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FUTURE STRATEGY

Looking ahead to 2023, high inflation and the Russia-Ukraine war are
likely to go on posing challenges to global economic development. Yet,
with the continued refinement of COVID-19 pandemic containment
measures, China’s economic recovery has gained momentum and
boosted confidence in global economic growth. The International Monetary
Fund (IMF) raised its forecast for global economic growth in 2023 from
2.7% to 2.9%, and China has set a GDP growth target of around 5%.
China continued to adopt a “pursuing progress while ensuring stability”
economic approach to promote quality development and sustain the
economic recovery momentum. The government strongly supports
the development of new energy vehicles and electronic intelligent
manufacturing related industries, continuously issuing favourable policies
to boost domestic demand and unleash the consumption potential of
people, thereby supporting the development of these industries. The
Group will seize market opportunities, intensify research and development
of core technologies, consolidate its vertical integration advantages and
deepen its major customer strategy in an active manner. As for 2023, while
maintaining its position as the industry leader in traditional businesses, the
Group is expected to see further rapid growth in its foresighted product
lines in areas such as new energy vehicles, which will contribute to the
ongoing positive development of the Group’s business.

In respect of the consumer electronics business, despite the signs of
recovery in the market brought about by the relaxation of the COVID-19
pandemic-related restrictions in China, it is difficult to see a significant
rebound in the near future as the global economic outlook remains
uncertain and it will take some time for the domestic economic and
consumer stimulus measures to bear fruit. According to the forecast of
CINNO Research, consumer demand may still be dampened by the impact
of the COVID-19 pandemic during the first half of 2023, and may gradually
improve in the second half of the year. IDC also forecasts that high inflation
and macroeconomic uncertainty will continue to undermine consumption
expenditures and may postpone the recovery of the mobile phone
market to the end of the year. It’s estimated that, in 2023, smartphone
shipments will rise by 2.8%, PC shipments (including desktops, laptops
and workstations) will decline 5.6% to 281 million units, and global tablet
shipments will fall 6.7% to 148 million units. As a global leading platform-
based high-end manufacturing enterprise, the Group will continue to
enhance its overall competitive edge and further strengthen its market
leadership position. In terms of the major overseas customers, the Group
will continue to meet the development needs of our customers on all fronts,
penetrate deeply into the core business of our major overseas customers,
continue to increase the market share of our core products, and continue
to expand into new product categories. As market share of our core
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products continues to increase, new product categories will begin to ramp
up and their size of business will continue to grow. In terms of the Android
assembly business, the Group will focus on mid-to-high-end products and
continue to strengthen strategic cooperation with customers to meet their
demand for mid-to-high-end product shipment. In terms of the Android
components and parts business, the Group will focus on technology
development and innovation to further strengthen its leading position in the
market. In the future, the Group will continue to expand its domestic and
overseas markets, improve its globalization and provide better services to
customers at home and abroad.

In respect of the new intelligent products, the industry has maintained
a high level of prosperity. Empowered by 5G and artificial intelligence
technologies, the application scenarios of new intelligent products are
becoming more and more refined and the market scale continues to grow,
with ample room for development in areas such as residential energy
storage, smart home, gaming hardware and unmanned aerial vehicles,
where the Group has a forward-looking presence. Benefiting from the
general trend of new energy transformation, residential energy storage has
become a global high-growth track. According to the “Medium Scenario”
estimation of the SolarPower Europe, by the end of 2026, 3.9 million
households in Europe will have deployed residential battery-based energy
storage systems, and the cumulative energy storage capacity deployed
will increase by over 300% to reach 32.2GWh. In August 2022, the IRA
was passed in the United States, extending the ITC for standalone energy
storage projects for the first time. With the ongoing implementation of
favourable policies and the rising market penetration at home and abroad,
the global residential energy storage market is expected to reach US$100
billion in the future. IDC forecasts that the global shipments of smart home
devices will grow by 4.6% in 2023, with most of the growth attributable
to emerging markets and China, and that the CAGR between 2022 and
2025 will be 8%. Contrive Datum Insights forecasts the global commercial
unmanned aerial vehicle market to grow sharply at a CAGR of 57.5%
from 2023 to 2030, driven by the enormous commercial demand from
construction, film shooting, monitoring and other aspects. In 2023, the
Group’s residential energy storage, smart home, gaming hardware and
unmanned aerial vehicle segments will maintain a good momentum of
development, driving the scale of the new intelligent product business to
new heights. In terms of the residential energy storage business, the Group
will strive to introduce its products to more overseas countries and regions
and expand its diversified business models, and expects to maintain a high
growth in shipment volume, leading to a sustainable expansion in revenue.
Riding on our strong R&D strength, global presence and vertical integration
capability, the Group will accelerate project cooperation with domestic
and overseas customers to capture the golden opportunities in the global
market for new intelligent products and unleash the growth potential of our
business.
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In terms of the new energy vehicle business, development of China’s
new energy vehicle industry has fully entered a market-driven stage,
with market penetration of new energy vehicles speeding up and the
industry stepping into a rapid growth trajectory. The China Association
of Automobile Manufacturers estimates the sales volume of new energy
vehicles in China to reach 9 million units in 2023, representing a year-on-
year growth of 35%. IDC forecasts the new energy vehicle market in China
to reach 15.98 million units by 2026, representing a CAGR of 35.1%, and
that by then the domestic new energy vehicle penetration rate will exceed
50%. The era of electrification, networking and intelligence-integrated
development of automobiles has started. Consumers’ demand for the
intelligence level of intelligent cockpits, in-vehicle entertainment system and
automatic driving system is on the rise, and networking and intelligence
will open up a broader room for the growth of electric vehicles. With the
extensive application of 5G technology, the rapid increase in computing
power of digital chips and the gradual improvement in performance of
power semiconductor devices, it is inevitable that automobiles will evolve
into bigger intelligent terminals. In September 2022, the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology publicly sought comments on the “Guidelines
for the Standard System Construction of the National Internet of Vehicles
Industry (Intelligent Networked Vehicles) (2022 Edition)”, which clearly
indicates that more than 230 new industry standards will be added in the
future. By 2025, an intelligent networked vehicle standard system will be
systematically developed to support the common functions of integrated
driving assistance and automatic driving. According to the industry data
of IHS Markit, the penetration rate of intelligent networked new energy
vehicles in China is expected to reach 66% in 2023. Intelligent cockpit is an
important component of intelligent networked new energy vehicles and an
important carrier of human-computer interaction and interaction between
the automobile and the outside world. Riding on the strong wave of growth
in the new energy vehicle market, coupled with our parent company’s
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strong advantage in the new energy vehicle sector and its rising market
share, the Group’s new energy vehicle business segment will continue
to grow at a rapid pace. The Group has been actively developing new
energy vehicle product lines and has invested substantial R&D resources
to promote technological innovation. On top of the intelligent cockpit
product series (central control, instrumentation, in-vehicle acoustics, switch
panels, power charging and other products), the Group has introduced a
number of incremental track products such as intelligent driving systems
(including low, medium and high computing power platforms), thermal
management systems, intelligent chassis and suspension. In the future, the
Group will deepen its cooperation with domestic and overseas automotive
companies, continue to develop new customers, actively increase its
market share, and strive to become a world-leading solution provider in the
new energy vehicle industry.

Over the past few years, the Group actively invested in research and
development and innovation, and has formed a diversified product
matrix comprising new energy vehicle product series, residential energy
storage products and other new intelligent products, thereby realising
the transformation and upgrade from manufacturing capability-driven
to R&D-driven. Moreover, the Group has expanded into three emerging
businesses, including major overseas customers business, new energy
vehicle business and intelligent product business, on top of the single
Android business, thus establishing a sounder business layout. Given the
increasing proportion of the emerging businesses, their strong profitability
and growth potential, they are expected to sustain the performance growth
of the Company. In 2023, the Group’s business will embark on a new
round of rapid growth and initiate a second growth curve.

Looking ahead, the Group will adhere to its core corporate values,
seize market opportunities, strive to enhance its independent innovation
and research and development capabilities continuously, promote the
optimization of intelligent manufacturing, explore the growth potential of our
business, maintain long-term sustainable development, and create value
for customers and shareholders.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue recorded an increase of 20.36% as compared to the previous
year, while profit attributable to equity holders of the parent recorded a
decrease of 19.58% as compared to the previous year, mainly due to the
low overall capacity utilization rate of the Group and profitability under
pressure as a result of the weak demand in the consumer electronics
market.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
Set out below is a comparison of geographical segment by customer
location of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021:
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GROSS PROFIT AND MARGIN

The Group’s gross profit for the Year increased by approximately 5.33%
to approximately RMB6,350 million. Gross profit margin decreased from
approximately 6.77% in 2021 to approximately 5.92%. The decrease in
gross profit margin was mainly due to the low overall capacity utilization
rate of the Group and profitability was under pressure as a result of the
weak demand in the consumer electronics market.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the Year, the Group recorded cash inflow from operations of
approximately RMB5,961 million, compared with approximately RMB6,335
million recorded in 2021. The increase in the cash inflow of the Group
recorded during the period was mainly due to the increase in cash received
from the sale of goods. As of 31 December 2022, the Group had interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings of approximately RMB2,004 million (31
December 2021: RMBO). The maturity profile of the interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings thereof spreads over a period of one year.

The Group maintained sufficient liquidity to meet daily liquidity management
and capital expenditure requirements, and control internal operating cash
flows. Turnover days of trade receivables and receivables financing were
approximately 47 days for the Year, compared with approximately 54
days for the year ended 31 December 2021, which was mainly due to the
fact that the increase of the balance of receivables on average was lower
than that of revenue over the same period. Turnover days of inventory for
the Year were approximately 50 days, compared with approximately 39
days for the year ended 31 December 2021, which was mainly due to the
fact that the increase of cost of sales was lower than that of inventory in
average over the same period.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s financial division is responsible for the Group’s financial
risk management which operates according to policies implemented
and approved by senior management. As of 31 December 2022, the
Group had interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of approximately
RMB2,004 million (31 December 2021: RMBO0), which were settled in
RMB, and its cash and cash equivalents were mainly held in RMB and
US dollars. The Group’s current bank deposits and cash balances and
fixed deposits, as well as net cash derived from operating activities, will be
sufficient to satisfy the Group’s material commitments and working capital,
capital expenditure, business expansion, investments and the expected
debt repayment for at least the next year. As at 31 December 2022, the
Group’s outstanding loans were RMB loans at fixed interest rates.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net liabilities
divided by equity. The Group’s policy is to maintain the gearing ratio as
low as possible. Net liabilities include interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, less cash and bank balances. Equity represents equity
attributable to owners of the parent. The gearing ratio was -12.93% as of
31 December 2022 (-9.63% as of 31 December 2021).
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EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Most of the Group’s income and expenditure are settled in RMB and
US dollar. During the Year, the Group did not experience any significant
difficulties in or impacts on its operations or liquidity due to fluctuations in
currency exchange rates. The Directors believe that the Group will have
sufficient foreign exchange to meet its own foreign exchange needs.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE YEAR
There are no other significant subsequent events occurred that materially
affected the Group’s financial condition or operation after 31 December
2022 and up to the date of this annual report.

CHARGE ON ASSETS
As at 31 December 2022, a bank deposit of approximately
RMB20,633,000 was pledged for guarantee deposits (RMB351,244,000
as at 31 December 2021).

EMPLOYMENT, TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had approximately 93 thousand
employees. During the Year, total staff cost accounted for approximately
10.77% of the Group’s revenue. Employees’ remuneration was determined
based on performance, qualifications and prevailing industry practices,
with compensation policies being reviewed on a regular basis. Employees
may receive bonuses and rewards, based on their annual performance
evaluation. Incentives were offered to encourage personal motivation. The
Company did not adopt any share option scheme.

Since 2021, the Group has standardized a three-tier training framework for
new staff members and has concretely carried out training. The subjects,
hours and assessment methods of the three-tier training framework are
clearly stated, and safety training materials and examination questions are
drafted according to the job nature of employees. New employees are
required to attend the training and pass the examination before taking on
the job.
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DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting shareholders’
expectations and prudent capital management with sustainable dividend
policy. The Company’s dividend policy aims to allow shareholders to share
the Company’s profits and the Company to retain adequate reserves for
future growth. In proposing any dividend payout, the Company would
consider various factors including (i) the financial performance and overall
financial position of the Group; (i) the debt-to-equity ratio and return on
equity of the Group; (i) the liquidity position and capital requirements
of the Group; (iv) the current and future operation of the Group; (v)
the business development strategy and future expansion plans of the
Group; (vi) the general market conditions; (vi) any relevant requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and
applicable laws, rules and regulations as well as the Company’s Articles of
Association; and (vii) any other factors which the Board deems relevant.
The final dividend was approved at the general meeting after thorough
discussion and compliance with relevant decision-making procedures.
Compliant with the conditions under the dividend distribution policy, the
Board may propose interim dividend distribution based on the profitability
and capital requirements of the Company.

The Company shall review and reassess the dividend policy and its
effectiveness on a regular basis or when necessary.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved to declare a final dividend of RMBO0.165 per
ordinary share (2021: RMBO0.103 per ordinary share) for the Year which
is subject to consideration and approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. Please refer to note 37 to the financial
statements included in this announcement for details of the final dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2022, the share capital of the Company was as
follows:

Number of ordinary shares issued: 2,253,204,500 shares.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

The Company or its subsidiaries did not redeem any of its shares during
the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022. During the Year,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased or sold any of
the Company’s listed securities.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD
The Group did not have any significant investments during the Year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES AND MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OF CAPITAL ASSETS

During the Year, there was no material acquisition and disposal of
subsidiaries and associates. There was no plan authorised by the Board
for other material investments or additions of capital assets as at the date
of this announcement.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at 31 December 2022, the total capital commitments of the Company
were approximately RMB1,026 million, compared with approximately
RMB1,191 million as at 31 December 2021.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Please refer to note 30 to the financial statements included in this
announcement for details of contingent liabilities.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND SOCIAL SECURITY
During the Year, the Group had no significant environmental protection or
social security issues.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

WANG NIAN-QIANG

Mr. Wang Nian-giang, aged 59, a Chinese national with no right of abode
overseas, a master’s degree holder and an engineer. Mr. Wang graduated
from Central South University of Technology (F7# L% X&) (now the
Central South University (1 A£2)) in 1987 with a bachelor’s degree in
industrial analysis. In 2011, he obtained a master’s degree in MBA from
China Europe International Business School (7 Bt BB T & 2 557). Mr.
Wang worked at Anhui Tongling Institute of Non-ferrous Metals (Z &1 ifp&
BB REHZE) as an engineer. He joined Shenzhen BYD Industries
Company Limited (XYM @B X BR A F]) (“BYD Industries”,
renamed as BYD Company Limited on 11 June 2002) in February 1995
as a chief engineer. He joined the Group in April 2015 and is the chief
executive officer and executive director of the Company and the vice
chairman of BYD Charity Foundation.

JIANG XIANG-RONG

Mr. Jiang Xiang-rong, aged 46, a Chinese national with no right of abode
overseas, a bachelor’'s degree holder, graduated from Fudan University
(fE B KE) in 1999, majoring in Applied Chemistry, with a bachelor’s
degree. Mr. Jiang joined BYD Industries in July 1999. He has successively
served as the factory director of the precision metal products factory of
Division 1, general manager of the technology development center of the
electronic business group and deputy general manager of Division 1. Now
he is the executive director of the Company and COO of BYD electronic
business group, the general manager of the first business division and
the general manager of the ALPHA structural parts business division,
who is responsible for the overall operations and manufacturing, project
development, module development and research and development of
new technologies and materials of structural parts (metal, glass, ceramic,
plastic) business.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
WANG CHUAN-FU

Mr. Wang Chuan-fu, aged 57, a Chinese national with no right of abode
overseas, master’s degree holder and senior engineer. Mr. Wang
graduated from Central South University of Technology (7 F T 2 K £2)
(currently known as Central South University (FF 1 AXE2)) in 1987 with a
bachelor’s degree majoring in metallurgy physical chemistry, and then
graduated from Beijing Non-Ferrous Research Institute in the PRC (+
Bt =B 2B IT4AMT) in 1990 with a master’s degree majoring in
metallurgy physical chemistry. Mr. Wang held positions as vice supervisor
in Beijing Non-Ferrous Research Institute (1t 728 & & B 7T 42F%), general
manager in Shenzhen Bi Ge Battery Co. Limited (F3IIT1 LL 8 E A R A
B]). In February 1995, he founded BYD Industries with Mr. Lv Xiang-yang
and took the position of general manager. He has been a non-executive
director and the chairman of the Company since December 2007, and
currently serves as the chairman, an executive director and the president of
BYD Company Limited (“BYD”, listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
01211); listed on the SZSE (Stock Code: 002594)), the chairman of BYD
Semiconductor Co., Ltd. (bt 25~ EEEAY {5 FBR A F)), the chairman of
Shenzhen DENZA New Energy Automotive Co., Ltd. (Y| 5 #ae R 55
B R~ 7)) and a director of Southern University of Science and Technology

of China (F8 75 BH K2,

Mr. Wang, being a technology expert, enjoyed special allowances from the
State Council. He was awarded “The 2008 CCTV Man of the Year China
Economy Innovation Award” (ZZZ /\FCCTVH B EFE AW FE Al
¥1d¥), “Zayed Future Energy Prize Lifetime Achievement Award in 2014”
(ZE—FFH B EAR K G2 R 228 A 42 B R Bt #2), a founding member
of the United Nations Development Programme’s “Advisory Council for
Sustainable Development” in 2016 (ZZ — /N F B4 B 58I A1 45
ERRFEERZEZ EE AR ), a member of the Expert Committee for the
13th Five-Year Plan for Economic and Social Development of China, an
“Outstanding Builder of Socialism with Chinese Characteristics in the Fifth
National Non-Public Economic Sector in 2019” (CZE— AW FEFAfE2EHIE
REHEEANLEFHEFELEEHEFEERLSE), Figure of Innovation
Entrepreneurship and Advanced Model in the 40th Anniversary of the
Establishment of Shenzhen Special Economic Zone (731148 7 45 (& 2 37
A0RFAIFTAIZE A AN HEEE A ), National Advanced Person in the
Private Economy for the Fight against COVID-19 (&2 B B H B A R &
LB S HEELA), ete.
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WANG BO

Mr. Wang Bo, aged 51, a Chinese national with a bachelor’s degree
holder. Mr. Wang graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology (% Ed/&
T2 K2) in 1993 with a bachelor’s degree in engineering, specializing in
electrochemical engineering. Mr. Wang worked as an assistant engineer at
No. 18 Tianijin Institute of Power Sources (KEE R 5T F7), a senior quality
engineer and resource development manager at Motorola (China) Ltd.
(EEHE B P B ABR A 7). Mr. Wang joined BYD Industries in September
2001 and is mainly responsible for marketing and sales. He had focused
on marketing and sales of the Group and the day-to-day management
of the commercial and customer service aspects of our business since
our listing on the Stock Exchange and served as an executive director of
the Company. He has been appointed as a non-executive director of the
Company since 6 June 2019.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
CHUNG KWOK MO JOHN

Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John, aged 54, a Chinese national and a permanent
resident of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Mr. Chung
obtained a Bachelor of Economics degree from Macquarie University (2
IMNZE B 38 KE2), Australia in 1992 and is also a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and CPA Australia, with over
20 years of experience in auditing, financial management and corporate
finance. Mr. Chung was an auditor in Arthur Andersen (an international
accounting firm) from 1992 to 1999. From 2000, Mr. Chung had held
several senior management positions, including chief financial officer,
executive director and independent non-executive director, in a number of
listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Chung has joined the Group as an independent non-executive Director
of the Company since 7 June 2013. In addition, he is also an independent
non-executive director of each of B & S International Holdings Ltd. (& =&
RIEAZ B IR A 7)), a listed company on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
1705), YTO International Express and Supply Chain Technology Limited
(BB BB REHFEREHE BB A R]), a listed company on the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 6123), Zhengye International Holdings Company
Limited (1E % BB I B BR 2 B)), a listed company on the Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 3363), Tokyo Chuo Auction Holdings Limited (5 A7 54
EERE R AR]) (Stock Code: 1939) and a vice president of Yongsheng
Advanced Materials Company Limited (7 2% #1#/ £ G BR A &) (Stock Code:
3608).
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ANTONY FRANCIS MAMPILLY

Mr. Mampilly, aged 73, a United States national and a master’s degree
holder. Mr. Mampilly obtained a bachelor’s degree and a master’s degree
in physics from Kerala University, India in 1970. Mr. Mampilly worked at
Motorola, Inc. where he held positions as general manager of the Energy
Systems Group, general manager of the auto electronics business,
corporate vice president and chief procurement officer. He joined the
Group in November 2007 and is an independent non-executive Director of
the Company.

QIAN JING-JIE

Mr. Qian Jing-jie, aged 41, a Chinese national without right of abode
overseas. Mr. Qian graduated from Monash University in Australia (82X
FZEE P8 A2 and completed his undergraduate studies in finance in
2006. Since 2006, he has been working at Shenzhen Kind Care Group Co.,
Ltd. (&Y —=EE AR A A]) and is currently a director and the president
thereof. Mr. Qian has extensive experience in business management. He
has been an independent non-executive Director of the Company since 27
April 2015.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ZHOU YA-LIN

Ms. Zhou Ya-lin, aged 46, Chinese national with no right of abode
overseas, bachelor’s degree holder. Ms. Zhou graduated from Jiangxi
University of Finance and Economics (JT 7881 & KX E2) in 1999, with a
bachelor’s degree in economics. Ms. Zhou joined BYD Industries in March
1999. She has been the Chief Financial Officer of the Company since
January 2016, and currently also serves as the Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of BYD, a director of BYD Semiconductor Co., Ltd. (tt 38
B EEE A () A BR A 7)), chairman of BYD Auto Finance Company Limited
(FbEbiA 8 & @A R A 7)), a supervisor of BYD TOYOTA EV Technology
Co., Ltd. (b 2 HEB) R FR A F)) and a supervisor of BYD Charity
Foundation, etc.
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LI QIAN

Mr. Li Qian, aged 50, Chinese national with no right of abode overseas,
master’s degree holder. Mr. Li graduated from Jiangxi University of Finance
and Economics (T AR 4&E X&) in 1997, with a bachelor’s degree in
economics. He graduated from Guanghua School of Management of the
Peking University (At R K2 K EE IR ZT) with an MBA in July 2016. Mr.
Li served in PwC China (B ZE K EEFHEIE AT, Arthur Andersen (%1
ZEEsTEIE1%5PT) and ZTE Corporation (F ELE KD AR A F). Mr. Li
joined the Group in August 2005. He has been appointed as one of the
joint company secretaries of the Company since November 2007, and
currently serves as a secretary to the Board, Company secretary and
general manager of Investment Department of BYD. He is also a member
of the tenth Listing Committee of Shenzhen Stock Exchange, a member of
the first GEM Listing Committee of Shenzhen Stock Exchange, a director
of BYD Semiconductor Co., Ltd (bt 28 - E 8% {H F R 22 5]), chairman
of Shenzhen BYD Investment Management Co., Ltd. (FJI Tt Rk E &
AR A 7)), chairman of Shenzhen Fudi Venture Capital Co., Ltd. (3T
#8 i A 218 & AR A A), chairman of Energy Storage Power Station (Hubei)
Co., Ltd. (FEaLE UL (44b)EBR A A)), vice chairman of Allystar Technology
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (RIIIZERIL B D B R A A]), a director of
Qinghai Salt Lake BYD Resources Development Co., Ltd. (58 B4 Lt g0 28
&IRFIEE AR A A, a director of Chengxin Lithium Group Co., Ltd. (B #T
$BEEE E M/ ARR A R)), a director of Sichuan Road & Bridge Group Co.,
Ltd. (91 3182 R B A% 1D B BR A 7)), a director of Advanced Materials
Technology & Engineering, Inc. (% 8 X & TR ER A 7)), etc.

CHEUNG HON-WAN

Mr. Cheung Hon-wan, aged 67, a Chinese national, a permanent resident
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and a master’s degree
holder. Mr. Cheung obtained a master degree in accounting and finance
from the University of Lancaster in the United Kingdom in 1983. He is also
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Cheung worked at various Hong Kong listed companies and served as a
qualified accountant of the Company. He joined the Group in June 2007
and is one of the joint company secretaries of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board believes that good corporate governance is an essential
element in enhancing the confidence of current and potential shareholders,
investors, employees, business partners and the community as a whole.
To this end, we strive to promote and uphold the highest standard of
corporate governance.

The Company has put in place corporate governance practices in
compliance with the principles stipulated in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange, and complied with all the applicable provisions and most
of the recommended best practices of the Code since the shares of the
Company commenced listing on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company had complied with the
applicable code provisions as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
during the Year, except for deviation from code provision C.1.6. The
code provision C.1.6 stipulates that independent non-executive Directors
and non-executive Directors should attend general meetings. Due to
travel inconvenience caused by the pandemic and important business
engagements at the relevant time, a non-executive Director did not attend
the annual general meeting held by the Company on 8 June 2022.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Accountable to the Shareholders, the Board is collectively responsible
for formulating the development strategy of the Group and setting
objectives for management, overseeing its performance and assessing the
effectiveness of management strategies. The Board is also responsible
for, and has during the Year performed the corporate governance duties
set out in the terms of reference in code provision A.2.1 (including the
determining of the corporate governance policy of the Company).

THE DIRECTORS

As of the date of this report, the Board comprises seven Directors.
There are two executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. Brief biographical details
outlining each Director’s range of specialist experience and suitability of
the successful long-term running of the Group are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.
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The Group believes that its executive Directors and non-executive Directors
composition is well balanced with each Director having sound knowledge,
experience and/or expertise relevant to the business operations and
development of the Group. All Directors are aware of their collective
and individual responsibilities to the Shareholders and have exercised
their duties with care, skill and diligence, contributing to the successful
performance of the Group for the Year under review.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence as required under
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

The Board held twelve meetings during this year to discuss the Group’s
overall strategy, operation and financial performance. The Board also
ensures that it is supplied in a timely manner with all necessary information
to enable it to discharge its duties. All Board meetings adhere to a formal
agenda in which a schedule of matter is specifically addressed to the
Board for its decision. Topics discussed at these Board meetings include:
overall strategy; quarterly, interim and annual results; recommendations
on Directors’ appointment(s); the Board Diversity Policy; approval of
connected transactions; regulatory compliance; and other significant
operational and financial matters.

The Directors decide on corporate strategies, approve overall business
plans and supervise the Group’s financial performance, management
and organization on behalf of the shareholders. Specific tasks that the
Board delegates to the Group’s management included the preparation
of annual, interim and quarterly accounts for the Board’s approval before
public reporting; the implementation of various strategies approved by the
Board; the monitoring of operating budgets; the implementation of internal
control procedures; and the ensuring of compliance with relevant statutory
requirements and other rules and regulations. The Directors acknowledge
their responsibility for preparing all information and representations of the
financial statements of the Company for the Year.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage in respect of
legal actions against its Directors and Senior Management with the extent
of this insurance being reviewed each year.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a
term of three years respectively and in each case, either the Company
or the relevant Director can give three months’ prior notice at any time to
terminate the appointment without payment of compensation, and the
appointments are subject to the provisions of retirement and rotation of
Directors under the Articles of the Company.
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In accordance with Article 106 of the Company’s Articles of Association (the
“Articles”), at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors, or
if their number is not three (3) or a multiple of three (3), the number which
is nearest to and is at least one-third, shall retire from office by rotation at
least every three (3) years. A retiring director shall be eligible for re-election.
Accordingly, Mr. Wang Nian-giang, Mr. Wang Bo and Mr. Qian Jing-jie
shall retire by rotation, and it is proposed that Mr. Wang Nian-giang, Mr.
Wang Bo and Mr. Qian Jing-jie shall be eligible for re-election at the AGM.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Newly appointed Directors of the Company will be provided with relevant
induction materials to assist them to fully understand the Company’s
operations, business and governance policies and their responsibilities
and duties as a director under the requirements of the relevant laws and
regulations, such as the Listing Rules. They will also be provided with
materials to help them to gain insights in the Company’s business and
operation. In order to ensure adequate performance of duties by the
independent non-executive Directors, the Company will also arrange
on-site visits and sufficient communication with the management for
the independent non-executive Directors. Pursuant to the corporate
governance requirements, the Directors participated in continuous
professional development programme to develop and update their
knowledge and skills. The particulars of the trainings of each Director are
as follows:

Name of Directors

BEEfE

Executive Directors BITES

Wang Nian-giang F o8

Jiang Xiang-rong PNEES
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Wang Chuan-fu FiEE

Wang Bo F#
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFHTES
Chung Kwok Mo John BRI

Antony Francis MAMPILLY Antony Francis MAMPILLY
Qian Jing-jie RIERE
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INDEPENDENT VIEWS

The Company has maintained various measures and mechanisms to
ensure that independent views and input are available to the Board. For
instance, in compliance with Code provisions C.5.6 and C.5.9 of Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules, the Board and its committees are provided with
adequate information and have separate and independent access to the
senior management of the Company for purpose of making informed
decisions. In particular, all members of the Board are entitled to have
timely access to the information of the Group (including but not limited to
management accounts, operational results and statistics, audit results and
other relevant industry and market information and forecasts), as well as
assistance of the Company Secretary and professional advice if necessary
at the expense of the Company. Besides, the audit committee of the
Company is also entitled to contact, and has discussed with, external
auditors of the Company on an annual basis to discharge its duties.
Board members are also encouraged to seek inputs from other members,
employees, other stakeholders as well as investors (via the investor
relations channels) in appropriate circumstances to ensure that different
perspectives are taken into account in the decision making process.

The implementation and effectiveness of the relevant measures and
mechanisms are reviewed by the Board on an annual basis. The Board is
satisfied that there are effective and sufficient formal or informal channels in
place to ensure that independent views and input are reached at the Board
level.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The posts of chairman and chief executive officer are held separately by Mr.
Wang Chuan-fu and Mr. Wang Nian-giang, respectively. This segregation
ensures a clear distinction between the chairman’s responsibility to
manage the Board and the chief executive officer’s responsibility to
manage the Company’s business.
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BOARD MEETINGS

To ensure the highest attendance of Directors, written notices are sent to
all Directors 14 days before a regular board meeting. The meeting agenda
is set in consultation with members of the Board. The Board held twelve
meetings in 2022. The attendance of individual Director at the Board
meetings as well as general meetings in 2022 is set out below:

Members of the Board
EEERE

Wang Nian-giang T8
Jiang Xiang-rong PNk
Wang Chuan-fu FER

Wang Bo B

Chung Kwok Mo John B R
Antony Francis MAMPILLY Antony Francis MAMPILLY
Qian Jing-jie VR TE

In furtherance of good corporate governance, the Board has set up a
number of committees, including:

— the Audit Committee;

—  the Remuneration Committee; and

— the Nomination Committee

Each committee reports regularly to the Board, addressing major issues

and findings with valuable recommendations for the decision making of the
Board. The particulars of these committees are set out hereunder.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee in compliance with
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit Committee
is to review and supervise the financial reporting process and the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company, and provide
advice and comments to the Board of Directors. As at the date of this
report, the Audit Committee consists of five members, namely Mr. Wang
Chuan-fu, Mr. Wang Bo, Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John (chairman of the
Audit Committee), Mr. Antony Francis MAMPILLY and Mr. Qian Jing-jie, of
whom Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John, Mr. Antony Francis MAMPILLY and Mr.
Qian Jing-jie are independent non-executive Directors and among them,
Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise as required under
Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were revised on 27 March
2019 and follow the guidelines set out by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Listing Rules, and is published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company pursuant to Code D.3.4.

The Audit Committee has held four meetings during the Year to review the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021, and the unaudited consolidated financial statements
for the three months ended 31 March 2022, the six months ended 30 June
2022, and the nine months ended 30 September 2022, and the financial
reporting process and the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems of Company. The individual attendance of its members of
the meetings is set out as follows:

BYD ELECTRONIC (INTERNATIONAL) COMPANY LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2022 /—C/

S

RPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BEREES
AARERIEEMRAEI2NEKIEBZE B
T ERZECNIEHEAEMIMEEBAR

AN BREEZFALEREERATBERL R
HoURERSREEERER - RARE T
BEH BEREZEehmALKEENK  KEH
BlABTERELE - TRISE  BRERLEGE
®ZBEXE) - Antony Francis MAMPILLY %
ENBERSEE - B - B L4 - Antony
Francis MAMPILLY &  SEWEHE A BIE 3E
WITEE BEEREEBEERE MRS
SAOKFTREMA BE XA RN ST A
IEERHE M -

ERZEeNRBERECR T -NF=A=
TEREFALERE LSRG PIHIENE
SR ETHRA - ARIESTRIZED.3. 4R AFIREE

S PT Ro R RIAE Y,

EZZEERFARTEAEE  UEHASE
EEgE_FT-_—F+_A=1+T—RALFENKL
BNV BRERRBEE_S__F=A=+
—HIE=@R - #HE=ZT=——FA=+H1t
ANEA - BEZZTEZ_FAA=THIEAEA
REBEZEHPH®RE  UEREARRAPBRS
BREAREREERANIBEZEZFRNARE -
H BT RREHI T :



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPOR

-

TRERERHRE

Number of Committee

Meetings Attended

Members of the Audit Committee
TEE
T3

Wang Chuan-fu

Wang Bo

Chung Kwok Mo John (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Antony Francis MAMPILLY

Qian Jing-jie T
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has also set up the Remuneration Committee, which
consists of five Directors, namely Mr. Wang Nian-giang, Mr. Wang
Chuan-fu, Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John, Mr. Antony Francis MAMPILLY
and Mr. Qian Jing-jie (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), of
which Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John, Mr. Antony Francis MAMPILLY and
Mr. Qian Jing-jie are independent non-executive Directors, as at the
date of this report. The Remuneration Committee considers and makes
recommendations to the Board regarding the policy and structure on
remuneration and other benefits paid by the Company to the Directors,
senior management and staff, assesses the performance of executive
Directors, and (with delegated responsibility) approves the terms (including
terms on remuneration packages) of the executive Directors’ service
contracts. The remuneration of all Directors, senior management and staff
is subject to regular monitoring by the Remuneration Committee to ensure
that levels of their remuneration and compensation is appropriate. The
Remuneration Committee has performed the above duties during the Year.
The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year and the
individual attendance of its members of the meeting is set out as follows:

Members of the Remuneration Committee

Wang Nian-giang F 2ok
Wang Chuan-fu FEE
Chung Kwok Mo John ERE

Antony Francis MAMPILLY
Qian Jing-jie (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee were published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company pursuant to Code
E.1.8.

BEN(FZEESIE)
Antony Francis MAMPILLY

Antony Francis MAMPILLY
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REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS

The primary goal of the Group’s remuneration policy for executive Directors
is to enable the Company to retain and motivate executive Directors by
linking their compensation with their individual performance as measured
against the corporate objectives and the Group’s operating results and
taking into account of comparable market conditions. For the remuneration
of the executive Directors and senior management, the Remuneration
Committee make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management
(adopting the model described in code provision E.1.2(c)(ii) of the Code).
The principal elements of the remuneration package of executive Directors
include basic salary and discretionary bonus. The Company does not
grant equity-based remuneration with performance-related elements to
independent non-executive Directors.

The emoluments paid to each Director of the Company for the Year are set
out in note 9 to the financial statements.

The Company reimburses reasonable expenses incurred by Directors in
the course of their carrying out of duties as Directors.

Directors do not participate in decisions on their own remuneration.

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BRERENM

Remuneration by bands

EEHMBUR
AEBMHERTEFHFIHHRNEIZEFEIEAL
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Number of

senior management
SREERE A

RMBO to RMB1 million ARBZTEAREI008T 3
RMB1 million to RMB million AREE1008 T E AREEI0E T 1
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZE®

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with specific
written terms of reference stipulating its authorities and duties in
compliance with Rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules and code provision B.3.1
of the CG Code. For more details on such terms of reference, please refer
to the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. During the Year,
the summary of work of the Nomination Committee included reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, reviewing the Board
Diversity Policy and Nomination Policy, assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors and providing recommendations on
rotation and re-appointed Directors at the annual general meeting of the
Company.
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The Nomination Committee has also adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) which includes the selection criteria and nomination
procedures of new appointments and re-appointments of Directors. The
selection criteria for assessing candidates include, in particular, his/her
educational background and professional qualifications, experiences in
the industry, personality and integrity, as well as his/her contributions to
the diversity of the Board according to the Board Diversity Policy. In the
case of re-appointment of Directors, the Nomination Committee would
take into account factors such as contribution from the retiring Directors.
Where the candidate is appointed for the position of independent non-
executive Director, the Nomination Committee will also assess his/her
independence with reference to the requirements set out in the Listing
Rules. After the Nomination Committee evaluated the candidates based
on the selection criteria, the Nomination Committee will nominate one or
more qualified candidates for the Board’s consideration and the Board will
determine and agree on a preferred candidate. The Company and/or the
Chairman of the Board will then negotiate the terms of appointment with
the preferred candidate. Finally, the Chairman of the Board, in consultation
with the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and the chairman
of the Nomination Committee, will then finalise a letter of appointment
for the Board’s approval. The Nomination Committee shall ensure the
transparency and fairness of the selection procedure and continue to adopt
diverse selection criteria during the appointment procedure, taking into
consideration a range of elements such as age, educational background,
professional experience, industrial skills and professional knowledge. Since
its establishment, the Nomination Committee has assumed the role of
reviewing such diverse selection policy at the nomination level, maintaining
a diversified spectrum of varying perspectives, educational background
and professional knowledge in the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises five
members, namely Mr. Jiang Xiang-rong, Mr. Wang Chuan-fu (chairman
of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John, Mr. Antony
Francis MAMPILLY and Mr. Qian Jing-jie, of which Mr. Chung Kwok Mo
John, Mr. Antony Francis MAMPILLY and Mr. Qian Jing-jie are independent
non-executive Directors as at the date of this report. The Nomination
Committee has performed the above duties during the Year.
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year and the
individual attendance of its members of the meeting is set out as follows:

Members of the Nomination Committee
REZEERE
Jiang Xiang-rong

T4
Wang Chuan-fu (Chairman of the Nomination Committee)
Chung Kwok Mo John

Antony Francis MAMPILLY

Qian Jing-jie

EEE
IR

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee were revised on 27
March 2019 and follow the Listing Rules, and is published on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company pursuant to Code B.3.2.

THE BOARD’S DIVERSITY POLICY
The Board adopted the Board Diversity Policy in compliance with
Paragraph J of Part 1 of the Code.

The Company recognises the importance of diversity to corporate
governance and an effective Board. The Board Diversity Policy aims to
set out the approach to achieve Board diversity, so as to ensure that the
Board members possess appropriate skills, experience and diverse views
necessary for the business of the Company. To realise Board diversity, all
appointments of the Board members will be made based on merit, and
measurable objectives will be discussed and negotiated on an annual
basis. Such measurable objectives shall include, but are not limited to,
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and/or terms of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merits and contributions that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board. The Company has confirmed the arrangement of facilitating the
development of more comprehensive, diversified, skilled and experienced
senior management. Furthermore, pursuant to code provision B.1.3 of the
Code, the board should review the implementation and effectiveness of
the issuer’s policy on board diversity on an annual basis. The Nomination
Committee has performed the above duties in terms of selection of
candidates and review of the implementation and effectiveness of the
Company’s diversity policy during the Year.

Having considered the business needs of the Company, the Nomination
Committee considers that the current Board is sufficiently diversified in
terms of its skills, experience, knowledge and independence. Moreover,
the skills they are equipped with will prepare them prior to participating in
senior management and commencing their roles as directors. However,
the composition of the current session of the Board lacks diversity in terms
of gender. As at 31 December 2022, all members of the Board were male.
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According to the Listing Rules which were amended on 10 December
2021 and came into effect on 1 January 2022, the Company should
achieve Board diversity in terms of gender. This session of the Board of
the Company does not have a female member as the Company is still in
the transitional period. To comply with Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, the
Company is contemplating to include a female Director to join the Board
by 2024 via different channels. such as by engaging human resources
agencies to identify potential successors for the Board and enhance
gender diversity in the coming years, if necessary, and will emphasize to
include gender as a factor to be taken into consideration for achieving the
Board diversity

The Company is committed to promoting gender diversity not only within
the Board but among its workforce generally. As at the date of this report,
the number of female employees of the Group accounted for approximately
37.45% of the total workforce. The Board is of the view that the Group has
achieved gender diversity among employees.

The Group’s recruitment strategy is underpinned by the appointment of the
right employee for the right position, in order to achieve employee diversity
for all employees (including the senior management) in terms of gender,
age, cultural and educational background, expertise, skills and know-how.

INDEPENDENT INTERNATIONAL AUDITORS AND
THEIR REMUNERATION

For the Year, the total remuneration paid and payable by the Company to
the independent international auditor, Emst & Young, was RMB1,240,000
for audit services. The audit fee was approved by the Board. During the
reporting period, the total remuneration in respect of the non-audit services
was RMB200,000.
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Review of interim results EHPEES
Other non-audit services H A FETET RS

The Board has proposed and approved to re-appoint Ernst & Young
as the independent international auditor of the Company for 2023,
which is subject to approval by shareholders at the AGM. There was
no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on the
selection and reappointment of the external auditors during the Year.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Each of Mr. Li Qian and Mr. Cheung Hon-wan, being the Company
Secretary of the Company, are full-time staff of the Group, and are
familiar with the daily affairs of the Company. During the Year, each of the
Company Secretary had complied with the relevant professional training
requirements under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The biographical details
of the Company Secretary are set out in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” in this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board confirms its responsibility for risk management and internal
control systems, and for reviewing their effectiveness for the current year
through the Audit Committee at least annually. The Audit Committee
assists the Board in performing its responsibilities for supervision and
corporate governance, covering financial, operational, compliance, risk
management and internal control, as well as internal audit functions of the
Company.

Various measures have been designed for safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use or disposition; for maintaining proper accounting records
and for the reliability of financial information used within the business or
for publication. The Company’s systems of risk management and internal
control are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material errors, losses or fraud. The Board
considers that the Company is fully compliant with the provisions of risk
management and internal control as set forth in the Code.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
FRAMEWORK

The Company’s risk management is composed of a well-established
organizational structure as well as all-rounded policies and procedures.
The responsibilities of each business and functional department are clearly
defined to ensure effective balance. The Company’s risk management and
internal control structure comprise of:
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Evaluating and determining the nature and magnitude of the risks
(including environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) risks) to be
assumed by the Company, to achieve its business and strategic goals;

Ensuring that the Company has established and maintained
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems, such risks would include, amongst others, material risks
relating to ESG;

Supervising the designing, implementation and inspection of the risk
management and internal control systems by the management team.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Assisting the Board in performing its duties of risk management and
internal control systems;

Supervising the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis, to provide opinions and suggestions
with regard to the improvement of the risk management and internal
control systems;

Reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems at least once a year;

Ensuring that the Company has sufficient resources, staff qualifications
and experiences in accounting, internal audit, financial reporting
functions, as well as those relating to the Company’s ESG risks
performance and reporting.

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Designing, implementing and inspecting the risk management and
internal control systems (including ESG risks);

Identifying, evaluating and managing risks that may exert potential
impacts on major operational procedures;

Responding to and following up in a timely manner with regard to the
investigation results of risk management and internal control issues
raised by the Internal Audit Department;

Providing opinions to the Board and the Audit Committee on the
acknowledgment of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems.
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INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT
e Reviewing the due effectiveness of the Company’ s risk management
and internal control systems;

e Reporting the audit results and making suggestions to the Audit
Committee, to improve major drawbacks of the systems or identify the
deficiency of the control.

IDENTIFICATION, EVALUATION AND MANAGEMENT
OF MAJOR RISKS

The management team and relevant staff identify risks that may exert
potential impacts on the Company and its operation, and evaluate and
monitor risks in the environment and process. Through comparison of the
risk appraisal results and risk prioritization, risk management strategies
and internal control procedures are determined to prevent, avoid or reduce
risks.

Major risks and related control measures are reviewed and upgraded on
an ongoing basis to ensure proper internal control procedures in place.
Based on the testing results, persons in charge confirm with the senior
management that internal control measures have played their roles as
expected, their weakness identified in the control have been corrected,
and risk management policies and internal control procedures have been
revised, in the event of any major changes. The Board and the Audit
Committee supervise the control activities of the management team to
ensure the effectiveness of the control measures.

ANNUAL ASSESSMENT

In 2022, the Board reviewed the soundness and effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems, covering
financial, operational and compliance control, and including the financial
and accounting policies and practices, risk management and internal
control systems, the development and implementation of internal audit
system of the Company, etc. Through assessment, the Board and the
Audit Committee are of the view that the Company has developed a
sound internal control system during the Reporting Period, which has
maintained effective internal control in all material aspects in compliance
with the internal control normative system of the Company and relevant
requirements, achieved the internal control target of the Company and
had no material defects. The Board considers that the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems are effective and adequate.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

The Group has an Internal Audit Department which, equipped with
an independent internal audit system, plays an important role in the
Group’s risk management and internal control system. The Internal Audit
Department reports directly to the Audit Committee. Major audit findings
will be reported to the Audit Committee on a timely basis. Based on its
consideration, the Audit Committee will provide advice for the Board
and the management, with subsequent measures taken to review the
implementation of the rectification and improvement plans.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as the Company’s code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by its Directors. Having made specific enquiry, all Directors
complied with their obligations under the Model Code regarding their
securities transactions during the Year.

Specified employees who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of the Group are also subject to compliance with terms of the
Model Code. No incident of non-compliance was noted by the Company in
2022.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group has put in place a set of policies for the disclosure of inside
information which sets out the procedures and internal control for the
handling and dissemination of inside information in a timely manner and
in compliance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong). Unless the inside information falls within
any of the safe harbors as permitted under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, the Group is required to disseminate such information through
the electronic publication system operated by the Stock Exchange to the
public in a timely manner. All Directors, senior management and relevant
employees are required to take reasonable precautions for preserving
the confidentiality of inside information and the relevant announcement
(if applicable) before publication. If the Group believes that the necessary
degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained, the Group will immediately
disclose the information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable.
The policy and its effectiveness are subject to review on a regular basis.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Under the Company’s Articles and the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Hong Kong Companies Ordinance”),
the Directors shall, on the requisition of members of the Company holding
at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than 5% of the total
voting rights of all members having the right to vote at general meetings of
the Company, forthwith proceed duly to convene an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company. The requests, must state the general nature of
the business to be dealt with at the meeting, may be sent to the Company
in hard copy form or in electronic form and must be authenticated by the
Shareholder(s) making it.

Further, Shareholders representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights
of all the members having a right to vote, or, at least 50 Shareholders
who have a relevant right to vote, may put forward proposals at general
meetings; and circulate to other Shareholders written statement with
respect to matters to be dealt with or other business to be dealt with at
general meetings. For further details on the Shareholder qualifications, and
the procedures and timeline, in connection with the above, Shareholders
are kindly requested to refer to Sections 580 and 615 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Furthermore, a shareholder may propose a person other than a retiring
Director for election as a Director at a general meeting. For such purpose,
the shareholder must send to the Board or the company secretary a notice
in writing of the intention to propose a person for election as a Director and
notice in writing by that person of his or her willingness to be so elected,
no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the relevant
general meeting and no later than 7 days prior to the date appointed for
the relevant general meeting.

To safeguard Shareholders’ rights, the Company adopts the policy of
voting by poll for all resolutions put forward at any Shareholders’ meetings.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests requiring the Board’s
attention to the Company Secretary at the Company’s registered office in
Hong Kong at Part of Unit 1712, 17th Floor, Tower 2 Grand Central Plaza,
No. 138 Shatin Rural Committee Road, New Territories, Hong Kong. Other
general enquiries can be directed to the Company through our Investor
and Media Relations Consultant, whose contact information is disclosed in
the section headed “Corporate Information” of this annual report.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that effective communication with investors is
essential for enhancing investors’ knowledge and understanding of the
Company. To achieve this, the Company pursues a proactive policy of
promoting investor relations and communications. The main purpose of the
Company’s investor relations policy, therefore, is to enable investors and
shareholders to have access, on a fair and timely basis, to information that
is reasonably required for making the best investment decisions.

Information relating to the Group is mainly communicated to Shareholders
and investors through publication of notices, announcements and circulars
at the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange and despatch of
interim reports, annual reports and circulars to the Shareholders, as well
as performance presentations, investor surveys, and regular email/phone
contacts, where Shareholders’ inquiries will be answered. Shareholders’
general meetings are held in compliance with the Listing Rules and
other legal requirements to ensure communication and interaction with
Shareholders.

The Board reviews the investor relations policy on an annual basis, and
makes any changes it considers necessary to ensure its effectiveness
and that the legal interests of Shareholders and investors are substantially
protected.

The Board has conducted a review of the implementation and effectiveness
of the investor relations policy of the Company. Having considered the
diverse channels of communication in place, the Board is satisfied that
an effective investor relations policy has been properly implemented
throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.

During the Year, there has not been any significant change in the Articles of
Association of the Company.
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The Outline of the 14th Five-Year Plan for National Economic and Social
Development and Vision 2035 of the People’s Republic of China (Draft)
sets forth major quantified objectives and tasks for economic and social
development during the “14th Five-Year Plan” period, with “promoting
green development and ensuring harmony between humanity and nature”
as the main environment objective during the “14th Five-Year Plan” period.
BYD Electronic actively responds to the national call, and discloses the
fulfillment of its environmental responsibility and social responsibility and
corporate governance to the general public, so that the general public will
be informed of what BYD Electronic is doing and supervise its execution,
thus facilitating understanding, communication and interaction between
BYD Electronic and the general public, and ultimately achieving the goal of
sustainable development of the Company.

REPORTING PERIOD

Unless otherwise specified, the reporting period of this report is from 1
January 2022 to 31 December 2022.

SCOPE OF REPORT

Unless otherwise specified, this report covers BYD Electronic (International)
Company Limited and its principal subsidiaries. For details, please refer to
Note 1 Corporate and Group Information to the financial statements of the
2022 annual report.

REPORT STANDARDS

This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide (Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities) released by The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”), and fully supports all
the provisions of the latest revised “comply or explain” indicators in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange and observes its reporting principles:

“Materiality”: During the preparation of this report, important stakeholders
have been identified and important ESG topics have been determined
through importance evaluation;

“Quantitative”: This report demonstrates key indicators of our environmental
and social performances with quantitative information;

“Balance”: This report observes the principle of balance and objectively
reflects the status quo of the Group’s ESG management;

“Consistency”: Unless otherwise specified, this report uses the same data
statistics method as that adopted for the 2027 ESG Report without any
significant changes.
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CALCULATION STANDARDS
The data used in this report includes the internal statistics and relevant
public data of the Company and its principal subsidiaries. The Group
reasonably promises that this report contains no false records, misleading
statements or material omissions. Unless otherwise specified, all amounts
in this report are denominated in RMB.

CONTACT
If you have any questions or suggestions on this report or the Group’s ESG
management, you are welcomed to email us at BYDEIR@byd.com.

BOARD STATEMENT

China is aiming to peak carbon dioxide emissions before 2030 and achieve
carbon neutrality by 2060. As a global leading platform-based high-end
manufacturing enterprise and the largest domestic EMS manufacturer,
BYD Electronic is well aware of its great responsibility in energy saving
and emission reduction and the necessity to keep up with the nation in
achieving the goals of “carbon peak emissions and carbon neutrality”.
Through persistent hard work in green transformation of the Group,
Huizhou BYD Electronic Co., Limited and Xi’an BYD Electronic Co.,
Limited, the subsidiaries of the Group, were awarded the honor of national-
level green factory in 2021 and 2022, respectively.

The Board of Directors fully recognizes that the inclusion of ESG matters
into business strategies is crucial to the long-term development of the
Company. The Board of Directors is in charge of assessing and determining
the nature and scope of risks that the Company can tolerate, reviewing
the Company’s existing ESG management methods, strategies, priorities
and objectives, and evaluating the relevance between these matters and
the overall business strategies. The Board of Directors is responsible for
identifying, assessing and managing the ESG risks that have a significant
impact on the Company’s businesses and is ultimately accountable for the
Company’s ESG control. Our corporate social responsibility performance is
under the administration and supervision of the ESG Committee. The ESG
Committee reports relevant circumstances to the Group’s management
and then the management reports the same to the Board of Directors to
review and handle the practices, progress and objectives of our corporate
social responsibility work.

In March every year, the Board of Directors regularly reviews and evaluates
the corporate social responsibility work of the Company as per the annual
working plan and the importance of relevant topics.
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IDENTIFICATION OF KEY TOPICS

The Group fully recognizes the importance of listening to all parties in the
development and promotion of ESG projects. By ongoing contact with
various internal and external stakeholders, the Group takes stakeholders’
feedback into consideration, makes commitments in the key areas of ESG
and evaluates corresponding progress. The cooperation also provides
insight into how to effectively convey the ESG information expected by the
stakeholders. The Group actively manages the relationships with clients,
staff, suppliers, investors, regulators, people within the operating area and
other stakeholders who may be affected by the Group’s business in the
regions in which it operates.

EXNZER A

REB DR A EEREHEBESCIA B KRN
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AL E - MIESGRES AR AR - WaHER
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Stakeholder Channel/Method of
Stakeholder Primary Topics Communication Communication Frequency
FEsAHBE T MR AEBA 5 B BERE BERE AKX BEEERE
Clients e Product safety and quality e Customer satisfaction survey o  lIrregular
LY management EPEmEERE T TE HA
% EnxrHEEER e Seminar and exchange
L=J * Information safety and et Zme
commercial secret protection
EELRHEBENTRE
Staff e Employment e General Manager Day e |rregular training for new
BT EE BEIBEH staff and staff promotion
{8‘} e  Salaries and benefits e General Manager Inbox assessment training, etc.
200 FEHAE BIEIRERE TEMAABEIEIEE T
e Occupational health and e Factory Manager Reception B EZIEE
safety Day e Irregular union and group
BiEgmae s W RESH activities
e Staff training and development ®  Union activities TEHIeESETEEH
BT 55| MR ITEE58) e Irregular staff surveys to
e Review and complaint mailbox collect their opinions
BERFEM TEHETE RFAMEE
e Staff training
8T
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Stakeholder

Stakeholder
Primary Topics

Channel/Method of
Communication

Communication Frequency

MBS

Shareholders/
investors
BE
BEE

Gos

Suppliers
e

P

Government
sectors

B

Nz AE 6 5 RBAERE

Results of operations
REKE
Compliance operation

aRRgE

Supply chain management
HEEER

Product liability

EmEE

Green production
FEEE

Green operation
HEEE

Results of operations
REEE
Compliance operation
BRKE

BERE AR B

e General meeting o
BRRRE

e Results presentation °
REBRMmE

e |nvestors forum °
REEREHRE

e Major reverse roadshow °
RE R A3 &

e Regular information disclosure e
EHIE BIRER

e Daily email and phone
communication

A& R E R BB

e Field research o
N5

e Quality communication °
EEER

e Supplier meeting and review
HEESREER

e Supplier contract and
questionnaire survey
HEREREFERS

e Supplier training

HrEmsEl

e  Government policy discussion e
BRBE RS

e Input for government standard
and negotiation
RBUTEE T EEERIEM
A

e Government and cross-
government meeting
B & B U & %

e Participation in government
projects
2 INBUTE B

e |nvitation to visit and inspect
BE2BAR

H: 2022 3R o LEBE T (BB BR AR

BEERH

Irregular investors forums
TEPRITREEEAS
Irregular roadshows

N TE BR S R

Irregular results presentation
NEEEEM

[rregular surveys

T IE ER A

Irregular phone and email
interviews

N E HAE AR S B R )

Irregular training sessions
AT B

Quarterly supplier satisfaction
surveys
RIBREFE —F IR ERW
BERE

Irregular

TEH
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Stakeholder Channel/Method of
Stakeholder Primary Topics Communication Communication Frequency
Mz AHEA T A= AEBA 5 B BE R E BERE AR BIEEE R
NGOs and e Green production e Participation in communities e Irregular volunteer service
communities BmEEE programs activities
FEUT 4B 4% e Social welfare St RIAR TE MR ERERBEES
B[R N e Participation in meetings of
e Volunteer services NGOs, and inviting NGOs to
T EFaAR T participate in meetings

SIBEBTAEBNEE - &
FBIEBFAE2INEE
e Discussion of each party’s

specific concerns

A w77 BT R A RS
e Responding to requirement of

information
EEEEFXK

e  Social welfare activities

HERFHED

The Group conducted dedicated research for multiple stakeholders,
identified important topics and made relevant responses to the topics
identified in the report taking into account important ESG topics
identified by our peers and based on two factors, namely “importance
to the stakeholders”, and “relevance to the Company”. The results of
the assessment on the list of important topics have been submitted to
the Board of Directors for confirmation and approval. The Company will
regularly review these topics and make adjustment as per the Company’s
latest development conditions.
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Governance-related Topics Environment-related Topics Community-related Topics
ERMEARE RIEHESRE HtEHERE

Research, development, and Waste management Salaries and benefits
intellectual property

Fift 35 B R 8k 22 BEEYER HoER

Compliance operation Greenhouse gas emission management  Labor standards

BRBE BERBHNER T8

Supply chain management Energy consumption and resource Employee occupational health and safety

HpEsEEIR management BIBEREALS

REREEERE IR

Supplier evaluation & selection Management of water resources Employee development and training

HEm T LR E IKERETE 8 TERmEE

Customer service and satisfaction Climate change Employee rights

BRI E R B S RIRE L BI#xR

Client privacy Package materials of finished Diversity and equal opportunity

BEFEEA products Lt R FEH#E

K m B EM

Product safety and quality Communication channels

EnirHEEE BBERE

Anti-corruption Community contribution

R&ES Zad=a=1 1)

I ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION AND ENERGY — RREELSHE

SAVING
To win the battle of environmental protection, the Group is always RTITBRERERES  AEBXKEB AN
committed to environmental protection and sustainable development, REREMAIFELER URABIAIE
as well as creating a healthy and safe working environment for the TUT\ ZEMIHERE AEESEER
employees. The Group attaches great importance to the building of an ARV RRER - BERENEMALEER
ecological civilization and its incorporation into the overall corporate %‘ﬁf%ﬁ 2 UmEmte EL&EWW ﬁ?i&ﬁ
planning for future development. The Company is fully aware of the T BAKREESETRBR/E
importance of environmental protection with a high sense of social NEBRDFHEBRITAMELE o :2::
responsibility, and invests a large amount of capital resources in F o ARAEERTERESEAMERBIES
environmental protection in order to achieve harmonious coexistence H o

between the corporate and the environment. In 2022, the Group did
not encounter any environmental pollution or ecologically damaging
accidents.
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1. Emissions 1. BB
Since its founding, the Company has always held on to its RAR BRI  IMEIEBENIR
obligations and social responsibilities to protect the environment. RRERBFMEAENLGEEHLR
With the interests of the State and society identified as the top D RERMEENHELEE - BE
priority, the Group actively coordinates the economic interests 1o 5 2 30 B EE B2 2 F) A9 4K B A 25 8
of individuals and the whole group, while constantly raising B MRRRESHIRA - REFE
its capital investment in environmental protection to advance g RERBFLE  BRTLBEX
pollution prevention and ensure environmental safety, thereby HHEREBENTELES - A5EK
striking a balance between economic benefits and environmental BEF(RPEARKMBERE IS 2H
considerations. The Group strictly complies with the Law of the SBVEY ~ (R E AR MBS G
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of E) - (PEAREMEBRIBREE) S
Atmospheric Pollution, Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law EEER O BBRAEET - BREREH
of the People’s Republic of China, Environmental Protection Law ZRE(BEK - BER - BYREERE - U
of the People’s Republic of China and other laws & regulations, by RIEERLIRE  TROEEHIK -
restricting the emission of waste water, waste gas and solid waste
through rational management and control, so as to protect our
ecological environment and keep our planet green.
1.1 Types of Emissions and Respective Emissions Data 1.1 R EE R HE MBS
Waste emissions include waste water, waste gas, solid wastes P B AR - BER - EEE
and noise. Waste water can be further divided into production EY) - RE o BEKBEERBKMAESE
waste water and domestic sewage; VK
Waste gas mainly includes nitric oxide, sulfur dioxide and BEREEAEAALY  —&LHEE
suspended particles; and solid wastes include recyclable waste, SRR o EREEYEAIRKANEE
hazardous waste and general waste. V) - BEBEEMN—MREEEY -
1.2 Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions 12 BERBAEHRE
The Group regularly reviews its greenhouse gas emission data. REETF T HREREHMEE
The data of the Group’s greenhouse gas emissions in 2022 are as THR-_ZEZ—_FA5BEEZ=RBH
follows. MEE -
Identification Unit 2022
BBl STEEN —E-F
Scope | greenhouse gas emission (carbon dioxide equivalence) Tons
HEOREREFHE(CA/REE WA 15,165.55
Scope Il greenhouse gas emission (carbon dioxide equivalence) Tons
HFEOAERENE(CAtmEE WA 1,556,489.57
Total greenhouse gas emission (carbon dioxide equivalence) Tons
BERBEHIEE CakiREE ] 1,571,655.13
Greenhouse gas emission intensity Tons/persons
BRERBHREE PR EPN 16.86
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Remarks:

1. Scope | mainly includes direct greenhouse gas emissions (energy,
processing and transportation) and scope Il is indirect greenhouse
gas emission from purchased electricity;

2. The coefficient of stationary combustion emissions is derived from
IPCC (2006) and the calorific values of fuels in China are derived from
the General Principles for Calculation of the Comprehensive Energy
consumption (GBT 2589-2008);

3. The coefficient of electricity emissions is from www.tanjiaoyi.com
(http://www.tanjiaoyi.com/article-25420-1.html). Emission coefficient
of the southern power grid in 2019: 0.8042 kg CO2 equivalence/kWh;
emission coefficient of the northwest power grid in 2019: 0.8922 kg
CO2 equivalence/kWh and emission coefficient of the central China
power grid in 2019: 0.8587 kg CO2 equivalence/kWh.

1.3 Discharge of Hazardous Waste

The Group actively enforces emission reduction policies, and
has reduced the emission of air, land and water pollutants by
effectively identifying, evaluating, categorizing and managing
wastes generated in the production process. All hazardous wastes
generated during the production process are transferred to and
treated by qualified hazardous-waste processing companies, and
industrial sewage is discharged to the sewage treatment station
of the Group for processing. Treated sewage is discharged if
the required standards are met. In 2022, the volume of sewage
treated and discharged was approximately 1,409,162 tons.

The total amount of hazardous wastes generated in 2022 was
approximately 26,627 tons, with a density of 0.2857 ton/person,
and all the wastes were transferred to and treated by companies
licensed for disposal of hazardous wastes.
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1 HE—FEREH AT REIMR(8E
R ®i2 B SE AT HEE

BEREBER

2 BEITMEHERRERERIPCC 2006
Fhy  FEIREREZRER  GBT
2589200847 A BEFEAT E Al

3 EBHEEMAEH KRN F B KR
5‘;%Hhttp.//www.tanjlaoyl.com/
article-25420-1.html o 7 5 [& 15 & 49
2019F HERRE# © 0.8042 kg CO2E
£ ,/kWh - PEE R 15, E 48201 94F HE L
FE: 0.8922 kg CO2E &, KWh -
IR EE2019F BN E S - 0.8587
kg CO2E 8, KWh °

1.3 5 ERENHN

AEBBBEEREREK  BBHE
EREELENEEWHETHR - 5T
it DBERERE  BLARR - LHA
KBRS - TEEBRERESE
HiERENEHBXBEEENEREE
VIRRIBMIEHEITIRE  EEMNEERE
IKBEE AR S E /)5 KR IR ik jE 1
RN — 2 ZFREKERER
= #)/51,409,162F -

TECFELEBREMBEED
26,6278 » ZE0.2857 M, & A £ [F
REENEDNEHEZARAERLRE
P AR Al EMIRIR A RIETTEE o
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1.4 Discharge of Non-hazardous Waste
While maintaining tight control over hazardous solid wastes, the rEHEk

Group controlled the emission of non-hazardous wastes in parallel
in 2022. The total amount of non-hazardous wastes generated
throughout the year was about 26,627 tons, with a density of
0.2857 ton/person, all of which were transferred to and treated by
companies authorized by the government. The Group continued
to explore various ways of reducing emissions, and managed
to cut back on waste production by recycling materials in the
manufacturing process. An excellent example is the use of plastic
frames and recycled cabinets during the production process.

1.5 Emission-reduction Measures and Achievements

The Group has formulated its annual energy conservation goal and
implementation plans in strict compliance with Article 49 of the
Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China (/&
#= AR KB4 EEIRE)), tightened up energy consumption
measurement and monitoring management, and reported the
annual energy consumption report in a timely manner.

The energy management system developed by the Group meets
the energy management requirements under GB/T23332, and
has obtained the system certificate certified by third parties. The
system currently operates well with sound performance. The
Group has established a set of scientific, specific and operable
regulations based on the system, which significantly reduced the
randomness in energy management, facilitated the early detection
of problems in energy management and tapped the potentials
of energy saving and emission reduction. The Group has also
advanced the construction of intelligent energy management
platform in Huizhou, Shenzhen, Xi'an and Shantou to promote
green manufacturing. In 2022, Huizhou BYD Electronic Co.,
Limited and Xi’an BYD Electronic Co., Limited were both rated as
national-level green factories.
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In 2022, the Group duly implemented the new national policy for
energy saving and emission reduction, established the corporate
governance philosophy based on the rule of law, and rationally
formulated the annual energy-saving targets. It sensibly set the
target of internal coal-saving and technology improvement project
for the year at 2,100 tons of standard coal, drew up a work plan
and closely followed it up, which enabled it to surpass the energy
saving targets of 2022. Greenhouse gas emissions were reduced
by 24,000 tons of CO2e. The target of internal coal-saving and
technology improvement project for 2023 is set at 2,400 tons of
standard coal, and greenhouse gas emissions will be reduced by
15,700 tons of CO2e.

The examples of the main achievements of the Group in reducing
greenhouse gas emissions are as follows:

Case I: Energy-saving transformation project for air compressors

The Huizhou Phase Il Project currently has 32 air compressors,
of which 7 are medium-pressure air compressors, 5 are 160KW
air compressors with rated pressure of 1.35MPa, and 2 are
200KW air compressors with rated pressure of 1.0MPa, which
are much higher than the end pressure value of around 0.55MPa
actually used, leading to a serious waste of energy. Energy-saving
transformation projects were carried out for 7 air compressors
to reduce the pressure value to 0.75MPa, so that unnecessary
energy loss can be saved during the operation of air compressors.
4,657,400 kWh of electricity are saved with an energy-saving
efficiency of 572.39 tons of standard coal every year. Emissions
are reduced by 3,745.28 tons of CO2e.

Case II: EMS intelligent management system construction project
for water chiller stations

Water chiller stations B10&B11 currently have 3 water chillers,
5 refrigeration pumps, 5 cooling pumps and 8 cooling towers.
According to the actual operation of central air conditioning
system and the requirements of environmental parameters, the
energy-saving control system and energy management platform
are designed to implement dynamic adjustment of the system
according to changes of building load, thus improving energy
utilization efficiency and reducing the energy consumption of
system operation. The project saves 3,822,700 kWh of electricity
with an energy-saving efficiency of 469.81 tons of standard coal
every year. Emissions are reduced by 3,074.22 tons of CO2e.
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T F AEEEBEBRRERE
BEEFTER - B L IRAARE
2 ABEATFEENHEBEE  AF
Efege N EE BIZTE A£2,100[F 2
EE BBHTFEEEIENS
WHREEN  BETK T _FF
EEAR - BREREREERE2.408
t-CO2e ° 20235 ML BB E B R
B2, 4002 M BERERFEE A
1.5781t-CO2e °

AEFEREEEREBHENENTE
RERMT

= —  =EREENETRR

BM_H BRI A EE#32E - B
BT RAPBEEK - B58160KWEE
JEJEE 171.35MPa * B2 &8 200KWEEE
JEZ/71.0MPa - B f# ARmENER
0.55MPa’t 5 * R R ERFEAE S
BERREBEE - RH7TATEMEITE
REEE - KB J{ER0.75MPa &
TEREBITHERPHFHTIVENER
Bk - FEHEB465.74BKWh » FE
BE S 572 30MAIZ M « HEEE A
3,745.28t-CO2¢ °

{51

= KKIEEMSEREE B R AT
pERE

55

B10&B11k/KufIR B3 E KK E# -
5845RE S5ARAR - UKRSES
A - RETFREHARRERETE
MEIRIED2HIERERK - RETENREIE
BIRGREERER TS RIEEES
AELEE  SERSEREEALD
RERMARE  BRERREITE
o HAFEEE382.27TEKWh - F
ENRENZE A 469.81THAIZEE » B E
//3,074.22t-CO2¢ ©

BEFERERAE :: }



N

- E
B - HBREARS

™ |
S LA
I rAN B |

S s

~

E=R: =

Case lll: Energy-saving transformation project for steam pipelines

Before transformation: The steam pipeline of Plant No. 13 was
extended from the boiler room in the northwest corner of Plant No.
11A to the air-conditioning room on the fourth floor of Plant No.
13, with a total length of 470 meters, a pipe diameter of DN250
and a flow rate of 22t/h. For various reasons, the actual steam
peak usage was 2t/h, and there was significant heat loss when
transporting steam over long distances with large pipe diameters.

After transformation: There are only 160 meters in total for the
pipeline connected from the reserved port of the original steam
pipeline at the southeast corner of Plant No. 11A to the air-
conditioning room on the fourth floor of Plant No. 13, which is 310
meters shorter than the original pipeline and reduces a special
pipeline. In addition, central gas supply can effectively reduce heat
loss and natural gas consumption. RMB3.0 million was invested
in this project which saves 196,560 m® of natural gas with an
energy-saving efficiency of 261.42tce every year. Emissions are
reduced by 425.95 tons of CO2e.
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1.6 Methods for Disposal of Hazardous and

Non-hazardous Wastes, Emission-Reduction
Measures and Achievements

The Company actively took measures to reduce waste water
discharge. Take the project on overflow regulation of the washing
line for example, normal product cleaning was changed to
high pressure cleaning and water flow cleaning was changed
to stationary tank cleaning with cleaning water being replaced
regularly, reducing waste water discharge by 32,796 m?®.

Use of Resources

To use resources effectively, the Company has formulated and
implemented the Energy Use Manual, the Management Procedure
for Implementation Plan Concerning Energy Targets, Energy Index
and Energy Management, the Energy Assessment & Control
Procedure, the Control Procedure for Energy Baseline & Energy
Performance Parameters, the Management Regulations on
Energy-saving Work and other relevant regulations and policies.

16 REREREERERYNTGE - B

BEELENEERAGHRR

FEBEREEE IR B B - B AR R
MBE ERETRBEARNRTES
S KB R B B E KOl B S TE
iK% - B BRI E 32,7963

ERER

NN R I E I E M CRE IR B IR F )
CEIREE e RIEEENEERERE
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Fe) CREREZE « BERE B BILHITE
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2.1 Energy Consumption

2.1 gEREA

2022 Energy Resource Consumption

Category

Name
il 8

Direct Energy Natural gas

BHiEEER RAR
Gasoline
U

Indirect Energy Electricity

LR W)

/ Total energy consumption
BERHMES

/ Energy consumption intensity
R HREEE

/ Water
7K

/ Water consumption intensity
FRKEE

2.2 Water Resources Consumption

The Group’s goal of “improving the efficiency of water usage and
attaining sustainability in the use of water resources” was reflected
in all aspects of production and operations. The total amount
of water consumed in 2022 was approximately 10,632,775 m?.

Water consumption intensity was 114.08 m?/person.

2.3 Energy Conservation

The 2022 energy-saving technological transformation project
aims to reduce energy consumption by 2,100 tons of standard
coal. Guided by the ideology of improving quality and efficiency
and lean management, the Group actively implemented energy
conservation and emission reduction. A series of measures have EERNES
been taken from three aspects: management energy conservation,

Measurement Unit

Energy Data
BER BB

FTEEN

10,000 m?

=RV 446.42

Tons

18 4.52

10,000 kWh

& T R 190,985

tons of standard coal

ME AR AR 240,537

tons of standard coal/person

WA AERE (B A B 2.58

10,000 m?

B K 1063.28

mé3/person

SR BN 114.08

22 KERER

AEBEBERKERMNBRE - &
BWKERAFENBIEFINAEE
EEMEREG  —E_FREKE
#/10,682,77535 5K - AKBRE A

114.083 5 K /B A SR -

2.3 HIHRER
TE e NIEE
A2, 10008 1Z %

technical energy conservation and structural energy conservation.

These measures include:

1) Establish the Company’s Energy Conservation and Emission 1)

Reduction Management Committee
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2) Set the Company’s energy-saving objectives and assign
specific energy-saving tasks to subordinate units

3) Carry out energy-saving assessment and link energy-saving
work with the performance of departments and individuals

4) Vigorously carry out energy-saving inspection, training and
publicity activities

5) Actively adopt advanced technology to transform energy-
consumption equipment

6) Increase efforts for the research and development of products
with low energy consumption and high added-value

7) Build an energy management platform to realize the online
management of energy consumption of the enterprise

8) Promote the construction of energy management system to
establish a scientific, standardized, normalized, procedural
and systematic energy conservation management model

In 2022, 109 energy-saving technological transformation projects
were carried out, saving 3,662 tons of standard coal per year, with
a target completion rate of 174%.

Case 1: The energy-saving transformation project for air
compressors saves about 572.39 tons of standard coal per year.

Case 2: The EMS intelligent management system project for water
chiller stations saves about 469.81 tons of standard coal per year.

Case 3: The energy-saving transformation project for steam
pipelines saves about 261.42 tons of standard coal per year.
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2.4 Water Resources Conservation

The main water source of the Group is municipal water supply, so
obtaining sufficient water is guaranteed. The Group has always
attached great importance to green production and vigorously
introduced technology that can not only improve economic
benefits, but also reduce environmental impact. For water use
management, the Company adopts measures such as same
water for more purposes, cascade use, closed-circuit circulation
and sewage reuse, so as to maximize the utilization rate of water
resources and reduce the consumption of water resources in the
operation process, which can help achieve the water-saving goal
of the water-saving technological transformation project in 2022.
The benefit goal of the water-saving project in 2022 was 29,600
ms. In 2022, the Company’s water-saving project saved water
of 32,800 m?, with a completion rate of 111%. The water-saving
projects carried out by the Group in 2022 include:

Case 1: Water-saving project of washing line: Overflow ports were
reduced after improving the techniques of line bodies, saving
water of 22,680 m® per year.

Case 2: Management water-saving project: normal product
cleaning was changed to high pressure cleaning and water flow
cleaning was changed to stationary tank cleaning with cleaning
water being replaced regularly, saving water of 10,116 m? per
year.

2.5 Packaging Materials of End-products

The Group used a total of approximately 340,951 tons of
packaging materials for our end-products in 2022, with an
estimate 3.658 tons/person per production unit. The main types
of packaging are: packaging boxes, packaging boards, packaging
protective materials, packaging bags, and packaging straps.

Environmental and Natural Resources Policies on
Minimizing the Issuer’s Significant Impact on the
Environment and Natural Resources

Climate change is related to the survival and development of all
human beings. BYD launched the “Cool the Earth 1” initiative as
early as 2016 at the C40 Mayors Summit in Mexico. Wang Chuan-
fu, the Chairman and President of BYD, called on everyone to pay
more attention to global climate change at the summit and try to
reduce the warming of the earth. Over the years, BYD has firmly
followed the path of green development and made every effort to
deal with climate change.
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After China announced to the world that it would strive to achieve
carbon peak emissions by 2030 and carbon neutrality by 2060,
BYD established its sustainable development roadmap and
formulated a number of guideline documents related to carbon
management in 2022 to create a management model which is
necessary and systematic for achieving carbon management
goals. In addition, BYD actively participates in international
conferences to discuss with the international community on
addressing climate change.

In 2022, we have reduced the carbon emissions during our
production and operation though purchasing green electricity
certificates to offset carbon dioxide emissions and promoting
photovoltaic power generation projects, the construction of energy
management platform and other projects. During the reporting
period, Xi’an BYD Electronic Co., Limited was awarded the honor
of national-level green factory.

Environmental Risk Management

The Group has introduced an environmental risk management
system covering the whole process of our construction projects.
We adopt the “three simultaneousness” system, whereby
environmental protection facilities and main constructions are
designed, constructed and put into production/operations
simultaneously, so as to ensure that environmental risks are under
control. In addition, the Company has established an integrated
environmental management system (EMS) and obtained the
ISO14001 certification for the system in 2003, and the upgraded
system was certified in October 2022.
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Recognition of outstanding
individuals in energy conservation and
emission reduction
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Commendation meeting for
energy conservation and emission
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4. Climate Change

In response to the vision of “peaking carbon emissions by 2030
and realizing carbon neutrality by 2060” announced by President
Xi Jinping, the Group earnestly promoted pollution reduction,
practiced energy conservation and emission reduction, and
insisted on green and low carbon development at all levels. It put
forth solid effort in organizing publicity activities with rich content
and in diverse formats in line with its commitment to building an
ecological civilization and an environment-friendly society. The
public events include a vigorous campaign promoting green office
practices within the Group and posting labels such as those
carrying the message “take the lead to save energy” in prominent
locations.

Global warming and climate change are profoundly affecting
the world environment, human health and global economic
sustainability. The Group is committed to starting from its own
operation and supply chain to explore and use smarter, safer and
more efficient methods to reduce the “footprint”.

The Company has formulated the Emergency Plan for the Relief
of Disasters and established the emergency rescue system and
operation mechanism for sudden natural disasters to standardize
the emergency rescue behavior, improve the emergency rescue
ability, and implement the emergency rescue in a quick, orderly
and efficient manner, so as to minimize casualties and property
losses of the Company, and maintain the stability of the Company.

SOCIAL SECURITY

The Group always adheres to the orientation of solving social
problems, is committed to the “people-first” operation policy and
values every employee in the Group. Every employee is the resource
and wealth of the enterprise. The Group strictly abides by the Labor
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Labor Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Trade Union Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Company Law of the People’s Republic of
China, and other relevant laws and regulations, and respects and
safeguards the legitimate rights and interests of every employee, so as
to ensure that the legitimate rights and interests of every employee are
fully protected. The existing human resources system of the Company
is formulated according to the current labor legal system, covering
recruitment, training, promotion and transfer, salary, performance and
other fields, providing system guarantee for the legitimate rights and
interests of employees.
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Category File Name and Number
bl &R K A 5
Recruitment Management Rules for Recruitment of Operators
g (RIELHEEELE)

Management Rules for Recruitment and Employment of Recent Graduates
CIE & 4 1 T2 A7 F B FE A JE )
Management Rules for External Recruitment of Management Personnel and Skilled Workers
(EHABHFM T AR EETE)
Management Rules for Qualification
(TBEREERTE)
Training Centralized Training Plan
=]l (EH 15z E)
Training Management Procedures
(B EHEFEF)
Management Rules for EHS Training
(EHSIZ | & FEAE )
Management Rules for Induction Training for New Employees
(FrE L ABUIZIIE MR E)
Internal Training Instructor Certification and Training Course Remuneration

(P9 BB 15 3l 3 D 53 A8 R 15 S &R B )

Promotion and Management Rules for Qualification
Transfer (TREREEHETE)
BIHRE Management Rules for Human Resources Pool

(AN BB EIEHE)

Management Rules for Level Adjustment of Employees

(BT ERFEEERTE)

Measures for Implementation of Transparent Management of Talents

(AT EHEERIEE L)

Remuneration Management System for Remuneration
o (FroNE 2 #IE)

Management Rules for Reward

(R E M E)

Reward System

(ZB#HZ)

Management Rules for Work Attendance and Leave

(ZHUREELRE)

Performance Management Rules for Performance of Employees
B (EITRAUEEHRTE)

Management Rules for Assessment and Rating
(ZRIREEHRTE)
Management Rules for Competitive Evaluation

(BEZREHERE)
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DISTRIBUTION OF EMPLOYEES AB D

The Group actively responds to the national call of “ensuring SEBEGEREBRIMRILE - EEINR
employment and promoting employment” and is committed to B BOREATEHRERE - BRTHE
solving the employment problem of society. To effectively regulate HETHMNERBEER  KEREEINEG
the employer-employee relationship and protect their legitimate AEw SEEMBEEICERB2VESRE
rights and interests according to law, the Group has signed labor FIEHAR - UABCENME TS TER
contracts with all employees upon commencement of employment MER  AREEIMALEFZ - HE
to specify the rights and obligations of the enterprise and employees BEERRERT I EEERENKE -
and provided reliable legal evidence and basis for our employees T FE EEEINEGREIERA
in settling labor disputes and protecting their legitimate rights and 100% - SE—BBEBE=85 TRLMED -
interests. In 2022, the signing rate of labor contracts with employees TR MERFER R £FE - Rk
of the Group was 100%. The Group always respects the privacy and BR FH BUABBEIEMES o &
beliefs of employees and prohibits any discrimination based on age, EZT_FHZA=+—H0 " SEHEH
gender, native place, nationality, customs, religion, political affiliation, ETHEARIIBA EFFMHET(hE
etc. As of 31 December 2022, the Group had 93 thousand on-the- 62.55% ' X B T15k37.45% - RN R
job employees, of which 62.55% were male employees and 37.45% TERELER B - 0E - HESE
were female employees. Domestic employees were mainly located in #: BINE T ENMHETBE - RIFF -
Guangdong, Shaanxi, Henan and Hunan; and overseas employees HREE - HE - EFESER - SEMNE
are mainly in Vietnam, Hungary, Malaysia, India and America. The TRERIATRAR

employee composition of the Group is shown in the table below.

Employee Composition of the
Group in 2022

—ECCEEEIREK

Category Employee Structure Number of Employees
LWl BET#E BETIHE
Gender Male
ezl St 58,297
Female
oqia 34,904
Management Level Senior management
ERER BEEREAB 330
Middle management
FEEEAB 14,151
Grass-root management
EEET 78,720
Age group <30 years old
Fe <305% 43,740
30<age<50
30< F k<50 48,747
>50 years old
>508% 714
Work location Domestic
TiEs®h BA 91,925
Overseas
S0 1,276
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Q
Guangdong Shaanxi Henan
BR ] A
Distribution Diagram of Employees
BINE
EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY FERZ T

The Group encourages and advocates equal employment and
opposition to discrimination, and solemnly promises to treat every
employee equally, and that their employment, treatment or promotion
will not be affected due to their social identity such as nationality,
country, gender, religion, age, sexual orientation, political spectrum
or marital status. The Company advocates equal communication,
respects employees’ personality, listens to employees’ opinions,
accepts employees’ reasonable suggestions, and does not take
punitive measures, management methods and behaviors such as
abuse, corporal punishment, violence and mental oppression on
employees for any reason.

WORKING HOURS AND HOLIDAY

In the Group, employees work five days a week, and the normal
working hours are 8 hours a day. According to the Management Rules
for Work Attendance and Leave, we ensure that employees can enjoy
local statutory holidays and rest days. Employees work overtime on
a voluntary basis. If they need to work overtime, they need to apply
in advance and get the confirmation and approval of their superior
leaders. Overtime pay is calculated on a monthly basis according to
the actual overtime work. If it is impossible to arrange compensatory
leave or the employee doesn’t apply for compensatory leave, the
overtime pay is calculated and paid according to the Labor Law.

SEFXBMESEFERERIREKSR - BE
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PROMOTION AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group attaches importance to the development of employees,
establishes a perfect promotion system, comprehensively assesses
employees’ personal quality, ability and achievements in work, follows
the principle of combination of step-by-step promotion and skip-level
promotion, vertical promotion and horizontal promotion. We select
personnel with outstanding performance and excellent ability every
year and promote them after they pass the evaluation of the promotion
committee, so as to ensure employees’ career development and
promotion opportunity.

In order to meet the development needs of employees in the Group,
let employees fully demonstrate their abilities and promote the
construction of talent echelon in the Group, the Group develops a
current career development channel with complementary technology
channel and management channel, combines with the characteristics
of the employees themselves, and formulates systematic, scientific and
comprehensive training plans, to promote the development of factory
manager/director-level talents, and deliver excellent backup talents to
achieve the strategic goal of the Group for a hundred billion of output
value. In this process, the Group constantly summarizes and improves
the existing training mechanism, and establishes a talent training
system suitable for the Group to provide knowledgeable, young and
international qualified talents for its development.

BEAERR
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BE 2EEREINEARE IR
ETETRRESNKE  ERERETEY
METT - HAETTEERETHRES R
A SFREERERY  BENEFAR
REAZBEIEBRRETE  RE
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—EREE-RUAERTHE
Talents who have been engaged
in a certain job field

_ BE—EHAL
Single-field
talents
RSV EE
By job field BEEIAS

Compound talents

REBMER A LR EHTHEHAT
Talents who have been engaged
in two or more job fields

EEAL

Management talents

BEEEERY  HEEREZRENAL
Talents who are engaged in
management positions and develop
along the management channels

BAABRBE

) = A o=
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—| development rofessional talents
channel

‘—4 BYD ELECTRONIC (INTERNATIONAL) COMPANY LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2022 Z.

NEFXERFUTH  HEXEE
BREOAT

Talents who are engaged in
professional positions and develop
along professional channels




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPOR
R HERER®ME

With the increasing number of technical talents within the Group,
and in order to meet the development needs of talents in different
technical fields within the Group, the Group has established five
technical committees in the areas of materials, machinery, electronics,
software and chemicals in 2022 to further standardize and subdivide
the original career development channels for technical talents, and
set corresponding promotion standards for talents in corresponding
technical fields. By the end of 2022, a total of 622 technical talents
have passed the evaluation of the committees in their own technical
fields and obtained corresponding technical titles.

Bl e TH

£E8 ! / £ZES
Mechanical I ' Chemical
Technology \\ // Technology
Committee Committee

BB

£E® / ZE88

Software ! Electronic
Technology /I Technology
Committee Committee
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TURNOVER RATE

The Group encourages the internal competition mechanism to
stimulate the vitality of the organization, realize the benign flow and
optimization of internal talents, and eliminate employees whose
personal ability and work performance are not competent for the
job requirements, thus promoting prosperous development of
organization. At the same time, we implemented a sound salary and
welfare system and employee care strategy, vigorously carried out
the management and control of turnover rate, and actively improved
employees’ benefits and working environment, with a view to avoiding
and reducing the vicious loss of employees. As of 31 December 2022,
the annual turnover rate* of employees in the Group in 2022 was
5.92%. The annual turnover rates of employees by category are shown
in the table below:

Turnover Rate in 2022

TR _FEBER
Category Employee Structure
il BETIHB
Gender Male
M5 S
Female
g
Age group <30 years old
FhER <305%
31-50 years old
31-505%
> 50 years old
> 505%
Level Senior management
[E SEEREAE
Middle management
FEEEAE
Grass-root management
RAEET
Work location Domestic
TEHb B BN
Overseas
AN

The annual turnover rate is the average value of the monthly statistical
turnover rate, and the annual turnover rate of employees of different
categories is the average value of the monthly statistical turnover rate of
employees of different categories

*  The turnover rate of employees of each category = number of employees
of each category leaving the company/(number of employees on their post
+ number of employees of each category leaving the company)

*  The turnover rate shall be correct to two decimal places by rounding off
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Employee Turnover Rate
BIRAE

3.99%

2.09%

3.86%

2.22%

0.01%

0.00%

0.12%

5.76%

5.92%

0.01%
YOFEBRBEAE AERA R EGE -
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HEG BB ESE
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A B+ B IR R BB A B0

Y BEBLRGRE/ BB



SALARY AND BENEFITS

The Group adheres to the employment concept of “attracting
employees by salary, retaining employees by welfare and creating
employees by career”, and practices a perfect salary and welfare
system.

The Group has a perfect salary and performance system. The Group
determines the amount of monthly performance bonus of employees
according to the overall income of the department, employees’
performance, employees’ morals and attitude, employees’ level, etc. At
the same time, in order to ensure sufficient return for employees, the
Group adjusts the basic salary of employees every year according to
the income of the previous year. In addition, to incentive its employees,
the Group has set up a special reward program which collects, on
a monthly basis, the list of employees with excellent performance
and special contributions submitted by all departments, and gives
additional performance rewards to the nominated employees in
accordance with the Management Rules for Reward. In addition, the
Group has also set up reward programs such as the President Award,
Technology Innovation Award and Outstanding Employee Award,
which together constitutes the employee reward and incentive system
of the Group.

o)

Technology
President Innovation
Award ofé Award o
mEE E?ﬁ
Patent R
\ﬁ Award o\ﬁ
==

\——o—

Reward System of BYD Electronic
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CHERE

BRE

In addition to the perfect salary system, the Group has also EEENHMER 2 - E@iﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%—
implemented a comprehensive welfare system for employees covering EREZEBEIX R -F 17 -BF - %
clothing, food, housing, transportation, medical treatment, education, 5 HER&EES Fﬁﬁ’ﬂmﬂ BR-

daily entertainment and so on.

Clothing

r©
Food

AN

R
Housing

*
Transportation

17
Medical Treatment

B
Education

#E

Entertainment

RE%
Activity Funds
EEEE

COMMUNICATION CHANNELS

The Group adheres to the people-oriented human resources concept.
While paying attention to the salary and benefits of employees, the
Group also lays emphasis on building and maintaining communication

Employees will be provided with winter and summer work clothes when they are employed, and the
clothes will be replaced regularly for free

ABRRETERLEMELIXR  WEHLEFKR

Staff canteens are set up in the park. There are Western food, Cantonese cuisine, Hunan cuisine and
other cuisines, which are high-quality and inexpensive

BeARKBRIRE FRERE B MESEXFR WEER

The Company provides free dormitories and free WIFI, and offers preferential benefits for house
purchase for internal employees

RESEERBESNR2BWF - WABEIRENTEIEEESEN

Employees are free of down payment when purchasing cars, parking and charging are free during the
park and those having new energy vehicles are provided with transportation subsidies
ETREEREMNMEE  BRERASEBFEERE - S REE FRHEHMER

Employees can join the Company’s healthcare fund on a voluntary basis when they are employed, and
sick employees can be reimbursed for self-paid expenses through the healthcare fund

BT ABAEREMASRERES  BREIVRABEEASWMIEENER

Employees have the priority to have their children be enrolled in Yadi School and Yadi Kindergarten
based on their points

BIARBOEFRELARBERE T @Y ZE

The park has basketball courts, badminton courts, volleyball courts and other sports fields and sports
facilities

BRALENS - PEMS - S ERSMNESR

The Company grants to each department the special aotmty funds for team building activities
NEBPIREN - ERFIREHRKERNEREZREE

EEFEAUABENANERES - €4
FETHNEANFBNER  £SEIER
BRGEABHEETIMNERRE -HBEL
ERiE)
BF

channels between the organization and employees. We encourage BRELREAEREBCHFHFR
employees to reasonably express their demands via these channels BBRBEETETESNEATR
and provide mutually acceptable solutions through communication and HEMPBUEARERIRE -

negotiation, to jointly build an open and transparent communication

environment.

Employees can report demands or make suggestions to or ask for
consultations from the general manager, HR department, etc. through
online channels such as the complaint hotline, the general manager’s
mailbox, the HR face-to-face online consultation platform, the

BT REBERFREAG - BEIEEMA - HR
YR EHATES - %%%WD N
%%@?téﬁ%ﬁﬂé@?&ﬁ - HRESFIE R 87
Tk~ R EESETTER -

e-Lufanghua WeChat official account.
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At the same time, the Group has set up offline employee reception
rooms, and appointed ad hoc persons for complaint handling to
receive the employees in real time, listen to their voices, and address
their concerns. The Group regularly carries out HR face-to-face
reception activities. Leaders of employment departments and HR
communicate with employees face-to-face to listen to the most
authentic voices of the employees and help them solve problems. We
adhere to the principle of “Every Voice Matters” (EVM) and try not to
ignore the voice of any employee.
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EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

In order to improve the mental health of its employees and promote
the healthy development of the organization, the Group has launched
the Employee Assistance Program (EAP) with the theme of “Inspiring
Potential and Living a Happy Life” in the first half of 2022. The EAP
aims to popularize knowledge about mental health among employees
and improve their mental health through multiple publicity activities and
channels, as well as to provide psychological consultation and crisis
intervention services to solve employees’ psychological problems and
distress, so as to improve their mental health. The Group improves
the physical and mental health of its employees while promoting their
efficiency, so that every employee of BYD Electronic can “inspire
potential and live a happy life”.
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The Group provides psychological consultation services for
employees. Consultants are regularly invited to the industrial park to
provide psychological assistance to our employees. In addition, for
the convenience of more employees, the Group provides an online
psychological counseling platform for employees, which allows them
to make online appointments at any time.
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In order to better popularize knowledge about mental health and
improve the mental health of employees, the Group has created an
“EAP Ambassador Team” to identify abnormal emotions of employees
in a timely manner and provide basic and timely psychological help
and intervention for employees.
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The Group invites senior psychological lecturers to hold large lectures SETTHAFEROIEEBMBHAAE
from time to time, which cover topics that employees care about, B EBMERTHE  BEEER - B
such as parent-child education, marital relationships, and workplace BREETBEVNTE -RABEATHE
relationships. At the same time, the propaganda posters about mental FLIBEEMESTEGSR  BEEHHE - D
health knowledge are regularly updated every month and publicized TEEEFTNETEE -

through emails and official accounts.
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ENTERTAINMENT AND WELFARE

The Group always puts employees first, continues to increase
investment in employees’ spiritual wellbeing, improves employee
entertainment facilities, and continuously enriches leisure activities for
employees. In 2022, the Group held more than 20 cultural and sports
activities to provide a broad development platform for employees and
enhance their sense of wellbeing and satisfaction, which significantly
increased their satisfaction with the Company and enabled them to
identify themselves with, take root in and contribute to the Company.

During the period, the Group held a total of three music festivals in
Changsha Wangcheng District, Shenzhen Baolong Street and Huizhou
City. To provide employees with a stage to show themselves, all cast
members were local employees of the Group. Watched by thousands
of employees, each performance provided not only pop songs and
hot dances, but also abundant interactive activities, which increased
the employees’ participation while maintaining ornamental qualities,
perfectly demonstrating our employees’ supreme love for music and
singing for a beautiful life. From August to October 2022, the Group
held the audition, semi-final and final of the fifth “Voice of BYD” Singer
Contest. “Voice of BYD “ event held this year opened a special online
competition channel, providing BYD Electronic staff around the world
who love singing with an opportunity to show themselves, in order to
project the “Champion Singer” for BYD Electronic.
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The Group attaches great importance to the simultaneous
development of its employees’ physical and mental health, and
provides reading and fitness facilities in office and living areas for them
to use. The Group also organizes offline activities from time to time to
enrich the lives of employees.
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To practice the concept of “ignite the faith in your heart with running
and shouting, and win the final victory with cooperation and unity”, the
Group celebrated its seventh anniversary with a fun sports event for
the first time in the park on 20 May. Nearly 1,000 people participated
in the team-based games, and a number of fun games were held,
including a hundred people drumming together, fruit fight and curling
clash. The ranking list of the competition and the football field were
where BYD Electronic staff perfectly interpreted their spirit of forging
ahead with fortitude and courage to take the lead.
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To enrich the spare time life of employees and promote team
cohesion, the Group held “Lean Cup” ball games during the Year,
including basketball games, badminton games, and football games.
The grassroots employees vigorously signed up, and the senior
management actively participated. The players on the field worked
together to fight for victory, and the cheerleaders shouted and cheered
endlessly off the field, fully reflecting the competitive spirit of “learning
from each other, helping each other and surpassing each other” of
BYD Electronic staff.
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On the eve of the Mid-Autumn Festival, the Group distributed “Full
Moon in E-Hometown” mooncake gift boxes to all employees (covering
more than 100,000 people), integrating deep care into mooncakes,
so that employees can truly feel the warmth of home in the Group and
their well-being is growing.

On the eve of the New Year’s Day, the Group distributed gift packs of
“Ten thousand rabbits sending best wishes”, “To realize your ambitions
in the Year of the Rabbit” and “E-Letter to family” to employees
(covering more than 100,000 people). The Group customized rich
cultural and creative supplies to root the corporate culture in the work
and life of employees, and customized gift packs of grain, oil and nuts
to thank employees for their hard work in the past year and send BYD
Electronic’s good wishes for the new year.
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group firmly believes that it is obliged to protect the health and
safety of its employees, including each employee of the Group and
everyone involved in the Group’s business operations. Therefore,
the Group adheres to the concept of safe development, implements
the “Three-year Action Plan for Special Improvement in National
Production Safety” of the Work Safety Committee of the State Council,
fulfills its responsibility as a safe production entity, duly implements
work safety standardization initiatives, strengthens production safety
publicity and education, potential safety hazard investigation and
management, occupational health protection and supervision of
employees taking up posts, standardizes third-party management,
improves and perfects various safety precautions, and creates and
improves conditions and the environment for safe production and
operation.

COMPLIANCE WITH OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND
SAFETY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

Based on the 1ISO45001:2018 Occupational Health and Safety
Management System — Requirements and by learning from and
analyzing the management models of excellent enterprises, the
Group has finalized its management policy and objectives in ensuring
the occupational health and safety of staff; it has also developed
a range of standards and management procedures as well as an
integrated occupational health and safety management system so
that well-defined rules are laid down for everyone to follow, and
everyone can shoulder their own responsibilities. In January 2007,
the Company obtained the OHSAS18001:2007 certification; in
2019, the Company obtained the 1SO45001:2014 certification; and
in October 2022, the Company was monitored and approved by the
ISO45001 and ISO14001 systems. In order to evaluate and verify the
EHS Management System’s continuous compliance with relevant
standards and requirements, the Company conducts internal audits
on its environmental and occupational health and safety management
system on every quarter.

DEFINING THE SAFETY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTION

Systematic management: Manage through 5 dimensions and 20
management elements with the PDCA management mode. The
management capability and efficiency are improved through the
established safety environment management system. Internal audit is
implemented quarterly on the environmental and occupational health
and safety management system.
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Safety strategy planning: Determine the safety development direction
and goals of the Group in 3 to 5 years based on the status of the
Group and following the Group’s safety development strategy model;
determine the medium — and long-term safety development blueprint
and quantitative indicators, while working out an annual implementation
schedule for each task and following up the implementation.

Building a safety-oriented culture: Implement the Group’s safety
policy, philosophy, mission, vision, and principles; determine the
annual safety and environmental management implementation plan for
the Group based on the Group’s core values of safety (responsibility,
competence, prevention, and implementation).

STRENGTHENING RISK IDENTIFICATION AND
HIERARCHICAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL

The Group has, according to the annual occurrence of internal and
external accidents, new major hidden dangers, process/equipment
changes, updated the hazard identification list, analyzed the potential
failure mode, consequence and potential failure mechanism of
the hazard, evaluated whether the existing measures meet the
requirements of risk control, and formulated effective risk control
measures.

The Group has enhanced on-site safety management. For all the high-
risk operations (fire, limited space, climbing, hoisting, circuit breaking,
ground breaking, etc.), relevant work permits must be obtained, and a
strict ticket management system shall be implemented to ensure the
operation safety. For all the high-risk operations, clear procedures shall
be established, strict control shall be implemented, tight prevention
shall be ensured, clear responsibilities shall be defined, and relevant
measures shall be implemented, forbidding formalism or going through
the motions, and conducting without prior approval, or blind and
reckless risky operations. We shall continue to implement emergency
supplies for high-risk operations, make reasonable work arrangement,
and enhance the management of cross-regional operation, cross
operation and job change periods.

We shall strictly implement the construction access of external units,
safety and environmental agreement signing, safety training and safety
management in the process of construction. We shall implement the
system where the construction unit undertakes full responsibility and
the competent business department manages the whole process,
and carried out safety and environmental supervision. Stiffer penalties
shall be imposed to promote the code of conduct management for
production and construction safety.
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All kinds of safety inspection activities, such as daily inspection,
inspection led by factory manager and holiday inspection, are
organized and carried out. Greater efforts are made in the education
of and punishment for those who are involved in “Three Violations”
(“command in violation of rules, operate in violation of rules, and
violation of labor discipline”). The predictability of production safety
management is increased, and preventive measures are taken in
advance to eliminate possible accidents (problems) in the bud.

Further efforts are made in EHS review for change. The risk review for
change is carried out according to the system to identify risks in time
and incorporate them into management and control. Moreover, more
training and publicity activities are carried out for production, process,
equipment and project departments to improve their awareness of
safety and environmental risks and ensure the implementation of risk
review for change, and to keep change risks under control.

The business divisions and the factories continue to carry out EHS
management review and EHS internal audit to fulfill their management
commitments and keep the system in compliance and effective
operation.

STRENGTHENING ACCIDENT MANAGEMENT TO AVOID
REPEATED ACCIDENTS

The accident reporting system is strictly implemented, and
concealment, false reporting, omission and delay reporting are
prohibited. The principle of “identifying causes, punishing persons held
liable, implementing rectification measures and educating relevant
personnel” is followed in accident handling. Relevant responsible
personnel will be pursued for liability, especially those managers
and persons-in-charge who do not conscientiously perform their
production safety responsibilities. We require that managers at all
levels earnestly perform their duties of production safety, increase
their responsibility consciousness, and strengthen the prevention and
management of production safety accidents.
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There were no work-related death accidents from 2020 to 2022,
and the number of days lost due to work-related injuries in 2022 was
670 (the injury rate per thousand people was 0.15%). Interviews are
held with units that are responsible for general or serious accidents,
and accidents (problems) are dealt with by drawing inferences from
other facts, so as to expand the scope of education and rectification.
Accidents should be handled in a “factual, detailed and strict” manner.
“Factual” means to seek truth from facts and to be based on facts
rather than practice fraud or act rashly. “Detailed” means to be
careful and meticulous without missing any clues or letting go of any
suspicious signs. “Strict” means to impose strict punishments on those
held responsible for the accidents without appeasement or perfunctory
treatment. When pursuing liability for some accidents, it is necessary
to sort out the cause-and-effect relationship and take into account
related factors, so as to further enhance the sense of responsibility of
the relevant personnel.

In view of the accident risks that exist in all factories, we issued the
Notice on Regulating the Safety Management of the Use of Manual
Forklifts and Cart Tools and implemented management to prevent the
occurrence of similar accidents.

The scope of accident handling not only covers grade-level accidents
but also restricted work incidents and medical and first-aid kit
incidents. In case of an attempted accident, it is required to analyze
the causes of the problem in strict accordance with accident handling
procedures. The “Near-misses Reporting” system has been developed
to proactively improve hazards and reduce safety and environmental
risks to prevent the occurrence of accidents.

INTRINSICALLY IMPROVING SAFE STANDARDS
THROUGH TECHNOLOGICAL PROGRESS AND
INNOVATION

We shall, through technological progress and innovation, further
summarize the successful technology and transformation experience
of safe production within and outside the Group, eliminate or
reduce the source of danger as much as possible, and promote
the essential improvement or upgrading of the safety of high-risk
workplaces, equipment and facilities, and dangerous processes by
promoting automation and mechanization to reduce the occurrence of
mechanical injury accidents, strengthening the safety management of
hazardous chemicals storage and use sites, and further improving the
monitoring measures of key hazardous sources. We shall eliminate the
potential safety hazards such as aging infrastructure and insufficient
supporting construction of safety facilities, install eye-catching safety
signs, and strengthen safety checks before the construction and
operation of new infrastructure projects.
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We shall strengthen the inspection, supervision and management
of special equipment (boilers, pressure vessels, pressure pipes,
lifting machinery, etc.) and its safety accessories on schedule. The
equipment with defects should be disabled or downgraded for use
under supervision in time, and the maintenance work should be carried
out in a planned way.

For safety protection devices, safety accessories, fire-fighting
equipment and emergency treatment equipment for accidents, it
is necessary to appoint ad hoc personnel for management and
maintenance. These devices, accessories and equipment are
examined and replaced on a regular basis to ensure that they are
intact, are working properly and are readily available. The signing of
the Scheme for Management and Control of Repair, Commissioning
and Maintenance by Equipment Technicians and matters related to
the Safety Commitment for Equipment Technicians are underway.

We shall continue to carry out safety and environment assessment
of equipment and facilities, including newly purchased, self-made,
leased and customer supplied equipment and facilities, on the basis
of system. We shall strictly implement the principle that the unqualified
assessed equipment shall not be put into use.

CARRYING OUT THE PROGRAM OF “SAFETY OFFICERS
ARE BUILT ON TEAMS” DEEPLY, AND LAYING A SOLID
FOUNDATION FOR TEAM SAFETY

The team is the grass-roots organization of the Company. It is the
foundation of strengthening enterprise management and ensuring
safe production, and also the final foothold of enterprise safety
management. A large number of facts show that more than 90% of
the accidents occurred in the teams. Therefore, the team is the main
battlefield of the Group’s safety management. The Group shall focus
its energy and efforts on the team safety management. Strengthening
team safety is the key to strengthen production safety management,
and is also the most practical and effective way to reduce casualties
and all kinds of disasters and accidents.

We shall deeply implement the program of “safety officers are built
on teams”, carry out overall and thorough safety management, and
constantly consolidate the foundation of grass-roots management.
Each team leader is responsible for keeping and learning the team
safety management ledger. We shall strengthen the safety awareness
and hidden danger identification ability of the team leader, and carry
out the daily safety management of the team according to the ledger
manual.
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Dual certification of safety training ability is implemented for the
team leader. Compulsory courses: “Safety and Environmental
Protection” Credits and Special Training for Safety Management Ability
Improvement of Team Leader, the team leader can only operate at his/
her position after passing the exam. In order to clarify the identity of
the team leader, the team leader shall wear the “team security officer
armband”.

Focus should be on the safety management and control of equipment
operators, technicians, porters and other supporting personnel, as well
as on raising their risk awareness and imposing standardized operation
requirements.

ENSURING OCCUPATIONAL DISEASE PREVENTION AND
LABOR PROTECTION FOR EMPLOYEES

The Group conscientiously implements the Law on the Prevention
and Control of Occupational Diseases to strengthen the prevention
and control of occupational diseases. It improves the occupational
disease prevention and management system construction and file
construction. It carries out occupational disease assessment and
safety assessment, occupational disease prevention facility design and
safety facility design, occupational disease control effect evaluation
and safety acceptance evaluation for the new, expanded, reformed
and relocated construction projects to ensure that the program meets
the requirements of the work safety regulations.

It keeps monitoring various dust and poison monitoring points on a
regular basis. It works to put an end to the phenomena of gas release,
water spraying, dropping liquid, and liquid leakage. It enhances the
construction of occupational health protection facilities, to see that
dust and poison monitoring points are up to standard.

It reinforces the management of labor insurance supplies. It
establishes a standard for allocating labor insurance supplies level by
level, strengthens the inspection and management of incoming labor
insurance supplies, and supervises and guides employees to wear and
use labor insurance supplies as required.
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It organizes employees to participate in before-post, at-post and after-
post occupational health inspections systematically. Employees at all
levels shall timely report the demand of occupational health inspections
to their superior management department. It guards employees with
abnormalities, and puts into effect the regulations concerning injury
insurance for all employees. It focuses on improving the off-job medical
examination rate of resigned personnel to reduce occupational health
risks.

It continues to promote the establishment and perfection of
occupational health surveillance archives for employees taking up
poisonous and hazardous posts, and standardizes the management of
occupational health surveillance archives.

STRENGTHENING THE CULTIVATION OF SAFETY
AWARENESS AND SAFETY SKILLS TRAINING FOR ALL
EMPLOYEES, AND CREATING A SAFETY CULTURE
ATMOSPHERE

Each department implements safety education according to the needs
of personnel in different categories and at different levels and positions.
Each workshop shall describe and prepare the position hazard
factors, occupational hazard factors, and operating procedures, and
provide training and education on protection knowledge, by taking into
account their own actual production situation and giving prominence
to the key points. This aims to make employees more aware of safety
and standardize their operations.

The three-level education rate for new employees (including contracted
labor, staff of lease contractors, hourly workers, summer and winter
part-timers and interns) must be 100%. The online video training is
adopted to increase the fun and practicality, and effectively improve
the safety awareness of employees. Those who have not been
educated and those who fail the exam are forbidden to operate at
their positions. The training and education program regarding safety
technology for personnel engaged in special types of work (electricians,
welders, climbing operations, pressure vessels, hazardous chemicals,
etc.) and those at other key positions must be carried out in strict
accordance with industry requirements and relevant national laws
and regulations. Those who have passed the education and training
program provided by a qualified department must hold relevant
certificates before operating at position.
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Regular on-the-job training and education programs regarding
safety and environment ensure employees to master corresponding
knowledge and technology, and turn themselves from “being required
to be safe” into “wanting to be safe”. Just as a saying goes “let
every tub stand on its own bottom”, every employee farms his own
“contracted land” well, “not hurting himself or others, or being hurt by
others”.

Work has been done to enrich the safety knowledge of safety
management personnel at all levels and provide safety knowledge
training for them, with the focus on refreshing their management
concepts, updating professional knowledge, and managing and
controlling key risks. Continuing education is provided for safety
management personnel annually, to strengthen their understanding of
new regulations, standards, and safety management requirements.

The Notice on Implementing the Requirements for the Three-
level Training Program on Safety Production for New Employees is
implemented. Operators as well as workers of process, mechanical
and electrical, and quality divisions that work on posts with medium
risks (inclusive) and above must be assessed for practical operation.
The team leaders of each department shall be in charge of the
assessment of their own team members. The safety and environmental
protection department of the Business Division conducts random
inspections on the three-level training on safety production in the
factory and reports on the implementation of practical operation
assessment for new employees. Personnel on secondment
from different business groups need to re-accept the three-level
training program before they can take up their posts. Personnel on
secondment within business groups need to re-accept the team-level
training of the three-level training program before they can take up
their posts.

A safety training quality traceability mechanism is enforced strictly,
under which relevant departments and personnel will be pursued for
liability if relevant training program is not implemented or contents of
the training is not qualified. In case of any kind of safety production
accident, an investigation will be conducted to see whether safety
production training program has been implemented.

Themed activities such as “Safe Environment Month” and “119 Fire
Protection Month” are organized. Through various safety knowledge
contests and publicity and educational activities, we increased
employees’ consciousness of observing labor discipline, process
discipline, safety discipline and environmental protection discipline
and improving their operation skills. Furthermore, we sum up and
propagate advanced experience in safety production to ensure the
long-term safe operation of the enterprise.
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IMPROVE EMERGENCY RESPONSE AND RESCUE
CAPABILITIES

Targeted emergency rescue drills for accidents are organized. The
Business Division formulates annual emergency drill plans and follows
up their implementation to improve the emergency response and self-
rescue capabilities of organizations and personnel at all levels.

The Group intensifies the automatic monitoring of gas in flammable
and explosive places and the interlocking of emergency ventilation
facilities. It strengthens the provision of on-site emergency supplies,
such as sprinklers, eye washers, first-aid kits, oxygen (air) breathing
apparatuses, and other emergency devices, and ensures they are
readily available.

[t continuously strengthens the training for emergency teams at each
plant of the Group in the manner of special emergency drills, and
improves the level of emergency response. This aims to achieve early
detection and control of accidents at the initial stage, prevent the
spread of the impact of the accident, and improve the emergency plan
file system.

It standardizes and improves visual safety management by setting up
safety risk bulletin boards, notification cards and emergency response
cards regarding positions risks, occupational hazard notification
cards, and safety signs in prominent locations and areas of key risk
workplaces. In this way, employees are informed of the particulars
of safety risks of the workplaces and positions and prevention and
emergency measures.

Dressing in place
[ & 5%

Wearing an air breathing
apparatus in place
SR 0t i 380 2 SR U 2
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100-meter fire extinguishing

1005 A

Scene of skill training for volunteer firefighters
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STRENGTHEN TARGET ASSESSMENT MANAGEMENT
AND IMPLEMENT SAFETY RESPONSIBILITIES

We further perfect the target responsibility system management for
safety production. In addition, we improve the responsibility system,
seriously implement the safety production responsibility of each
post, and sign the safety production responsibility letter at every level
through the establishment of the safety production responsibility letter
for each post.

The Business Division has established an EHS management
department, which is equipped with full-time safety and environmental
management personnel who have passed the training and examination
and have professional EHS knowledge. Part-time safety and
environmental management personnel are designated for workshops
and teams, and corresponding appointment letters are signed
according to the assignment of duties to clarify responsibilities.

The management of accidents and incidents is strengthened via
drawing inferences about accidents to prevent the recurrence of
similar accidents. All kinds of accidents for production responsibility
should be strictly investigated for accountability.

Factories with prominent safety problems are blacklisted for special
governance according to the Group’s blacklist management system.
The person in charge of the factory is interviewed and warned, and
the relevant factory is listed as a key governance object. Factories with
accidents and poor safety production management are interviewed to
strengthen their awareness of primary responsibility and improve their
safety production management.

Safety and integrity files are established, and safety commitments are
carried out level by level. The leaders of each unit should make public
safety commitments to the employees, and the employees should
sign the safety commitments before the shift. In addition, we improve
the assessment and evaluation of safety and integrity level by level,
and promptly notify and give early warning to all units and individuals
that fail to fulfill their safety commitments or report false information.
With the established safety and integrity files, the personnel involving
serious “Three Violations” and repeated violations of the rules should
be included in the individual annual safety and integrity file. Emphasis
should be put on regulating substandard units, which should accept
external supervision, and actively accept the supervision of local
safety supervision departments to build a safe and honest external
environment.
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The Group continues to strengthen the safety and environmental SEHBENARESTIHRNLREZNE -
protection assessment of all factories, treats hidden dangers as BREENFASRESF  BEREEM
accidents, strengthens building of the system for eliminating hidden REEBENEBRER EEEEZAANT
dangers and controlling hidden dangers, encourages self-inspection TR - MEIBEEFHITEE BN
and self-correction, and develops the “immediate hidden danger shot” ERGRE - BEETHLESY  BFE
function to identify on-site hidden dangers in real time. The evaluation HEFEE REEITREEE -

activities are carried out continuously, and outstanding projects and
units are commended and rewarded every year.

Group photo at the summary and awarding ceremony for
2022 annual safety and environmental management
TR CFERERBERIFBERREY
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group attaches great importance to the learning and development
of every employee and is committed to exploring the potential of
employees. Adhering to the talent training concept of “people before
products”, the Group encourages its employees to learn and improve
themselves in their spare time. The Group provides employees with
career planning, special training, education promotion, skill training
and other training contents through a variety of learning channels,
such as experience exchange meetings, online learning platforms,
and lectures by famous teachers to meet the different development
needs of employees at different levels. For new employees, the Group
develops the “mentor-mentee system” and “teaching and mentoring”
system to help them quickly integrate into the enterprise and adapt to
the new environment and new work.

In order to better cultivate middle and senior management
backbones who are adaptable to the development of the times and
the development needs of the Group, select excellent talents with
good performance and strong development intention, the Group has
developed the “531 Plan” based on the original Tenglong Project and
Qingyun Project in 2022, which aim at identifying more potential talents
to escort the construction of talent echelon in the Group.

0-1= 13

3 - 5 years
F

TN
N

HERE

H
=

BRRIEI

SERAGERT MNEINSETHER -

BAORBWE I ER - RR[EYRE

ABATEERS  SBHEEEIAET

WZ%%%%%QEO%E%@N?XM
CHBEBETE  BHMIRREREZE

FJE 8 MEEETRHBERS X
A - BEE - R FE2
BAR mETRAEBEREIMNRNERT

ko IRFEE T - KEEITIADRESI A
F@%’MJ%HF EPmES TRERAL
X EREREE TIE

ARENMESEERRERNEERRES
WP RETESTR  BRBRITEMRE
WAEZEREENESALS  ZF 2=
FoEREMNERETS  FEFT 8 AR
£ EEFETI531518]) o ZREA
BENEFAT  AEEASBBEZR
B -

P

Adaptation period qduction period\ Development period Mature period

Help new employees
integrate into the
Company immediately
and make them

LN
Identify and retain
talents, which make

talents available in
the department, so

BRB

Accelerate the
development of
talents, organize
practices simulating

B

The direction of
talent development
is to have a
pro-communist

recognize our that talent have a conditions in mindset along with

corporate culture and ~ (====(2) role to play @=—(:) real-world operations, ()= Professional skill,

corporate values SR A A BEA so as to cultivate deep-cultivating

B EDHF AR BA X ZEE [BA “compound” talents SRR e
£ EERy AU BAT MEATBRE et

CREEEES [ERR 2 [ABRIREL] - 33 AFBEF AR

B [1BAE] AT BE ST

PR ER - w58
X E RN

o\

—

'—x 2022 3R o LEBE T (BB BR AR



e

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R - HEBRERBBSE

In 2022, the Group organized a total of more than 140,000 training
sessions in industrial parks across the country, covering more than 20
kinds of training contents including safety and environment, finance, legal
affairs and personnel system management. The Group has accumulatively
organized more than 630,000 hours of training involving a total of 3.22
million participants, with an average of 32 training sessions per person per
year.

ZEFE SEEZBESHMIERH
MHBEI4BERE RN RELZRE - UK
HEBE ASHIEERRESE -T2/
BEMNFIANED - RFEZIEIIRREIE
BN BEF 2 ARB228 AR 0 AHE
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Professional
skill job training
BERE
mALEE

Regular training
RS

Education

External training p;?ar?nci):gn
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“People before products”

[EYDIEEAN ]

Middle and
senior personnel
training

BRAT
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Skill training
FaesEdl
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In order to meet the rapid development of the Group and constantly
improve the training system, the targeted, differentiated and
professional all-round training will be conducted according to different
development channels and specialties to improve the working ability
and performance of all employees. Key categories of training in 2022
were:

AmREERERRR  THTZHEIR
% RETFABERNERBE TRAEX
BETHRSHE 2R BRAE2THAE
A RAZEIERE I MBR - — 2 -
FEHBINES

Programs Descriptions Training Achievements
EHH RE IR

High-potential talents Identify high-potential talents through high-potential talent projects, A total of 48 high-potential
training and enhance personal knowledge and skills through high-potential  talents were selected as the
training reserve talents for senior
management
=B A mASEALIER  BRILESEBEAL  BAESEEE  EAEA HEEH4BESEBEATE
B E B REEREBE
Six Sigma training Improve the management and operation level of senior A total of 31 participants
management and reserve talents to achieve cost reduction and with black belts and 34
efficiency enhancement participants with green
belts
AL =E RABENSERBEERELZ KT  BRERIER EWEESE  GHEER
34%
Production management Organize a series of skill training on cost operation and A total of 58 outstanding
talent training camp management, project management, team management and other  backbones were trained
training for key employees of each production department
HEBEEATIIRE HE+EMBFABHRETETRAELERE HAERE EREE HEBAXESFBEH8H
& 25 ae HiEd
Fresh graduates training Organize induction training on corporate culture, workplace A total of 1,016 fresh

communication and other skills for graduates joined us through on- graduates completed the

campus recruitment

induction training with more
than 110 training sessions

in total

JE & & 15 ABBHEE AL - BSBRRTTE ARE FER1,016 B EEARZEA
BEA - ZETFRE11088%
=gl

On-the-job training of Covering production, technology, quality, project management and The number of employees

other suitable posts, new  other training programs
apprentices, and grass-
roots, etc.
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HEEMEE

Bt
HF
e
H
i
B0

CJHBEEEEEIIER

e BYD ELECTRONIC (INTERNATIONAL) COMPANY LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2022 5
———F

is over 90,000, and the
annual total training hours
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Annual Per Capita Class Hours Percentage of Employees
Type (Hour/Person) Participating in Training
bl FEAGRECNEA) ZIEITESL
By employee category
RETEE
Senior staff
SEET 52 2.60%
Middle-level staff
REET 73 11.20%
Grass-root staff
AEEET 153 86.20%

Percentage of
Annual Per Capita Class Hours Employees Participating

(Hour/Person) in Training

FEAGRECNEAN) SIEIAD

By employee gender

B8 IMR

Male

ES 141 62.40%

Female

g 141 37.60%
LABOR CRITERIA BT AR
The Group strictly abides by the labor laws and regulations of SEHESETSEHLEERENR  BE8
various countries, respects employees’ privacy and beliefs, prohibits TRAMEM HEREMERNTFR - &
any discrimination based on age, gender, native place, nationality, E‘J FE Rk BB TH BUREB
customs, religion, political affiliation, etc., as well as any forced labor or SEFEAERS - BRI oRi8 & Bk & HE
disguised forced labor, in order to actively promote local employment ?ﬁ%ﬁ SEIMTTA - BIREE R EMT
and social and economic development. FOEER -
The Group insists on “zero tolerance” attitude towards the employment SEHERBEIRIZARIEE - HETL
of child labor, and the identity information of new employees will be AR EHR AL ESHESHTgER
strictly checked at the time points of entry, interview and employment, *%E%ﬁﬁ%fﬁ F8  WREEN IEREE
so as to prevent the employment of child labor from the source. Once cHIMNBMAEIMBRER - —K%ER 8
the phenomenon of employment of child labor is discovered, the labor F-HHEEERRAEHER - WEHE
contract will be terminated as soon as possible, and the problematic E‘J MIREIRED - MEETHE  BIEEAE
link will be reviewed and rectify in a timely manner to prevent any RRAZEIMRR -

misuse of child labor.

The Group respects employees’ freedom in terms of choice of EEESETNEXEHR  FHEAKE
employment, beliefs and personal privacy. BYD Electronic complies NG - BEBEBBEERER  BE
with relevant labor laws and regulations, strictly forbids seizure of EE?DW B IR K IFY - BEARE
credentials, collection of money or objects as security, surveillance, = REIBABHASEMERNRES
interception, access restrictions or acts of forced labor in any form. V=1

EFEBERIA
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OPERATING PRACTICES
SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

With the aim of “prevention first, combined prevention and control”,
the Group implements comprehensive risk management. The Group
manages suppliers and the procurement process on the basis of a
series of supplier management systems formulated by the Company,
such as the Requirements for Suppliers, the Specific Measures
for Productive Material Suppliers Review, the Specific Measures
for Non-Productive Suppliers Review, and the Supplier Social
Responsibility Management Practices. Such management systems
are updated and optimized annually with new laws and regulations
of international, national, local and industry associations, as well as
the requirements of customers included. The supplier management
systems define the social responsibility requirements for supply chain
partners from the aspects of labor standards, occupational health
and safety, environmental management, trade safety, anti-corruption
and anti-commercial bribery. The Company clarifies in relevant
documents that suppliers shall not purchase conflict minerals. The
same prohibition extends to their lower-tier suppliers, whom will be
investigated by these suppliers. The Group have publicized corporate
social responsibility requirements and the Company’s high attention to
corporate social responsibility to all suppliers through various ways.

BYD Electronic has established the risk management committee
and a procurement taskforce. The procurement taskforce of the
risk committee is responsible for collecting the risk management
information of the supply chain and conducting risk assessment,
setting risk thresholds and devising corresponding countermeasures,
regularly summarizing and analyzing the effectiveness and reasonability
of the existing risk management strategies, and constantly revising
and improving them according to the actual situations. In 2022, the
electronic procurement taskforce identified 6 risks, analyzed the
causes and effects of these risks, and formulated risk strategies and
countermeasures.
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Prevention first
Combined prevention and control
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NUMBER OF SUPPLIERS HEBHE

The Group currently has more than 6,300 suppliers, 50% of which are EEREHERSEGCI00ZR 2T =
located in Southern China, 22% in Eastern China and 27% in other TR EEERHERIG50%  ERM
regions by the end of 2022. In recent years, with the development [222% + EAbHb[R27% o 3TF 2K + BEE ¥
of new businesses, the proportion of suppliers of the Group in other (¥BNHAE  SEEHEcHEEENEE
regions maintains an upward trend. The Group boosts local economic M2 EABE  SERAEXETH
development and increases job opportunities through the industrial A BB R - B INBLEE o

chain.

Eastern China

zamEEt 22%

Y

Southern China
zmwestt D0%

Q Other regions
st 27 Y0
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SELECTION OF SUPPLIERS

Practice of Hiring Suppliers

The Group has always adopted strict labor practice standards, human
rights standards and environmental standards for screening our
suppliers, required suppliers to establish a management system that
meets the requirements of ISO14001, promised to apply and promote
a corporate social responsibility management system that meets the
requirements of SA8000, and abided by the Group’s Corporate Social
Responsibility Clauses in the Cooperation Agreement.

Suppliers are required to ensure that they do not use any form of
forced labor, bonded labor (including debt mortgage) or indentured
labor. They shall not use child labor at any stage of the business
process. They shall treat employees fairly and offer equal pay for
equal work, and do not discriminate against employees because of
race, color, age, gender, ethnicity, religion, belief, etc. Suppliers must
provide employees with a safe, healthy and pollution-free environment
to minimize potential hazards in the workplace.

Suppliers are required to consider the impact on the environment in the
process of product design and production, and implement continuous
improvement programs to deal with these impacts, including replacing
materials, reducing carbon emissions and improving the treatment
and control methods of waste affecting air, water and soil. The raw
materials or products provided by the supplier to the Group must
comply with the national standards and local regulations of the place
where sales are conducted and the Group’s requirements on toxic and
hazardous substances.

SELECTION OF NEW SUPPLIERS

Before introducing new suppliers, the Group will investigate and verify
the supplier’s qualifications and violations of laws and regulations, and
require the supplier to fill in the Corporate Responsibility Questionnaire
of Suppliers. Those who fail to meet the requirements will be rejected.

The Group will also sign the relevant cooperation agreement which
contained CSR provisions with such suppliers before the introduction,
to guide and supervise the suppliers to respect human rights, treat
employees preferentially, and protect the environment.
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The Supplier Audit Form will be used to review whether the supplier
meets the requirements of the Group. The Form features dedicated
modules of “corporate social responsibility”, and “process control
of hazardous substances”, to conduct on-site audit and verification
on the social responsibility management of suppliers and their
downstream supply chains from various aspects like labor and human
rights, environmental protection, and other aspects. The one-vote veto
is provided in multiple provisions.

For materials with HSF requirements, the Group confirms the
compliance of the supplier’'s HSF data at the sample certification
stage, and requires the supplier to submit relevant questionnaires, test
reports, analysis reports, etc. Those who fail to meet the requirements
will not be used.

ROUTINE REVIEW AND EVALUATION OF SUPPLIERS

The Group regularly evaluates and investigates suppliers’ corporate
social responsibility performance and audits suppliers on site by
comparing against CSR provisions of the Suppliers Audit Form. Those
failing the audit will be followed up on the rectification and closure
for the non-conformities to facilitate improvement. Suppliers failing to
rectify to the standard within the given time may be severed from the
Group’s supplier network, depending on the actual situation.
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Among the qualified suppliers, the Group drafts a list based on
the nature of source materials, such as those with high energy
consumption and pollution, like die-casting, casting, PCB, and
electroplating. Suppliers of listed materials will be reviewed as
per BYD Annual Report on Important Performance Indicators of
Environment and Humanities. If the investigation results do not meet
the requirements or the energy consumption of the supplier increases
significantly, the supplier will be asked to implement rectifications, a
process that will be followed up by the Group.

A conflict mineral survey was conducted on suppliers of tantalum, tin,
tungsten and gold materials that are included in products or used in
manufacturing processes. The survey results showed that 3TG used in
the supply chain came from conflict-free mineral smelters recognized
by CFSI.

For materials that have HSF requirements, the HSF compliance of the
materials is confirmed during incoming inspection. After change or
expiration of HSF data, the supplier is required to provide HSF data
again.

The Group regularly inquires about its suppliers on the government
website, to check whether any of its suppliers is included in the
government’s blacklist, or there are violations. If any, the Group will
require the supplier to rectify in time. If the rectification does not meet
the requirements, the Group will stop its cooperation.

SUPPLY CHAIN PLATFORM

Practicing the three guidelines of fairness, transparency (with
traceability) and competition

In 2022, BYD released the “BYD Procurement Iron Law”, fully
publicized to its internal staff and suppliers, and conveyed its
determination to build a new procurement system. BYD will practice
the procurement guidelines of fairness, transparency (with traceability)
and competition with suppliers, and work together to create a clean
and open business environment.
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To strengthen the supervision and management of the entire
procurement process, a procurement supervision department has
been set up to conduct full inspection of purchase orders and
comprehensive supervision of procurement operations. The Group
posts complaint and supervision signs at various meeting rooms,
production bases and freight station and publicized various complaint
and supervision channels such as the complaint and supervision
hotline and mailbox, and WeChat official account. The Group accepts
the supervision and reporting of all parties, and grants rewards for the
verified supervision and reporting based on the system. All violations
of the sunshine procurement policy will be severely punished upon
verification, to build a procurement environment with fairness and
transparency.

To reinforce competitive procurement and expand channels to
attract high quality suppliers, the “Electronic Business Procurement
Committee” has been established by BYD Electronic to make
decisions on the entry and exit of suppliers. The guidelines of fairness
and transparency have been practiced in supplier management. The
Group’s bidding center was established to strictly implement the
procurement method based on bidding, supplemented by competitive
bidding and careful use of bargaining. Through a fair and transparent
supply chain platform, eligible suppliers are invited to participate in the
competition and suppliers are selected in strict accordance with the
competition results.

Fairness Transparency
AT (with traceability)
ZH(BR)
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Green procurement

In terms of supply chain and raw materials, the Group always adheres
to green procurement, establishes a sound green procurement
system of “green suppliers and green raw materials”, and standardizes
various environmental management in procurement, to ensure that
every purchased component and part meets the green environmental
requirements.

Green logistics: the Group is committed to providing more
environmental-friendly modes of transportation. For example: we are
actively promoting low-carbon marine transportation and new energy
vehicle road transportation to reduce air pollution. The low-carbon
marine transportation reduces carbon dioxide emissions by using new
carbon neutral fuels (such as methanol) instead of fossil fuels.

Green packaging: the Group actively promotes the recycling of
logistics packaging boxes. For example, during the transportation of
the products, the Group has used the recyclable blister boxes with
a service life cycle of more than 3 years, greatly reducing resource
consumption.

Share the same breath
BN

PRODUCT LIABILITY

The Group strictly abides by national laws and regulations such as
the Civil Code, Product Quality Law, Standardization Law, Metrology
Law and Consumer Protection Law. BYD strictly enforces the product
standards to firmly establish the idea of “quality first”, continuously
raises the awareness of quality and social responsibility, ensures and
improves product quality, fulfills the enterprise’s subject responsibility
for quality, to meet customer expectations and demand for high-quality
products and enhance consuming confidence of customers. The
100% customer satisfaction is the goal that BYD will always pursue.
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PRODUCT QUALITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

Based on ISO9001, IATF 16949, ISO/TS 22163, China Compulsory
Certification (CCC) rules/specifications, and environmental labelling
guidelines, the Group has established a reliable and comprehensive
document management system and a quality management star
rating system model driven by the philosophy of “compare, support,
compete, exceed”, rating the quality control of factories on system,
processing and product dimensions.

The Group conducts regular evaluations on the quality management
system on weekly, monthly, half-yearly and other basis, the criteria of
which are quality management standards and customer management
system standards. The quality management level of the Group has
been praised and recognized by domestic and international customers.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT QUALITY CONTROL

Each business unit has established a new product management
program, adopted the PLM management system and established
documents on the “New Product Introduction Management
Procedure” for consumer electronics products. The research and
development quality of products are ensured through relevant
procedures established for early concept, project proposal, proofing,
trial production and mass production transfer as well as material
development and product changes. When participating in new
projects/early development of products of customers, suppliers are
also invited to participate in early product development to ensure
quality meets customer needs and early identification to avoid later
changes.

For automotive vehicle parts products, we are also motivating and
regulating the quality control after mass production of various types
of parts through PPAP rating to ensure that raw materials and
components necessary for the production of parts continue to meet
the requirements of product design and mass production. During the
process, we identify risks through the application of FMEA, constantly
summarize experience, carry out self-examination and self-correction,
focus on the yield rate of new products, and further improve the
consistency of manufacturing process and product suitability.
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PROCESSING QUALITY CONTROL

Process-oriented, multi-staged control

The principle of quality control is in-depth understanding of
mechanisms, systematic planning, thorough execution, full
accountability, company-wide participation, fast response, closed loop
management, and positive cycle. Employees are encouraged to report
potential issues, replay failure, and counter unknown risks through trial
and error. The Company is pushing forward automated manufacturing
with the utilization of SPC and MSA tools and error proofing means,
with the objective of delicate manufacturing facility management,
intelligent on-site quality control, legal compliance, and meeting
customer demands.

Rigorous inspection process, effective inspection method

The Group’s Incoming Materials Inspection and Management
Procedure, Manufacturing Process Quality Management Procedure,
Finished Product Inspection and Management Procedure, and
relevant inspection instructions and inspection standards ensure the
quality control of products from incoming materials to delivery, and
ensure that all products conform to regulatory requirements and are
sufficiently inspected before they leave the factory.

Ensuring zero defects based on strict control

The Group has established its own laboratory and inspection center,
covering more than 40,000 square meters, with more than 3,200
major measuring instruments and equipment. Effective control of
the laboratory from personnel, environmental facilities, equipment,
inspection methods and other aspects has provided strong support for
the inspection of products developed by the Group, so as to ensure
the quality of the Group’s products effectively.

AFTERSALES SERVICE

The Group has the MES system traces the whole material system
where the Customer Complaint Handling Procedure defines the
responsibilities and processes of receiving, handling and feeding
back customer complaints, responds to customer complaints in a
timely and effective manner, and formulates corrective and preventive
measures to avoid product responsibility risks. For product safety,
we follow the “Product Safety and Responsibility Management”,
requiring system planning, management requirements of product
safety and responsibility related to design, manufacturing, sales and
aftersales service processes from product safety. There was no
complaint from HSF customers throughout 2022, the improvement
rate of customer complaints was 100%. The Group has set up the
“Customer Satisfaction Management Procedure” to manage customer
satisfaction, and customer satisfaction was>95 points in 2022.
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SOUND RECALL MECHANISM

The Group has established the Return Handling Operation Process
and the Management Procedure for Non-compliance, and the product
quality should conform to the Product Quality Law ((&£%)), so
as to ensure that customers’ returned products (including related
suspicious inventory) are handled in time, and corresponding analysis
and improvement are carried out to prevent the same problems from
happening again and enhance customer satisfaction. During the
year, no product was recalled for safety or health reasons, and the
percentage for the aggregate amount of sold or shipped defective
products which were recalled for safety and health reasons was zero.

CONSUMER DATA PROTECTION

The Group has established the Customer or External Supplier Property
Management Procedures to ensure that customers or external
suppliers’ properties (including materials, parts, tools and equipment,
customer premises, intellectual property and personal data) were
identified, verified, secured and protected. In 2022, there was no
leakage of consumer data.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS

The Intellectual Property and Legal Department is established in the
Group. The intellectual property system is based on three aspects,
i.e., institutionalization of work, system flow and electronic flow, to
ensure the Company’s operational safety and enhance the market
competitiveness.

INFORMATION SECURITY AND CONSUMER PRIVACY
PROTECTION

The Group attaches importance on protecting the information security
of organizations and customers, and strictly follows the Cybersecurity
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Data Security Law of the
People’s Republic of China and other laws and regulations. In order
to improve the Company’s information security management level,
guarantee the business operation, service and daily management
activities of enterprises, and prevent business interruption or security
accidents caused by the interruption of information system, data loss
and leakage of sensitive information, the Company has established
a perfect information security management system with reference to
ISO27001 information security management system standard, and
actively promoted the implementation and continuous improvement of
the information security management system.
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BYD Electronic implemented the information security policy of
“full participation, active prevention, compliance with laws and
regulations, safeguarding the rights and interests of the Company
and customers”, organized the establishment of an information
security executive committee led by the top management, and set
up measurable and communicable information security objectives for
the purpose of protecting the confidentiality, integrity and availability
of information security assets. According to the ISO27001 standard,
a systematic documented information security management system
was established, and the Information Security Manual was formulated
as the program and code of action to guide the Company to establish
and implement the information security management system. From the
aspects of terminal security, access control and change management,
the Regulations on Terminal Security Management, Regulations on
Data Security Management of Electronic Business Group, Regulations
on Computer Room Management and Control, Regulations on
Production Network Management, Regulations on Information Asset
Backup Management, Regulations on Management of User Access
Control and Regulations on Management of Change Control of
Equipment and System were formulated.

The Group’s information security management system is business
risk-oriented. Every year, it organizes all divisions and factories to
carry out asset identification and risk assessment, take corresponding
control measures for identified risks, and formulate the Information
Security Risk Disposal Plan; carry out annual internal audit of
information security, make cause analysis of non-conformance reports
in internal audit, and formulate corrective and preventive measures
and rectification plan; review certain problems in the operation
of the information security management system, and assess the
opportunities for continuous improvement and the need for change.
The Group implements 100% enroliment information security training
for new employees, and organizes each department to conduct
information security training every quarter; the rate of signing key post
confidentiality agreements is 100%. Since the operation of the Group’s
information security management system, customer satisfaction
has been maintained high, no complaints from customers about
information security incidents have been received, and no information
leakage incidents have occurred.

At the same time, in order to improve the information security
management and meet the development requirements and business
needs of the enterprise, BYD Electronic has passed the certification
of ISO/IEC 27001:2013, 1SO28000, C-TPAT, TISAX ALS, ISO/SAE
21434 and other standard management systems respectively, which
escorts the rapid development of enterprises.
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V ANTI-CORRUPTION

BUSINESS ETHICS

The Group abides by business ethics, strictly prohibiting corruption,
bribery and fraud in all forms. Offending personnel will be punished
and prosecuted in accordance with rules. The Group strictly prohibit
offering, accepting or claiming bribery, gifts, hospitality and any other
form of activity intended to affect the relevant business decision of the
Group in order to acquire abnormal or inappropriate advantages. The
Group complies with overseas anti-bribery laws and regulations, and
will not offer bribes to or demand bribes from local governments in
overseas regions.

ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

In addition to strengthening anti-corruption investigation and internal
audit, an inspection subdivision has been set up to inspect the
industrial parks and business divisions and visit partners to collect
opinions and advice, identify risks and issues, and investigate and
punish violations. A procurement supervision subdivision has also
been set up with additional personnel to conduct full inspection of
purchase orders, without letting go of any suspicious or problematic
spot. The focus of supervision includes purchase orders, the on-site
audit, recruitment, selection and assessment of suppliers, purchase
price, share, strategy, quality inspection, acceptance, payment, etc.
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SYSTEM BUILDING

In order to ensure the standardization, normalization and
systematization of anti-corruption, the Group keeps improving its
system construction according to relevant laws and regulations and
international standards as well as in line with business practices,
to provide comprehensive system support for anti-corruption. In
2022, adhering the three principles of “fairness, transparency and
competition”, the Group comprehensively reviewed and optimised its
rules and regulations to fix management loopholes, remove human
factors and eliminate rent-seeking space. The “Management Measures
for Suspected Benefit Transfer (CH T8 X 1T A IEIE))” has
been formulated to transform from the pure “ evidence identification (&
125 “ in the past, according to which investigation and punishment
are conducted only when the Group has evidence, to a model of
“evidence identification + behavior identification (& R E+1T7 &% 71)".
This will help the Group identify corruption signals in a timely manner,
discover problems early and correct them when they are nascent, do
supervision well, and strengthen management to protect cadres and
protect “good cadres”. Through summarising some negative behaviors
in the procurement industry from the whole society, and combining
them with our past investigation and punishment cases, the Group
has concluded suspected benefit transfer behaviors such as “splitting
orders to avoid bidding”, “inviting unqualified suppliers to participate
in procurement projects”, “designating second and third-tier suppliers
to suppliers” and “refusing suppliers to participate in procurement
projects without sound reasons”, and a negative list has been formed
to make employees be aware of the red line, keep the bottom line
and do not get out of line. Once the behaviors in the negative list
are discovered, even if there is no evidence of corruption, employee
involved will also be severely punished internally and transferred out of
his or her position and unqualified for salary increase, promotion and
equity allocation permanently. The Group optimised and improved
its procurement rotation system to truly achieve the departure of two
relationships (i.e. relationship with original suppliers and relationship
between superior and subordinate) through rotation. It developed
the “Integrity Incentive Measures (B&2 Z2E)#15%)” to further enhance
employees’ motivation to actively resist bribery. By means of rewards,
the Group helps employees refuse temptation and actively resist
commercial bribery.
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AUTHORITY MANAGEMENT

The Group strengthens authority management to “put power in a
cage”, and takes the supervision of procurement authority as the top
priority of procurement supervision. Supplier admittance and removal is
decided by the procurement committee, which is no longer controlled
by a certain procurement personnel or through department personnel.
The on-site examination and approval of production material suppliers,
which is no longer led by the procurement department, is carried out
by the audit teams set up by the quality department of the Company in
an independent and united way. The review and selection of suppliers
are separated with the quality review department, procurement
department and departments which use the materials performing
their respective duties and functions, thus establishing a mutual
binding and supervision relationship. The Group made every effort to
rectify the procurement model of “inviting quotations or bids” through
changing the status that the “right to invite” was in the hands of a
few procurement personnel, ensuring that qualified suppliers have a
fair opportunity to participate in competition. There will be no more
bargaining once a bid is won to ensure the seriousness and fairness
of the bidding. In the event of bargaining after a bid failure, only the
general manager has the right to negotiate. The Group recovered the
decision-making rights of personnel below the general manager during
the procurement process. The price survey process is cancelled
to reduce the possibility of quotation leakage or the manipulation
of quotation by procurement personnel. Through system settings,
automatic payment is made when conditions are met, and payment is
no longer manually controlled, therefore reducing the space for rent-
seeking.
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COMMUNICATION CHANNELS

The Group advocates “all staff participating in anti-corruption and
supervision”. The Group will ensure strict punishments for fraud
and corruption, and hold accountable dereliction of duty, such as
neglect of duty and abuse of duty. In order to give full play to the
supervisory role of all employees and relevant parties, the Group
has established smooth channels for honesty issues reporting to
encourage employees, employees from other units and any other
insiders to perform the honesty supervision system of the Company,
and actively report cases of embezzlement, corruption and other
violations of laws, regulations and disciplines. In 2022, in addition
to accepting and dealing with whistle-blowing and complaints and
investigating them in a timely manner, the Group took proactive moves
to inspect business divisions and industrial parks, conduct employee
interviews and visit and communicate with suppliers to collect opinions
and advice as well as complaints and whistle-blowing information,
with a view to identifying issues, tackling areas of weakness and
rectifying defects Regular supplier satisfaction surveys are conducted
to understand suppliers’ voices and demands and to promote
continuous improvement in procurement management. The Company
has posted procurement supervision and feedback channels in
procurement meeting rooms and delivery platforms throughout the
Company, and in addition to the original unified complaint and whistle-
blowing channels, the contact details of dedicated supervisors are
also published. There are many dedicated procurement supervisors
who are assigned according to the regional division of labour to ensure
timely response and handling of suppliers’ requests. Through the
measures above, the original “passive and one-way communication”
was transformed to multi-channel communication featuring “active and
two-way communication”, which helps establish more smooth, timely
and effective communication channels and feedback mechanisms.
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SELF-DISCIPLINE AND SUNNY COMMUNICATION

Integrity is not only a basic requirement of the Group for its employees
but also a fundamental principle to be followed in their official dealings.
In business contacts with personnel of external units, upon the
principle of openness and transparency, employees of the Group are
required to protect the interests of the Group, promote the Group’s
integrity communication regulations, do not engage in improper
contacts with personnel from external units in pursuit of personal
gains, do not offer or ask for benefits in any name or way, and do not
offer or accept gifts and hospitality beyond the scope of laws and
business practices.

For employees who violate integrity discipline, the Group will terminate
the employment contract with them in strict accordance with the rules
and regulations and record their information in the de-listing enquiry
system and share with the industry, and those who are suspected
of violating laws and committing crimes will be handed over to
judicial organs. In 2022, 1 corruption litigation case has been closed.
the Group has joined the enterprise anti-fraud alliance, to share
information about offenders of professional ethics. Employees involved
in corruption and other violations will be blacklisted in the industry.

The Group regards partners as business partners, regards honesty as
an important prerequisite for cooperation, and strives to jointly create
a fair, just, honest and win-win cooperation environment. The Group
signs integrity cooperation agreements with its partners to clarify the
Group’s anti-corruption stance and requirements. The Group hopes
that its partners and the Group will maintain a common anti-corruption
attitude and determination, be honest and self-disciplined, supervise
each other, and jointly build an “anti-corruption fence”. For units that
violate the principle of integrity, the Group shall, in accordance with
the contract or relevant agreements, hold cooperative units liable for
breach of contract, such as claiming liquidated damages, canceling
the cooperation qualification, and putting them on the blacklist of
cooperative partners.
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INTEGRITY CULTURE

The Group continues to strengthen integrity publicity and education
for employees, and promotes and interpret integrity systems, uncover
corruption and popularise relevant laws and regulations through the
“Integrity BYD” website, WeChat official account and WeCom account
for the publicity of anti-corruption. In 2022, the Group published
nearly 100 graphic articles, in which the attack on soft corruption and
alleged transfer of benefits was a key topic this year. In addition, the
Group organises an “Integrity Month” event every year. In 2022, the
Group organized senior management to take a stand on integrity, and
the senior management actively practiced and conveyed the value of
integrity with their deeds. The middle and grassroots management
received integrity training, signed integrity pledges, and the majority
of employees participated in the creation of clean works, etc.,
through carrying out various forms of integrity publicity and education
activities, continued to improve employees’ awareness of integrity
and self-discipline, built a solid line of professional ethics defense for
employees, thus creating a good atmosphere of integrity and discipline
throughout the Company.

In its anti-corruption efforts, the Group will continue to establish an
anti-corruption system that combines both prevention and punishment
through establishing and improving systems as well as attaching equal
importance to education and supervision, and actively practice its
integrity culture featuring “conscientiousness, honesty, self-discipline,
eliminating the impure from the pure and making radical reform”, to
escort the healthy development of the Company.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

Looking back on the third year we fight against COVID-19, in 2022,
BYD Electronic continued to support the fight against the pandemic in
various cities and help the local pandemic prevention and control work
as the pandemic resurged in many cities. We have donated funds and
supplies against the pandemic in Xi’an, Shaanxi Province, Anyang,
Henan Province, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, and Hong Kong,
the PRC.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of BYD Electronic (International)
Company Limited would like to present its annual report and audited
consolidated financial statements for the Year.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated with limited liability in Hong Kong on 14
June 2007. By virtue of the reorganisation implemented in preparation for
the listing of the shares of the Company on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for the purpose of
streamlining the structure of the Group, the Company became the holding
company of the Group. The shares of the Company commenced listing on
the main board of the Stock Exchange on 20 December 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is a
global leading platform-based high-end manufacturing enterprise,
providing customers with new materials development, product design
and development, parts and components as well as complete machine
manufacturing, supply chain management and logistics, after-sales
and other one-stop services. The Group engages in a wide variety of
businesses ranging from smart phones, smart wearables, computers,
Internet of Things, smart home, game hardware, robots, unmanned aerial
vehicles, communication equipment, medical devices to other diversified
market areas. Leveraging on its industry-leading research and development
and manufacturing capabilities, diversified product portfolio and high-
quality customer resources, the Group’s business continued to grow
steadily.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year and the financial position of the Group
and the Company as at 31 December 2022 are set out in the consolidated
financial statements and their notes on pages 141 to 247 of this annual
report.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of final dividend
of RMB0.165 per ordinary share for the Year (for the year ended 31
December 2021: RMBO0.103 per ordinary share). The proposed final
dividend is subject to the consideration and approval of the shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM”) of the Company.
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The Company will publish announcement, circular and notice regarding the
AGM in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association
of the Company. The Company will also make separate announcement
regarding the record date and date of closure of register of members for
the payment of the final dividend. It is expected that the final dividend will
be distributed before 31 August 2023.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and note 29 and note 40 to the financial statements, respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL/PAID-IN CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital during the Year are set out in
note 28 to the financial statements.

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2022, calculated
under the provisions of Sections 291, 297 and 299 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance”), amounted to approximately RMB21,787,134,000
(2021: RMB20,161,596,000).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Wang Nian-giang
Jiang Xiang-rong

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wang Chuan-fu
Wang Bo

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Antony Francis MAMPILLY

Chung Kwok Mo John

Qian Jing-jie

Below is a list of directors of the subsidiaries of the Company during the
Year and up to the date of this report in alphabetical order:

He Zhi-qi, Huang Zhengyi, Jiang Xiangrong, Li Ke, Li Yongjun, Lv Xiang-
yang, Ning Xin-jie, Shan Jie, Sun Yi-zao, Tang Jianguo, Wang Bo, Wang
Chuan-fu, Wang Nian-giang, Wang Zhen, Wang Wei, Xia Zuo-quan, Xu
Fenglin, Yu Cangsheng, Zhang Jie, Zhao Jian-ping, Zhao Tong, Zhou Ya-
lin, Zhao Ruofei, Zhao Yue

In accordance with Article 106 of the Articles of Association at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors, or if their number is not three
(8) or a multiple of three (3), the number which is nearest to or is at least
one-third, shall retire from office by rotation at least every three (3) years. A
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years. Either party has the right to give
not less than three months’ written notice to terminate the agreement. The
particulars of these agreements are in all material respects identical and
each of the executive Directors is entitled to a salary and, at the discretion
of the Board, a bonus payment.
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Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into an appointment letter with the Company. None
of them has entered into any service contract with the Group. The term
of office of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors is for a period of three years. In each case, either the Company
or the relevant Director can give three months’ prior notice at any time to
terminate the appointment without payment of compensation, and the
appointments are subject to the provisions of retirement and rotation of
Directors under the Articles of the Company.

The terms of each of the appointment letters of each of such non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors are in all material
respects identical. Each of the independent non-executive Directors is
entitled to a director’s fee whereas none of the non-executive Directors is
entitled to a director’s fee.

No Directors who proposed for re-election at the AGM of the Company
has a service contract with the Company which is not terminable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group is set out in the following sections of
this annual report: Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion and
Analysis, the Environmental, Social and Governance Report and note 36
to the financial statements. The corresponding discussion and analysis as
referenced shall form an integral part of this Directors’ Report.

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with relevant laws
and regulations and the impact of non-compliance with such relevant
laws and regulations on the business. The Group has been allocating
system and human resources to ensure ongoing compliance with laws and
regulations and to maintain cordial working relationships with regulators
through effective communication. During the Year, the Group has complied
with, to the best of its knowledge, all relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group.

The Company recognises that our employees, customers and suppliers
are key to our corporate sustainability. We strive to engage our employees,
provide quality services to our customers and collaborate with our
suppliers.
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The Group places significant emphasis on human capital by promoting
a diverse, non-discriminatory and fair environment to our staff, as well
as providing a range of opportunities for career advancement based on
employees’ merits and performance. The Group also provides continuing
training and development opportunities on the latest developments in the
market and industry, including courses organized by external organizations
and internally.

We value the feedback from customers and have established a mechanism
handling customer service, support and complaints. We also proactively
collaborate with our suppliers to continue to deliver quality products and
services. We have developed certain requirements in our standard tender
documents. These requirements include regulatory compliance, labour
practices, anti-corruption and other business ethics.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 24 to 28 of this annual report.

CHANGES TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in the
information of Directors and chief executives of the Company subsequent
to the date of the 2022 interim report of the Company up to the date of this
report are set out below:

e Mr. Wang Chuan-fu has become the chairman of Shenzhen DENZA
New Energy Automotive Co., Ltd. (RIIEZ R /TE B R A R)).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests or short positions of each of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or associated corporation (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chap.
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”), which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
he is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers under the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
were as follows:

Name of Directors Name of Company Capacity

EEfA

DA BB )

Mr. Wang Nian-giang The Company Beneficial owner and
EEoN:: bt YiN/NE]! beneficiary
BEmBEAEARZRA

BYD Beneficial owner
LbERsE EmEAEA

Mr. Wang Bo The Company Beneficiary

FEhEE PiN/NG]! 2@ A

Mr. Wang Chuan-fu BYD Beneficial owner

FEREE LbERsE EmEAA

Mr. Qian Jing-jie The Company Beneficial owner

BB L PA/NC] EmEAA
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Notes:

1. Of which 8,500,000 shares are held by Mr. Wang Nian-giang and 8,602,000
shares are held by Gold Dragonfly Limited (“Gold Dragonfly”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and wholly owned by BF Gold Dragon
Fly (PTC) Limited (“BF Trustee”) as the trustee of BF Trust, the beneficiaries of
which include Mr. Wang Nian-giang.

2. These are the A shares of BYD held by Mr. Wang Nian-giang. The total issued
share capital of BYD as at 31 December 2022 was RMB2,911,142,855,
comprising 1,813,142,855 A shares and 1,098,000,000 H shares, all of which
have a par value of RMB1 each. The A shares of BYD held by Mr. Wang Nian-
giang represented approximately 1.01% of the total issued A shares of BYD as
at 31 December 2022.

3. These shares are held by Gold Dragonfly, a company wholly owned by BF
Trustee as the trustee of BF Trust, the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Wang
Bo.

4.  These are the 513,623,850 A shares, 3,727,700 A shares held in No.1 Assets
Management Plan through E Fund BYD and 1,000,000 H shares of BYD
held by Mr. Wang Chuan-fu, which represented approximately 28.53% and
approximately 0.09% of total issued A shares and H shares of BYD as of 31
December 2022, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive had
or was deemed to have any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as at 31 December
2022,

SHARE SCHEME
During the Year under review, the Company did not adopt any share
scheme.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in Shares” above, at no time during the Year
was the Company, its holding company or any of its fellow subsidiaries
and subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or
the chief executive of the Company or their associates to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in the Company or any other body
corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2022, so far as being known to the Directors of
the Company, the following persons (other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the ordinary
shares and underlying shares of the Company which were required to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO:

Name of Shareholders Nature of interest

BREHE EmEME

Golden Link Worldwide Limited Beneficial interest’
(“Golden Link”) EmiEn

Golden Link Worldwide Limited
([Golden Link])

BYD (H.K.) Co., Limited (“BYD HK”) Interest of controlled

BYD (H.K.) Co., Limited([BYD HK]) corporation’
REHLEE R

BYD Company Limited (“BYD”) Interest of controlled

AR AR AR ([t g ) corporation’
REHLEE R

Note:
1. BYD is the sole Shareholder of BYD HK, which in turn is the sole Shareholder

of Golden Link. As such, both BYD HK and BYD were deemed to be interested
in the shares of the Company held by Golden Link.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Company had not
been notified by any persons (other than the Directors or chief executive of
the Company) who had interests or short positions in the ordinary shares
or underlying shares of the Company which were required to be disclosed
to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Report for the corporate governance adopted by the Company is set out
on pages 29 to 45 of this annual report.

REMUNERATIONS OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Please refer to the paragraph headed “Remuneration Policy for Directors”
in the corporate governance report in this annual report for the details of
the Group’s remuneration policy for Directors.

For the Year, the total remuneration of the Directors and the five highest
paid employees are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, every Director or
other officer of the Company shall be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against any liability, loss or expenditure incurred by him in
defending any legal proceedings which relate to anything done or omitted
to be done or alleged to have been done or omitted to be done by him
as an officer or auditor of the Company and in which judgment is given in
his favour or in which he is acquitted, or incurred in connection with any
application in which relief is granted to him by the court from liability in
respect of any such act or omission.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The top five largest customer groups and the largest customer group of
the Group represent approximately 76.71% and 44.18% of the Group’s
total sales of the Year respectively. The top five largest suppliers and the
largest supplier of the Group represent approximately 62.80% and 40.08%
of the Group’s total purchase of the Year respectively.

BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company indirectly interested in
approximately 65.76% of the issued share capital of the Company and one
of the top five largest suppliers of the Group. Mr. WANG Chuan-fu, being
a non-executive Director of the Company and an executive director and
chairman of the board of directors of BYD, and Mr. WANG Nian-giang,
being an executive Director and the chief executive officer of the Company,
are interested in approximately 17.81% and 0.63% of the total issued
share capital of BYD as at the date of this report, respectively.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the Directors, any of their close
associates or any shareholders of the Company (which, to the knowledge
of the Directors, own 5% or more of the issued shares of the Company)
had any beneficial interest in the top five largest customers and suppliers of
the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and operation of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the Year.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKING

BYD declared that it has complied with the non-compete deed given by it
to Mr. Wang Chuan-fu and Mr. Lv Xiang-yang in favour of the Company (for
itself and as trustee for the benefit of its subsidiaries from time to time) (as
described in the prospectus of the Company dated 7 December 2007) (the
“Non-compete Deed”).

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the
compliance by BYD, Mr. Wang Chuan-fu and Mr. Lv Xiang-yang with the
Non-compete Deed and the independent non-executive Directors have
confirmed that, as far as they can ascertain, there is no incidence of non-
compliance with the Non-compete Deed by any of BYD, Mr. Wang Chuan-
fu and Mr. Lv Xiang-yang.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions set out in note 33(a) to the financial
statements constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions (as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) of the
Company and the Company has complied with the applicable disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of such
transactions.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transactions are as follows:

THE FOLLOWING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS OF
THE GROUP ARE SUBJECT TO THE REPORTING AND
ANNOUNCEMENT REQUIREMENTS UNDER CHAPTER 14A
OF THE LISTING RULES

(i)  Purchase of assets by the Group from BYD

On 21 June 2022, the Company entered into assets purchase
agreement with BYD for the purchase of drilling machining center (&
Bl 1ALy, infrared touch probe (AL 91Mi&Z$58I5E), oil mist collector
(R E2E), CNC indexing plate (B#%E 5 € #), CMM machine (=
PHZBEH), gluing and baking all-in-one line (B& R AL 1 — B2 4R),
mobile power aging cabinet (2 8) & JR Z/L1E) from BYD and its
subsidiaries (“BYD Group”, excluding, except where the context
indicates otherwise, the Group) by the Group at a consideration
of RMB22,886,000, which was determined with reference to the
unaudited net asset value of the transferred assets as at 30 April 2022,
subject to a downward adjustment on the day of assets delivery due
to accumulated depreciation before the delivery.

The considerations in relation to the aforesaid acquisitions were
financed by internal resources of the Group.
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As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, it is a
connected person of the Company and therefore the purchase of
assets constitutes connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The purchases under the assets
purchase agreement entered into in June 2022 was aggregated with
the August 2021 Assets Purchase Transaction (the details of which
were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 13 August
2021) and the December 2021 Assets Purchase Transaction (the
details of which were set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 31 December 2021) for the purpose of calculating the
percentage ratios as stipulated under Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules.
As the applicable percentage ratios calculated on aggregation basis
were all more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the purchases were subject
to the reporting and announcement requirements but is exempt from
the independent shareholders’ approval requirements as set out under
Chapter 14A.76 of the Listing Rules.

On 28 December 2022, the Company entered into another assets
purchase agreement with BYD for the purchase of test bench,
calibration bench and gas test bench from BYD Group by the Group
at a consideration of RMB22,907,000, which was determined with
reference to the unaudited net asset value of the transferred assets as
at 31 October 2022, subject to a downward adjustment on the day of
assets delivery due to accumulated depreciation before the delivery.

The considerations in relation to the aforesaid acquisitions were
financed by internal resources of the Group.
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(i)

As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, it is a
connected person of the Company and therefore the purchase of
assets constitutes connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The purchases under the assets
purchase agreement entered into in December 2022 was aggregated
with the December 2021 Assets Purchase Transaction (the details of
which were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 31
December 2021) and the June 2022 Assets Purchase Transaction (the
details of which were set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 21 June 2022) for the purpose of calculating the percentage
ratios as stipulated under Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules. As the
applicable percentage ratios calculated on aggregation basis were all
more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the purchases were subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements but is exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements as set out under
Chapter 14A.76 of the Listing Rules.

Capital contribution made by the Group to BYD Auto Finance
Company Limited (“BYD Auto Finance”)

On 28 April 2022, BYD Precision Manufacture Co., Ltd. (“BYD
Precision”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, BYD and Bank
of Xi’an (the “Existing Shareholders”) entered into the second capital
contribution agreement with BYD Auto Finance, pursuant to which,
the Existing Shareholders agreed to make a capital contribution of
RMB6,000,000,000 in aggregate to BYD Auto Finance in accordance
with their respective shareholding on a pro rata basis. Upon completion
of the second capital contribution, the registered capital of BYD Auto
Finance increased from RMB4,000,000,000 to RMB10,000,000,000,
and the respective shareholding percentage of each of the Existing
Shareholders in BYD Auto Finance remained unchanged, that is, BYD
Auto Finance is held as to 77% directly by BYD, 20% by Bank of Xi'an
and 3% by BYD Precision. This capital contribution will help improve
the Group’s investment income, intensify the Group’s business
deployment in the new energy vehicle industry and strengthen the
Group’s collaboration with BYD in this area, which will further boost
the Group’s overall strength and market competitiveness, and provide
investors with sustainable protection on value appreciation. The
Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors) consider
that the terms of the second capital contribution agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder are entered into in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Company, were negotiated on
an arm'’s length basis and are on normal commercial terms, and are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders and the
Company as a whole. Details of the transaction are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 28 April 2022.

(i)
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As BYD Auto Finance is held directly as to 77% by BYD, BYD Auto
Finance is also a connected person of the Company. As such,
the capital contribution constitutes a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules

The transaction amount under the second capital contribution
agreement had been aggregated with that under the first capital
contribution agreement dated 3 November 2021 (details of which
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 28 October
2021) to calculate the applicable percentage ratios under rule 14.07
of the Listing Rules. As all the applicable percentage ratios on an
aggregated basis exceeded 0.1% but were all less than 5%, the
capital contribution agreements had complied with the reporting
and announcement requirements but had been exempt from the
independent Shareholders’ approval requirement set out in rule 14A.76
of the Listing Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the continuing connected transactions are as follows:

A.

THE FOLLOWING CONTINUING CONNECTED

TRANSACTIONS OF THE GROUP ARE SUBJECT TO THE

REPORTING AND ANNOUNCEMENT REQUIREMENTS

UNDER CHAPTER 14A OF THE LISTING RULES

(i) Provision of utilities connection andy/or utilities by BYD Group to
the Group
According to the agreement in relation to the provision of utilities
dated 8 December 2021 between the Company and BYD, BYD
Group has agreed to provide certain utilities or utilities connection
(as the case may be), including water, electricity and gas, to the
Group during the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December
2024.

As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected persons of
the Company.

The annual cap of the total amount for provision of utilities
connection and/or utilities by BYD Group to the Group for the
Year was RMB788,306,000, and the actual aggregate amount
was approximately RMB648,595,000.
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(i)

(i)

Provision of processing services by BYD Group to the Group
According to the New Processing Services Agreement dated 8
December 2021 between the Company and BYD, BYD Group
has agreed to provide to the Group certain design, construction,
testing, quality control, processing and repairing services for
certain products (including handset metal parts) and facilities
(including factory renovation and wastewater treatment) of the
Group during the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December
2024.

As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected persons of
the Company.

The annual cap of the total amount of the processing service
fee payable by the Group to BYD Group for the Year was
RMB1,413,018,000, and the actual aggregate amount was
approximately RMB331,311,000.

Leasing of properties by BYD Group to the Group

According to the New Property Leasing Framework Agreement
dated 8 December 2021 between the Company and BYD, the
parties have agreed that the Group may from time to time lease
the properties of the BYD Group in the PRC during the period
from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024, predominantly
factory and office space, for the purposes of its daily operations.
The parties or their respective subsidiaries shall enter into
individual property leasing agreements in respect of each leasing
arrangement in accordance with the terms of the New Property
Leasing Framework Agreement. Each individual property leasing
agreement shall contain, amongst other things, the specific details
of the leased property and must comply with the terms of the New
Property Leasing Framework Agreement, the Listing Rules and
applicable laws.

As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected persons of
the Company.

The annual cap of the total amount for leasing of properties
payable by the Group to BYD Group for the Year was
RMB433,939,000, and the actual aggregate amount was
approximately RMB316,147,000.

(i)
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(iv) provision of purchasing services by BYD Group to the Group

According to the New Supply Chain Management Service
Agreement dated 8 December 2021 between the Company and
BYD, BYD Group has agreed to provide purchasing service to the
Group during the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December
2024. Under this arrangement, the BYD Group will provide
purchase order execution and logistic support to the Group,
including but not limited to the consolidation of purchase orders
from the Group in respect of production equipment, machinery
and raw materials for the Group’s production of handset parts
and components, new intelligent equipment and rotatable display
screens, selection of appropriate suppliers, negotiation with
suppliers for bulk purchase discount and delivery schedule, as
well as quality control and inspection and provide legal and other
consultation services to the Group on matters in relation to the
provision of purchasing services.

As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected persons of
the Company.

The annual cap of the total amount for provision of purchasing
services by BYD Group for the Year was RMB81,397,000, and
the actual aggregate amount was approximately RMB73,636,000.

Provision of processing services by the Group to BYD Group
According to the New BE Processing Services Agreement dated
8 December 2021 between the Company and BYD, the Group
has agreed to provide to BYD Group automation equipment
design services, certain processing services, testing services
and research and development support for certain products of
the BYD Group during the period from 1 January 2022 to 31
December 2024.
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(vi)

Following the aforementioned agreement, the Company entered
into supplemental agreements with BYD on 22 September 2022
and 11 November 2022, respectively, to revise the existing annual
caps. Save for the revision of the existing annual caps, all other
terms and conditions (including pricing basis) under the New BE
Processing Services Agreement remain unchanged.

As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected persons of
the Company.

The annual cap of the total amount for provision of processing
services to BYD Group for the Year was RMB1,814,138,000,
and the actual aggregate amount was approximately
RMB1,160,341,000.

Provision of available-for-sale automotive core components and
special purpose electric vehicles by BYD Group to the Group
According to the New Automotive Core Components and Special
Purpose Electric Vehicles Purchase Agreement dated 8 December
2021 between the Company and BYD, the Group may purchase
certain Goods from the BYD Group during the period from 1
January 2022 to 31 December 2024, including automotive core
components, special purpose electric vehicles and certain other
materials. Following the said agreement, the Company entered
into the Automotive Core Components and Special Purpose
Electric Vehicles Purchase Supplemental Agreement with BYD on
2 November 2022 to revise the existing annual cap for the Year.
Save for the revision of the existing annual cap, all other terms and
conditions and the other existing annual caps under the original
New Automotive Core Components and Special Purpose Electric
Vehicles Purchase Agreement remain the same.

As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected persons of
the Company.

The annual cap of the total amount for acquisition of new
automotive core components and special purpose electric
vehicles from BYD for the Year was RMB867,742,000, and the
actual aggregate amount was approximately RMB704,329,000.
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(vii)

Provision of power supply services by the Group to the BYD
Group

According to the New Power Supply Services Agreement dated
8 December 2021 between the Company and BYD, the Group
shall provide electricity to the BYD Group during the period from
1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024 to satisfy the day-to-
day operations and production needs of the BYD Group in the
industrial hubs in regions such as Baolong, Shenzhen, the PRC.

As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected persons of
the Company.

The annual cap of the total amount for provision of power
supply services by the Group to BYD Group for the Year was
RMB103,295,000, and the actual aggregate amount was
approximately RMB96,725,000.

(viii) Sharing of Ancillary Services by the BYD Group with the Group

According to the New Comprehensive Services Master Agreement
dated 8 December 2021 between the Company and BYD, BYD
Group has agreed to provide to the Group the ancillary services,
such as telecommunication and computer network services and
enterprise resources planning and office automation (“Ancillary
Services”) required for the Group’s business operations during the
period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024.

As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected persons of
the Company.

The annual cap of the total amount for sharing of Ancillary Services
by BYD Group with the Group for the Year was RMB35,370,000,
and the actual aggregate amount was approximately
RMB34,081,000.
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B. THE FOLLOWING CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS OF THE GROUP ARE SUBJECT TO THE
REPORTING, ANNOUNCEMENT AND INDEPENDENT
SHAREHOLDERS’ APPROVAL REQUIREMENTS UNDER
CHAPTER 14A OF THE LISTING RULES

()

(i)

Supply of products by the Group to BYD Group

According to the New Supply Agreement and the Supplemental
Supply Agreement dated 8 December 2021 and 11 November
2022 respectively between the Company and BYD, the Company
has agreed to supply to BYD Group products and materials
required for the production of BYD Group’s products during
the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024, such
as rotatable display screens, injection molded parts, moulds
and certain other products and materials including intelligent
driving, intelligent cockpits and automobile parts production line
equipment.

As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected persons of
the Company.

The total annual cap for suppling of products by the Group to
BYD Group for the Year was RMB8,067,663,000, and the actual
aggregate amount was approximately RMB7,426,343,000.

Purchase of products (including batteries) from BYD Group (other
than the Group)

According to the New Purchase Agreement and the Supplemental
Purchase Agreement dated 8 December 2021 and 11 November
2022 respectively between the Company and BYD, BYD has
agreed to supply batteries used for producting specific new
intelligent products, materials used for production of handset
casings, plastic structural parts, packaging materials and certain
other products and materials, as well as batteries according to
the specifications as requested by the Group from time to time
for certain new intelligent products produced by the Group to the
Group during the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December
2024.

As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected persons of
the Company.

The annual cap for purchasing products (including batteries) by
the Group from BYD Group for the Year was RMB3,524,350,000,
and the actual aggregate amount was approximately
RMB3,170,209,000.
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(i) - Provision of deposit services by BYD Auto Finance to the Group

Pursuant to the framework agreement entered into between
BYD Precision, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
BYD on 14 May 2021, BYD Auto Finance agreed to provide fixed
deposit services to BYD Precision within the scope as permitted
by the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission and
in accordance with all relevant rules and regulations for the period
from the effective date of the relevant framework agreement to 31
December 2023. The relevant interest rates shall be determined in
accordance with the relevant benchmark rates prescribed by the
People’s Bank of China and shall not be lower than the interest
rates offered by other mainstream commercial banks in the PRC
for comparable deposits with similar nature for the same period
and the interest rates offered by BYD Auto Finance to any other
successful applications from shareholders of BYD Auto Finance
(other than the Group) for comparable deposits with similar nature
for the same period, and is subject to all rules and regulations set
by the People’s Bank of China and/or all other domestic rules and
regulations in the PRC.

As BYD is the controlling shareholder of the Company, BYD and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected persons
of the Company. As BYD Auto Finance is a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of BYD, BYD Auto Finance is also a connected person
of the Company.

For the Year, the annual maximum daily deposit balance of the
deposit services provided by BYD Auto Finance to the Group was
RMB6,500,000,000 and the actual maximum deposit balance
incurred during the Year was approximately RMBO.

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and

confirmed that the transactions are:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms; and

(8) in accordance with the relevant agreements entered into on
terms which are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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The auditors of the Company have provided a letter and confirmed
that for the aforesaid continuing connected transactions:

1. nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors to
believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
not been approved by the Board;

2. for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by
the Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes the
auditors to believe that the transactions were not, in all material
respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

3. nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors to
believe that the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transactions; and

4. with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions set out in the attached list of continuing
connected transactions, nothing has come to their attention
that causes the auditors to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have exceeded the annual cap as set by
the Company.

Mr. Wang Chuan-fu, a non-executive Director of the Company, has also
been an executive director and chairman of the board of directors of BYD.
As Mr. Wang Chuan-fu held certain interests in the shares of BYD as at the
dates of the aforesaid connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions, Mr. Wang Chuan-fu, being the Director who may have a
material interest in the aforesaid transactions, has voluntarily abstained
from voting on the board resolutions of the Company concerning the
aforesaid transactions.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

The Company did not redeem any of its shares during the period from 1
January 2022 to 31 December 2022. During the Year, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save for the connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions described in this report, no Directors or entities connected
to the Directors have direct or indirect material interests in any material
transactions or arrangements conducted or material contracts entered into
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries at any time during or at the end
of the Year.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float during the Year.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

Each independent non-executive Director has provided a statement
confirming his/her independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company assessed that each independent non-
executive Director continues to be independent.

INDEPENDENT INTERNATIONAL AUDITOR

Since the incorporation of the Company, all its financial statements have
been audited by Ernst & Young. A resolution will be proposed regarding
the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as the Company’s independent
international auditor for 2023 at the AGM.

By the order of the Board

Director
Wang Nian-qgiang

28 March 2023
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To the members of
BYD ELECTRONIC (INTERNATIONAL) COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of BYD
ELECTRONIC (INTERNATIONAL) COMPANY LIMITED (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 141 to 247, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter

HREELER

Provision for impairment on trade receivables & & 5 BR 2 H) Jel (B8 4 1

As at 31 December 2022, the Group recorded trade receivables of
RMB10,495,823,000 and provision of RMB24,414,000 in the consolidated
financial statements account.

Management uses a provision matrix to calculate expected credit losses for
trade receivables. The application of provision matrix requires to consider
all reasonable and reliable information, including customers’ credit risks,
ageing of receivables, existence of disputes and historic payments, as
well as forecasts of future economic conditions. The groupings of various
customer segments and the estimation of expected credit loss rate involve
significant judgements and estimates.

Details of the provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables are
disclosed in notes 2.4, 3 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

We performed the following procedures, among others, in related to
expected credit losses of trade receivables:

e Obtained an understanding of the key internal controls of provision for
expected credit losses and its design and operating effectiveness;

e Discussed with management on the identification of customer
segments and estimates on expected credit losses, reviewed its
accuracy based on historical incurred losses, and evaluated the
reasonableness of management’s expected credit loss model by
considering current economic conditions;

e For trade receivables with an individually assessed credit risk exposure,
discussed with management on the reasonableness of identification
and analysed the recoverability of such receivables;

e For trade receivables with the credit risk exposure assessed based
on provision matrix, evaluated the reasonableness of estimates on the
expected credit loss model based on type of customers and historical
incurred losses; and

e Recalculated the management’s impairment provision of trade
receivables to ensure mathematical accuracy.
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Key audit matter

HREEXER

Inventory provision 17 & %5

As at 31 December 2022, inventories and related provision amounted to
RMB17,217,957,000 and RMB171,551,000, respectively, which were
material to the consolidated financial statements.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
inventories of the Group are mobile intelligent terminals and other products
which are subject to rapid product innovations and technological upgrades
and therefore have a high risk of obsolescence. Management assessment
on inventory provision is judgemental and is based on assumptions,
specifically the forecasted inventory usage, estimated selling prices and
cost to be incurred to completion and disposal, which are affected by
expected future market and sales orders.

The accounting policies and disclosures for inventory provision are included
in notes 2.4, 3 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

We performed the following procedures, among others, on the inventory
provision:

e Checked management’s methodology and estimates used in the
inventory provision calculation;

e Assessed the reasonableness of the inventory provision by comparing
it to historical write-downs, actual selling prices and costs to sale;

e Tested the ageing of inventories and discussed the long ageing
inventories with management to identify any slow-moving, excess or
obsolete items;

e (Observed the stocktaking process at the end of the year; and

e Performed subsequent sales review of inventories.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPO

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

e (Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is M.L. Chau.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS .)2

BHERR

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #{ 2 = FE - —# 1+ = A =1—HIEFZ

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETTT
REVENUE U A © 107,186,288 89,056,978
Cost of sales $58E KA< (100,836,020) (83,027,813)
Gross profit 7| 6,350,268 6,029,165
Other income and gains £ b Y A K W25 5 1,508,534 656,763
Government grants and subsidies FJ i Bh % fi Bk 7 178,687 585,261
Research and development expenses #17¢ & 71 3 & F (3,969,376) (3,308,296)
Selling and distribution expenses $H& & % $5k X2 (535,437) (274,578)
Administrative expenses 17 EF sz (1,234,549) (1,041,338)
Impairment losses on financial assets, net % &b & 2 & (B 5 18 R & (3,193) 7,785
Loss on derecognition of financial assets measured at amortised cost
RIEERABBRN AT ENEREENER (20,423) (18,079)
Other expenses H f i (277,410) (133,061)
Finance costs && ik 2 8 (58,531) (43,329)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B& %% A1 7l 6 1,938,570 2,465,293
Income tax expense FT15 1B 3% 11 (80,952) (155,411)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR % & i F
Attributable to owners of the parent &2 &l % B A 1 1,857,618 2,309,882
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
BRAEABRERFE ARGNTRAF] 12

Basic and diluted E7x &k #5%
= For profit for the year — & & & 7

RMBA E#0.827t RMBAR#1.037T
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Q\ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
BEHEERER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 {2 —F — —#F 1+ - HA=+—HIF/Z

2022 2021
—=E=—-= —ET-—F

=

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 4 & i 7 1,857,618 2,309,882

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Eftb4r& Yz

Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods: E& BRI EF D EE B R EMERE K ¢

Receivables financing: f& W B @&
Changes in fair value A 7 (B & & (7,622) (8,834)
Impairment losses J& {8 &5 18 15 92

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
BREBIINEBNER =5 (9,965) (3,308)

Net other comprehensive loss that may be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods

HigdEr & o R Ban s e EiEEE (17,572) (12,050)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

NEEZEHMEEESEBE - IBRHIE (17,572) (12,050)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR A E 44 W45 1,840,046 2,297,832
Attributable to owners of the parent & 2 A1 A A FE(L 1,840,046 2,297,832
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION .)2
B O B B AR &R

31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 38 &

2022
—E-=

RMB’000
ARBT T

2021
=B
RMB’000
ARETTT

Property, plant and equipment #13 « 5 K& & 13 12,940,997 11,181,538
Right-of-use assets f# A& & 14(a) 1,476,128 1,061,241
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets

AR - AR R EMmEE 15 1,263,122 921,156
Other intangible assets E & & = 16 8,718 9,758
Deferred tax assets IRIEFRTH & &= 27 481,354 201,447
Other non-current financial assets E IR B & f1 & & 17 335,800 170,215
Total non-current assets JEENE E 42 (E 16,506,119 13,545,355
CURRENT ASSETS i#igh & &

Inventories 7 & 18 17,046,406 10,567,249
Trade receivables & U & 5 BR3X 19 10,471,409 9,240,349
Receivables financing /& W78 gl & 20 5,348,059 2,987,164
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets

TERRIE - A EUERR R EMmEE 15 1,358,069 1,656,679
Pledged deposits B #1775 21 20,633 351,244
Restricted bank deposits & [R &I $R 1717 5% 21 = 2,501
Cash and cash equivalents IR & K8 & S EY 21 6,243,678 2,824,741
Total current assets JiEN & E#1E 40,488,254 27,629,927
Total assets & E#&{E 56,994,373 41,175,282
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Q\ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B OF Bt B AR &

31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

2022 2021
—=E—-= —ET-—F

=

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTTT

CURRENT LIABILITIES =& & &

Trade and bills payables &1~ & 5 BR 3 & fE N =& 22 22,002,295 11,723,985
Other payables, other liabilities and accruals
Ha RN - EthBaERETER 23 5,421,180 4,176,101
Lease liabilities 8 & & & 14(b) 333,646 135,990
Derivative financial instruments $7T4& £ @ T & 24 18,211 -
Tax payable FE{JF718 363,200 184,392
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5t /8 #8877 & E b & 2k 26 2,004,306 =
Total current liabilities 7 &) & (& 4258 30,142,838 16,220,468
NET CURRENT ASSETS R8I & &R E 10,345,416 11,409,459
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES & E £ ERREN & & 26,851,535 24,954,814
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 3EimEh & (&
Deferred tax liabilities ¥ iE %1 18 & (& 27 394,633 403,899
Lease liabilities & & & 14(b) 591,275 373,775
Deferred income & FE Uz A 25 230,558 150,037
Total non-current liabilities FE7R B) & B 4258 1,216,466 927,711
Net assets & & F1E 25,635,069 24,027,103
EQUITY #E25
Share capital B%7< 28 4,052,228 4,052,228
Other reserves H b {# 29 21,582,841 19,974,875
Total equity # #4858 25,635,069 24,027,103
Wang Chuan-fu Wang Nian-giang
FEE Fam
Director Director
o EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY .)2
B EEEHR

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #{ 2 = FE - —# 1+ = A =1—HIEFZ

Fair value
reserve of
financial
assets at
fair value
through other Statutory Exchange
Share | comprehensive Contributed surplus fluctuation Retained
capital income surplus reserve reserve profits
URAEE
ERLEA
HRaREN EE
k& | ArEERE B4Es BoEE | NERIRE BEE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
7 T NS ARETT ARETT
(note 28)
(fi:28)
At 1 Janvary 2021 R=E=—%-F-A 4,062,028 (204y (46,323 981,445 (174 467 17,459,614 221229
Profit for the year & &7 - - - - - 2,309,882 2,309,882
Changes in fair value of receivables financing EXGUBRE N AL BEED - 8,742 = = = = (8,742)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
REENEBNELZE = = = = (3,308) = (3,308)
Total comprehensive income for the year AE &4 EEE = 8,742 = = (3,308) 2,300,882 2,097,832
Final 2020 diidend ~Z-EER SRS = = = = = (543,022) (543,029)
Transfer to statutory surplus reserve EAZ A F BE RS - = = 19448 = (19,448) =
At 31 December 2021 R=E=—F+-f=1-H 4,052,208 (8,946) (46,329 1,000,898° (177,778) 19,207,026° 24,027,103
Profit for the year £ 7] - - - - - 1,857,618 1857618
Changes in fai value of recelvables financing FER S RE B0 4 BER = (7,607) = = = = (7,607)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
REENEBOELZE - = = = 0,965) = (9,989)
Total comprehensive income for the year AE A EEE = (7.607) = = 9,965) 1,857,618 1,840,046
Fingl 2021 dividend ~B=—E KBRS - - = = = (232,080) (232,00)
At 31 December 202 ¥ =E-—#+-f=1-H 4,052,028 (16,553)" (46,323 1,000,893 (187,740)* 20,832,564" 25,635,069
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

S

B REEEHR
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #{Z2 = FE - —# 1+ = A =1—HIEFZ

Notes:

(@ In accordance with the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) Company Law
and the articles of association of the Company’s subsidiaries, each of the
Company’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC is required to appropriate 10% of
the annual statutory net profit after tax (after offsetting any prior years’ losses)
to its statutory surplus reserve. When the balance of this reserve reaches 50%
of its capital, any further appropriation is optional. The statutory surplus reserve
can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to increase capital. However, the
balance of the statutory surplus reserve must be maintained at a minimum of
25% of capital after this usage.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of
RMB21,582,841,000 (2021: RMB19,974,875,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EHRERER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #{ 2 = FE - —# 1+ = A =1—HIEFZ

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES &/ E B E AR ST E

2022
—E-=

RMB’000
ARBT T

2021
=B
RMB’000
ARETTT

Profit before tax 5 Al & 1,938,570 2,465,293
Adjustments for: F# :
Finance costs &% AR 58,531 43,329
Interest income  F 2 HLA 5 (51,507) (79,598)
Government grants and subsidies BT 8 B & f# B 7 (31,436) (63,041)
Losses on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment
HEWE - KERREHEBNER 6 31,963 21,883
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
M BERREBITE 6 2,562,588 2,255,103
Amortisation of other intangible assets £ fth £ fi7 & 2 # 6 3,476 3,850
Depreciation of right-of-use assets £ L ETE 6 350,820 298,053
Impairment of trade receivables, net fE U & 5 sk TR B/ FE 6 3,341 (8,148)
Impairment of receivables financing, net & W FX I8 Bt & HY R (B 58 6 15 92
Impairment of other receivables, net £ b & U 85 FOR (B % 58 15 (163) 271
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value 737 &R 2= ] £ 38 % (8 6 74,476 320,611
Fair value (gains)/losses, net: 27 BE M),/ BEFRE
Derivative instruments $74 T & 6 18,211 (587)
Other non-current financial assets B 3E R &4 B & & 6 636 178
4,959,521 5,257,289
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Q\ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EHEERER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #{Z2 = FE - —# 1+ = A =1—HIEFZ

2022

—E-—

RMB’000
ARBT T

2021
=B
RMB’000
ARET T

Increase in inventories 17 & 14 N (6,553,633) (3,996,503)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables fE U E 5 B8R =k (38 h0) 6l > (1,234,401) 5,159,265
Increase in receivables financing & W I8 B & 52 0 (2,368,517) (2,907,598)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, other receivables and other assets

B RIE - At EUERR R E B ER L (80) 298,773 (425,669)
Increase in trade and bills payables &1 & 5 B 71 K J& (< Z= 5 3% 1 10,303,751 3,601,247
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and other liabilities

H i BRR R H b & EE I, O ) 583,567 (360,036)
Increase in deferred income & iE A IE AN 111,957 66,024
Cash generated from operations 4% & & 4 K38 & 6,101,018 6,394,019
Interest received 2 Y F & 51,507 79,598
Tax paid 2N Fi7E (191,317) (138,642)
Net cash flows from operating activities #&& & /E B EAL IR &R = /FE 5,961,208 6,334,975
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES &/ EBIEA RS R E

Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment

BEWE  BELREBEREE (4,174,628) (3,928,749)
Purchases of items of leasehold land included in right-of-use assets

BEACAEEENHEELMIRR (70,644) (111,817)
Purchases of other intangible assets i & Hith 2 & &= 16 (2,436) (4,694)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, plant and equipment

HEME - BFE R&HEBNMERIA 137,846 36,641

Purchases of equity investments ¥ & A% i1 & (180,000) (155,800)
Proceeds from disposal of equity investments & I & #) BT 15 F0E 13,779 =
Receipt of loan to the ultimate holding company Y ZI| & #% 4% B A% 5 & 53¢ = 400,000

Net cash flows used in investing activities ¥ & /AT AR &R &/ FE (4,276,083) (3,764,419)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
EHBREERER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #{ 2 = FE - —# 1+ = A =1—HIEFZ

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Bt & /E SR & n &

2022
—E-=

RMB’000
ARBT T

2021
=B
RMB’000
ARETTT

New bank loans ¥7847E 5k 2,764,507 877,054
Repayment of bank loans £R17 & FUE K (755,159) (2,868,498)
Interest paid B 1 F| 2 (8,042) (14,850)
Lease payments 3z - 1 & 318 14(b) (341,266) (295,814)
Dividend paid 2 A% 2 (232,080) (543,022)
(Increase)/decrease in pledged deposits and restricted bank deposits

BB R R ZRIRITEREG M), 5 333,112 (353,258)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities

MEEBME FTR)REREFE 1,761,072 (3,198,388)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

BekBESEEWEM (D) FE 3,446,197 (627,832)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year £ #138 & M IR & & (EY) 2,824,741 3,465,889
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [E R ZB)H) 22 2 - JFE (27,260) (13,316)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

FREG LR EEY 6,243,678 2,824,741

0 2022 3R o LEBEF (BB ER AR
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1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
The Company was incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability on
14 June 2007.

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 20 December 2007.

The registered office of the Company is located at part of Unit 1712,
17th Floor, Tower 2, Grand Central Plaza, No. 138 Shatin Rural
Committee Road, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Group is a global leading platform-based high-end manufacturing
enterprise, providing customers with product design and development,
parts and components as well as complete machine manufacturing,
supply chain management, logistics, after-sales and other one-stop
services. The Group engages in businesses covering smart phones,
tablet PCs, new energy vehicles, residential energy storage, smart
home, game hardware, unmanned aerial vehicles, Internet of Things,
robotics, communication equipment, health devices and other
diversified market areas.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company
of the Company is Golden Link Worldwide Limited, an enterprise
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, and the ultimate holding
company of the Company is BYD Company Limited, a company
established in the PRC whose H shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange and A shares are listed on the Main Board of Shenzhen
Stock Exchange.
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARAIREEERE)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries BEMNE QR ER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: AAREZHBARMNFBLT ¢
Place of
incorporation or Issued ordinary/  Percentage of equity
registration and registered attributable to the
Company name operations share capital Company Principal activities
RRER ERRIRBDR BRALER/ A0AEGERASL FEEER
BEwH A RA
Direct Indirect
EE E
Lead Wealth International Limited (‘Lead Wealth”) British Virgin Islands US$50,000 - 100 Investment holding
(EHRERAR A )™ SEENHE 50,000% 7T REAR
FRARFRAR (M)
BYD Precision Manufacture Co., Ltd. (‘BYD Precision”) PRC/Mainland China US$145,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of mobile
(bR ERERR AR PE/PERL 145,000,000% 7T handset components, modules and
HEEERREERAT (N EES]) other products
BERHETRIN  BAR
HihEm
Huizhou BYD Electronic Co., Limited (*Huizhou Electronic”)  PRC/Mainland China US$110,000,000 - 100 High-level assembly
EMLERETERAR)" e/ RERD 110,000,000 0 kTR
BN EAETERAR(ENET)
BYD India Private Limited (‘BYD India”)™* India INR2,562,804,780 - 100 Manufacture and sale of mobile
BYD India Private Limited([BYD IndiaJ)*** HE 2562,804,780E handset components and modules,

manufacture and sale of battery,
charger, iron-phosphate batteries
used in electric bus, electric truck,
electric car, electric forklift and its
components & spare parts, building
and maintaining monorall projects
REREETFRBANEAR B
REEEHLLAE  EHEE -
E9AE  EHXNERATHAM
BBt 78R BEEEH 2
EREEEYER
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of
incorporation or Issued ordinary/
registration and registered
Company name operations share capital
ARER EMAEIRERR BRALER/
BEHY EfBRA
Xi'an BYD Electronic Co., Limited (“Xi"an Electronic’) PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000
BERUTRETERAR) hE/HERD AR 100,000,000
ARNTHETERARA(ARET)"
BYD (Changsha) Electronic Co., Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000

(‘Changsha Electronic’) (RY L BREFERAR)  HE/HEAL AR #50,000,0007C
EOHSEETARDAIRDES])

BYD (Shaoguan) Electronic Co., Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000
(‘Shaoguan Electronic’) (FREELL EE TEB AR VA AE#30,000,0007C
REnasTERAR(HEZE T

*

These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under
PRC law.

Huizhou Electronic is registered as a Sino-foreign joint venture under PRC law.

These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under
foreign law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.
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Percentage of equity

attributable to the

Company Principal activities

RAAEGREROL  TERE

*

ok

Hkk

Direct Indirect

E# [}

- 100 Manufacture and sale of mobile
handsst components

RERBETHIH

- 100 Manufacture and sale of mobile
handset components

BERHETHBIT

- 100 Manufacture and sale of mobile
handset components

RERBETHRIH
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for certain equity investments designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, receivables financing and derivative
financial instruments, which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022. A subsidiary is
an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled
by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results
in control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it
has power over an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (jii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

@ BYD ELECTRONIC (INTERNATIONAL) COMPANY LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2022 ——e

21 mAREE ()

B OFEE ()
B 8 B R AN 2 ] 9 B 7S $R AR A0 RS HI A
HE - ARA—HEHHRER - HBQ
AINEREMASERGEHE BEFE
PEARR - MBS HAREZ TR R
2B RIE -

B RkEMES W SEXEBD IEBR
AEEFREHEAARIFERER - BIE
HRSIBFEREREBRER - BEX
SEKBERARZHEARZHNMESEARNRT]
MEENAE #%5 KA RAXERE
MEBNE GK B R 2HEHE -

WEFE RBERBR L e = @i H FH =
A A% A EHRES - MAKERE
HAEERNEFNREHR - BRI
P HE i 3% A B (W OR R K I )
ARERZHNE

i ANE B L EEH B AR TG E - A E
HEERER)ZMNBARNEE(BIEEE) &
BUE (i) fr] FE 12 B R 25 A9 BR TE B R (i) 7R
BEANTEMNRIRSHEE  TRBEME
ROFTUWREHDREE  ()FTIREEAE
B R B E R (i) r] H b E AR &Rk
518 o AT RN E MR G WE AR ASE
EELSBHEFT OB ABENB T HEF (10
WA MREBENEEENAEEEEHE
HEAEESBEMRERIEERR -



2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time
for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:

Proceeds before Intended Use
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts = Cost of Fulfiling a Contract

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
Hlustrative Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond
30 June 2021 (early adopted)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are applicable
to the Group are described below:

(@)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to the previous
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting (the “Conceptual Framework”) issued in
June 2018 without significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition
principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to
determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would
be within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they
were incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS
37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual
Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent
assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The
Group has applied the amendments prospectively to business
combinations that occurred on or after 1 January 2022. As there
were no contingent assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities within
the scope of the amendments arising in the business combination
that occurred during the year, the amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position and performance of the Group.

BTN
o

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 ¥R 3% B &

31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

228 TR RIKENEE

AEEERAFENPBRRERXEAT
SIRMERT KB B B S 2R -

(EBHBREERD
EORAEHT
(EERIERD E

SRR

VE  BERRE  EREH

165 015 E] BHFTZHE

(BAEGTENE BRAR-ETARNKE
STRMIEE]

(BARUBRERER) (BEUFREEE 7
“E-\FEZT (BEUBHLER)E
“EENFENE % (BEYFREEE

161G BRI R (B
SPEA) B4 AL

(BAUMBREER) —F-—FANA=+HEYT

F1BHAERT WX Z EE(REH

)

BERRAKENEE(EEMHREE
ADEEE R EMT

(@) (FBBHMBMEER)FEIRAIETT A=
E-NFERNARBGOSI R KRS
SER(HSAER D) RS R &
HEAmRRZIIER - MBENEE
HEERTE - ZFERIMA(REMH
HEEA) FEIRA BRI A TAER
NEEBKREELRBZIAT ZHER
RAPER—BPISMER - ZBIIMER
BT - BRAEEBR(E B ERD
FITRI(ER (EREUNBRERES
Eg)- 2B)E2NRBEANAEBR
FARBEMNE  HWEZFRAEBEFE
EMFREBHEHTEL - AEACE
BMBREER) FIRHERED R
2E(BFR G L) EITHI(EFR
(BB BHRERBERES)- 2B F
215% - MIEBMSIER © Bbod - ZFE
AIBRBHUREENKRBERHITA
Rl - AEBEER T - —F—
A—BRHZBEBENEBEHEYE
RZEER] - BERFRBLENEBRE
U BELETBEANNLAEE -
BERIAEBE  HERFETLES
RSB ) B SO R RIRE S EAF
@,

P

MR 2022 4 o LEME T (ER)ERAE > : }



s

e

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 3R R B 5

31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

S

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)
(b) Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from

the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds
from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management. Instead, an entity
recognises the proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost
of those items as determined by HKAS 2 Inventories, in profit or
loss. The Group has applied the amendments retrospectively to
items of property, plant and equipment made available for use
on or after 1 January 2021. Since there was no sale of items
produced prior to the property, plant and equipment being
available for use, the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of
fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the
contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract include both the
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and
materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to
fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge
for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling
the contract as well as contract management and supervision
costs). General and administrative costs do not relate directly to
a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable
to the counterparty under the contract. The Group has applied
the amendments prospectively to contracts for which it has not
yet fulfilled all its obligations at 1 January 2022 and no onerous
contracts were identified. Therefore, the amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.
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2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)
(d) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out

(€

amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendment that is applicable to the Group are as follows:

e HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new
or modified financial liability are substantially different from
the terms of the original financial liability. These fees include
only those paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower
or lender on the other’s behalf. The Group has applied the
amendment prospectively from 1 January 2022. As there was
no modification or exchange of the Group’s financial liabilities
during the year, the amendment did not have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends the
availability of the practical expedient for lessees to elect not
to apply lease modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic by
12 months. Accordingly, the practical expedient applies to rent
concessions for which any reduction in lease payments affects
only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022, provided
the other conditions for applying the practical expedient are met.
The amendment is effective retrospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with any cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendment recognised as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained profits at the beginning of the
current accounting period. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has early adopted the amendment on 1 January
2021. However, the Group has not received covid-19-related rent
concessions and plans to apply the practical expedient when it
becomes applicable within the allowed period of application.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

—_

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture®

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
(the “2020 Amendments’)?

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Definition of Accounting Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

3  No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

4 As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of the
2020 Amendments was deferred to annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024. In addition, as a consequence of the 2020 Amendments
and 2022 Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to align the
corresponding wording with no change in conclusion
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS
28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss resulting from a downstream
transaction when the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain
or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of amendments
to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in
January 2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be determined
after the completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for
adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or
non-current, in particular the determination over whether an entity
has a right to defer settlement of the liabilities for at least 12 months
after the reporting period. Classification of a liability is unaffected by
the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement
of the liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a settlement of a liability. In 2022, the HKICPA issued the
2022 Amendments to further clarify that, among covenants of a liability
arising from a loan arrangement, only those with which an entity must
comply on or before the reporting date affect the classification of that
liability as current or non-current. In addition, the 2022 Amendments
require additional disclosures by an entity that classifies liabilities
arising from loan arrangements as non-current when it has a right
to defer settlement of those liabilities that are subject to the entity
complying with future covenants within 12 months after the reporting
period. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permitted. An entity that applies the 2020 Amendments
early is required to apply simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and
vice versa. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require
entities to disclose their material accounting policy information rather
than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information
is material if, when considered together with other information included
in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory
guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier application is
permitted. Since the guidance provided in the amendments to HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for these
amendments is not necessary. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial statements
that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also
clarify how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates
that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies to transactions that
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such
as leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are
required to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient
taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences arising from these transactions. The amendments
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions related to leases
and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect recognised
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits or other
component of equity as appropriate at that date. In addition, the
amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions other
than leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability
to create outputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its listed equity investments and derivative
financial instruments at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, deferred
tax assets and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion
of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters
building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the
smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwiill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss
is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person,
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiy is a member of the key management personnel of the Group
or of a parent of the Group;

or
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:
(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity
is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or
to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value
over its estimated useful life. The principal estimated useful lives and
residual value are as follows:

Estimated useful lives
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Residual value

FerEE

Freehold land

KAFRE LI

Buildings

BF

Leasehold improvements
HEMEEE

Machinery and equipment
e RiE

Office equipment and fixtures
MAEREBREE

Motor vehicles

W

Not depreciated

W AT E

10 to 70 years

102704

Over the shorter of the lease terms and 5 years
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3to 12 years
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5 years and below
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3to 5 years
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress representing property, plant and equipment
under construction is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and
is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during
the period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The
useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)
Software

Software is stated at cost less any impairment losses and is amortised
on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of one to five
years.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these criteria
is expensed when incurred.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the
assets as follows:

Leasehold land
Buildings
Machinery and other equipment

44 to 99 years
110 20 years
110 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end
of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of
the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate the lease.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b) Lease liabilities (Continued)
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases of office
equipment and laptop computers that are considered to be of low
value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessor (Continued)

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on
the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception of
trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4TS HEREE)
POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued) BRERHEMESBEE (&)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued) A ERRETE (B

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised, modified or impaired.

{ : :: }—<" BYD ELECTRONIC (INTERNATIONAL) COMPANY LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2022 ——e

RIEE BB E AEE R AN A R A BIERT
BU ARG REETORLE
FELERINEAERAREBELRAEFE
([SPPINMRERE » REREIWIFSPPI
MEMEENAABEFELFABRRED
BNETE - PmEEBEA M o

AEEERETREENRGENEHLERE
HeRMEEAELRSREN TN - X5
BEXBTReNESERBNESRRS
mE - HESREE AMERA o U#
BRADBERFAENEREEREERA
TREERAWMERRERENEHE
AFHE  MARABESBERFEL
AHMGA RGN EMEEN S ERB N
WEBERRERERHENEHEA DT
B WHREAXRBEARENESREE
URAREEDIBRGELF AR -

FIE—REENESREEMNR S B (BIX
SEAHEEZEENHE) TIARER - —
REBNEZR-—RTEREXEHEE
—EHMEARNEENEREERSE -

SREENRBHERTFHATHAM

E .

NEBRK AT B2 A E(BETR)
NS AGENEREERRERER
MEEFE - WRRNRE - EEERKLE
R BETSORER - e REERER
RPHER ©



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (debt
instruments)

For receivables financing, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment
losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
and computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured
at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair
value change recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled
to the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when
the right of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group
and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial
asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial asset host
together with the embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

BTN
o

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 ¥R 3% B &

31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

2AE RS BRBEE)

RERHMEMEE ()

UR A BEF B AR MRS KT
MEEBHETR)

SLENGRIRREM S - EAERRBERS
BRBOPERRT R - WIREL
RAFENEREEERNTAFE - &
BRARBEEINHEME S KRS HER -
RIETERE - REMRS KRa T RN R
AR BEESHENTABER

URABEFEBIARZNEMEE
NRRBEAEYFABRENEREETD
A BERBBERRAKRIEE  XHAA
EBENESFENBERER

% FB Bl B FE 7N 6% [ 3 4 S A AR SH 0 1 DA
ARnBEAEYFARLMEGESKREETS
BHOTETAREARE - 2BERNUAR
EBEFEIFABRSIBRARENKESHE
SAHERES. - BB E B 2 RN & Al e
MAREBERE S RBEEHARSETER -
MR BmR T ERSEMBA -

REARRNZEEAEREETBANRARN
TETAYTE@BUIR eHEETR
BERRAATETAERRESARARA
BEFELFABRENEREE -

P

MR 2022 4 o LEME T (ER)ERAE > : }



T

e

ﬁ\‘ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 3R R B 5

31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

For receivables financing at fair value through other comprehensive
income, the Group applies the low credit risk simplification. At each
reporting date, the Group evaluates whether the receivables financing
are considered to have low credit risk using all reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort.
In making that evaluation, the Group reassesses the external credit
ratings of the accepting bank of receivables financing. It is the Group’s
policy to measure ECLs on such instruments on a 12-month basis.
However, when there has been a significant increase in credit risk of
receivables financing since origination, the allowance will be based on
the lifetime ECL.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4TS HEREE)
POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) SREERMEGE
General approach (Continued) —HET = (4E)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

Receivables financing and financial assets at amortised cost are
subject to impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except
for trade receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities issued by a group entity are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payable, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, and derivative financial
instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group
that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by HKFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or
loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward
currency contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risk. Those derivative
financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date
on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the
fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives
are taken directly to the statement of profit or loss, except for the
effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in other
comprehensive income and later reclassified to profit or loss when the
hedged item affects profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Cost of moulds is
determined at the actual cost incurred in the production process. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits and assets similar in nature to cash, which are
not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of certain
industrial products for general repairs of defects occurring during
the warranty period. Provisions for these assurance-type warranties
granted by the Group are recognised based on sales volume and
past experience of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to their
present values as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to the statement of profit
or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and released to the statement of profit or loss by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

The Group sells products to a customer who is also the supplier
of key materials used in the manufacturing of products. The Group
obtains the control of the materials purchased from the customer and
provides significant services to integrate materials with other goods
and services into a portfolio of outputs. The Group considered itself as
a principal in the arrangement and accordingly recognises revenue on
a gross basis.

(a) Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally
on delivery and acceptance of the goods.

(b) Provision for services
Revenue from the provision of services is recognised over the
scheduled period on an input method because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group. Other provision of services is recognized at the point in
time when control of the services is transferred to the customer.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits

Medical benefits

The Group’s contributions to various defined contribution medical
benefit plans organised by the relevant municipal and provincial
governments in the PRC are expensed as incurred.

Pension scheme — Mainland China

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries, which operate in Mainland
China, are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to
the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension scheme.

Pension scheme — outside Mainland China

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to various defined
contribution plans organised by the relevant governmental authorities
in various areas other than Mainland China. The Group’s liability in
respect of these plans is limited to the contributions payable at the end
of each period. Contributions to these plans are expensed as incurred.

Housing fund — Mainland China

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to a defined contribution
housing fund plan operated by the local municipal government.
Contributions to this plan by the Group are expensed as incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are
disclosed in the note 37 to the financial statements.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

The Group treats specific inter-company loan balances, which are
not intended to be repaid in the foreseeable future, as part of its
net investment. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in the statement of profit or loss as part of
the gain or loss on sale.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any
fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Principal versus agent considerations

The Group sells products to a customer who is also the supplier of key
materials used in the manufacturing of products. The Group needs to
determine whether it is a principal or an agent in these transactions by
evaluating the nature of its promise to the customer. The Group is a
principal and therefore records revenue on a gross basis if it controls
promised goods before transferring the goods to the customer.
Otherwise, the Group is an agent and records as revenue the net
amount that it retains for its agency services if its role is to arrange to
provide the goods. To assess whether the Group controls the goods
before they are transferred to the customer, the Group has considered
various factors, including but not limited to whether the Group (i) is
the primary obligor in the arrangement, (i) has general inventory risk,
(i) has latitude in establishing the selling price and (iv) has significant
involvement in the determination of product and service specifications.

Deferred tax on withholding tax arising from the distributions of
dividends

The Group’s determination as to whether to accrue for withholding
taxes arising from the distributions of dividends from certain
subsidiaries levied in the relevant tax jurisdiction is subject to
judgement on the timing of the payment of the dividends. Further
details are included in note 27 to the financial statements.
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3.

188

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on aging for groupings of
various customer segments that have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust
the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information.
For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic
products) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can
lead to an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector,
the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is
disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-use assets) at the
end of each reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested
for impairment annually and at other times when such an indicator
exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Depreciation

The Group calculates the depreciation of items of property, plant and
equipment on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives
after taking into account their estimated residual value, estimated
useful lives, commencing from the date the items of property, plant
and equipment are placed into use. The estimated useful lives
reflect the directors’ estimate of the period that the Group intends to
derive future economic benefits from the use of the Group’s items of
property, plant and equipment.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing, and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. Further details are
included in note 27 to the financial statements.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Write-down of inventories based on the lower of cost and net realisable
value

The Group, pursuant to the accounting policy for inventories, writes
down inventories from cost to net realisable value and makes provision
for slow-moving items and obsolescence by using the lower of cost
and net realisable value rule. The Group makes estimates of the
selling prices, the costs of completion, and the costs to be incurred in
disposal based on the historical experience and the prevailing market
conditions.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease,
and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would
have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when
no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not
enter into financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to
reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases
are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates
the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such
as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s primary business is the manufacture, assembly and sale
of mobile handset components, modules and other products. For
management purposes, the Group is organised into one operating
segment based on industry practice and management’s vertical
integration strategy. Management monitors the results of the Group as
a whole for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation
and performance assessment. No further analysis thereof is presented.
Segment performance is evaluated based on the revenue and profit
before tax which is consistent with the Group’s revenue and profit
before tax.

Geographical information
(a) Revenue from external customers

PRC (including Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan)

"~
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Bt 5 ¥R 3% B &

31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

EE 5 BER
AEENFEXEBAEE  EERHEEF
HER M E@&Eﬁﬂ%uu ﬁi&ﬁ%fi
REBRTHEENREREERRS KK
A —ERED R OAEEI' %%ﬁ‘ilﬁ’]
%%ﬁ%i At E IR D Bd R R A E R

cMIEE—FHRILERDNT - DHERR
*EEH&A&%%%%?E&?’NJ(Eﬁ%IE’UH&U\&
BRTL AR A —BO R o

HERER
@) KESNREF KA

2022 2021
—E=E-= —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT

FE(BEES RIS E 40,583,926 41,222 478
Overseas &4 66,602,362 47,834,500
107,186,288 89,056,978

The revenue information above is based on the locations of the
customers.

(b) Non-current assets

PRC (including Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan)

BRWABR T ZEFHRE D -

b) FRBEE

2022 2021
—E_— —EF - —F

=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT

FE(BEEE BRI E 14,559,639 12,455,222
Overseas /84h 1,129,326 718,471
15,688,965 13,173,693

The non-current asset information above is based on the locations
of the assets and excludes equity investments and deferred tax
assets.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. &% 7 &% 8 (&)

Information about major customers FEEFEHR
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years accounting for BHAFE  WAEAEEAHEEH10%H)
over 10% of the total sales of the Group is as follows: ZEEMT
2022
—E=-=
RMB’000
AR®T T
Customer A’ & P A 47,357,764
Customer B' & FB! 11,528,097
58,885,861
2021
—E-—F
RMB’000
ARBTIT
Customer AT B F A 34,663,598
Customer B' & F B 22,635,933
57,299,531
T Revenue from major customers comes from the sale of mobile handset T FERFMIRAREREE FEIMG
components, modules and other products. HREAMER -
5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. KA - Htl A R Yz
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WARDITAT

2022 2021
—E-= — = —F

= _

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREEFIT
Revenue from contracts with customers &P & R A 107,186,288 89,056,978

.—4 BYD ELECTRONIC (INTERNATIONAL) COMPANY LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2022 5
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers
(i)  Disaggregated revenue information

Segments 2 B

Types of goods or services & i 5% BR 75 48 Bl

Sale of mobile handset components, modules and other products

Bt 5 ¥R 3% B &

31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

5. WA - i A R Wz (&)
EFERWA
() PBEUAEH

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT

FRE - HAREMEREE 105,982,653 88,976,161
Rendering of services AR5 2 £ 1,203,635 80,817
Total revenue from contracts with customers B F & RU A 4258 107,186,288 89,056,978
Geographical markets 2 15

PRC (including Hong Kong, Macau, and Taiwan)

R (BEEE R E 40,583,926 41,222,478
Overseas /&4 66,602,362 47,834,500
Total revenue from contracts with customers &P & R A 4258 107,186,288 89,056,978
Timing of revenue recognition U A 7 52 B

Goods transferred at a point in time A5 i 2hdE:E 7 & 5 106,470,744 88,976,161
Services transferred over time 7 —E& B 887 2 fR 15 715,544 80,817
Total revenue from contracts with customers & P & R A 4258 107,186,288 89,056,978

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised
in the current reporting period that were included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised
from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:

B HEHRBRERVFAGRAEBERR
BEMEAE TR ZBOE T+ HE

27
P -

2022 2021
—_=E__ —=EF - —4F

=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT

Revenue recognised that was included in contract liabilities at the
beginning of the reporting period: KR &S BFIET AE R B E 2 MAFER
Sale of mobile handset components, modules and other products*®
FHE  BEARHMERHEE 460,099

359,075

MR 2022 3R o LEBEF (BB ER AR
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (Continued) 5.
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
(i) Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

The transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December
2022 are as follows:

WA - Efi AR W ()

EFEaRWA (&)
(i) EAIELT

AEBZBHOEEERBANT -

R-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HHE=E
SN BAEEGRIEKSED ARIZERK)HY

RGBT -

2022

Sl

RMB’000
AR®T
VAT exclusive

FERED

2021

T —F
RMB’000
AREFIT
VAT exclusive
T4 ER

Within one year —4 A 661,981 469,713
More than one year —F A + 24,504 14,890
686,485 484,603

Other income E At g A

2022

Sl

RMB’000
ARBT T

2021
—E - —F
RMB’000
ARETIT

Bank interest income #R17 A 24 A 49,743 65,987
Other interest income H 5 8 U A 1,764 13,611
Sale of scrap and materials & EE L & ¥t 559,280 407,657
Compensation from suppliers and customers 1t /& & & & F 8 85 (8 49,605 67,828
Exchange gain [ 7 iz 673,871 =
Others Hfth 174,271 101,680

1,508,534 656,763
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRBIAIEF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): AEBBRF AN A E R GEA) THIE
15 :
2022
—E__— —=E=
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBTTT
Cost of inventories sold* Ff Hi & 17 & B pk 23 100,642,985 82,634,600
Cost of services provided $& Y AR 75 5k 25 118,559 72,602
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
ME - BB RREBITE 13 2,562,588 2,255,103
Depreciation of right-of-use assets £ & ETE 14(a) 350,820 298,053
Lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities
WARFAEEAEFENHEENKIA 14(c) 121,143 126,324
Auditors’ remuneration 1% £ kil 357 Bl 1,440 1,440
Amortisation of other intangible assets £ fth £ 12 & 2= # § 16 3,476 3,850

Employee benefit expense (excluding directors’, supervisors’ and
senior executive officers’ remuneration (note 33(c))):

BERIAX(MTERES - EERSMITHABFH M (FHEE33(c)

— Wages and salaries T & & % Bif 9,793,104 8,977,678
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions B K48 #1512 % 822,334 603,481
10,615,438 9,581,159
Impairment of trade receivables, net FE U & 5 8 ZURE B 19 3,341 (8,148)
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value*
TFEMOR 2 Al #3105 E 74,476 320,611
Impairment of other receivables, net £ 1t f& U BR ZUR(E /558 (163) 271
Impairment of receivables financing, net & 4g % T8 &t & #J8 (EF 58 15 92
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment
HEME - BERREEBNEBRE 31,963 21,883
Fair value (gains)/losses, net: ‘A 7 {BE (RS /BB - FE :
Derivative instruments $74 T & 18,211 (587)
Other non-current financial assets £t 3F 7t &< @& &= 636 178
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses, net [& 54, (W zs) /K518 © /FE (673,871) 15,806
#  Cost of inventories sold, Cost of services provided and Write-down tOHETENRAE REARERAREFE
of inventories to net realisable value represents “Cost of sales” in the MRESRFEEAMHBRRFPIHEERK
consolidated statement of profit or loss 7]
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7. GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND SUBSIDIES 7. BUSHEBI R @R
2022 2021
—E-= —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFIT
Related to assets £2& E {7
Others EAth, 31,436 63,041
Related to income E2U A 1HES
Subsidies on industrial development (note (a)) 17 3 2% & 1 84 (it 73 (a)) 10,000 369,281
Subsidies on research (note (b)) A3 4 85 (Ff 5% (b)) 3,000 13,812
Subsidies on employee stability and training (note (c))
1B B2 K53 H b (BT 5E (o) 45,673 43,998
Subsidies on operating expense & & {1 Sz 4 84 56,582 63,636
Others Hth 31,996 31,493
178,687 585,261

Notes: HteE -

(@) The item represents subsidy income obtained by subsidiaries of the Group (@ ZEEEASBZENEBRREKRFER
from the government for industrial development. Relevant expenditures BHMATKRA - AREERZE - RREH
incurred during the reporting period were recognised as government MEAMEERASEERBBITMHE -
subsidies.

(b) The item represents subsidy income obtained by subsidiaries of the Group () ZBEEEASEBZENERRAKRMFER
from the government for Research and Development expenses. Relevant SRFEARA AR - RREH
expenditures incurred during the reporting period were recognised as MEAMERARAXCERABBUTHEL
government subsidies.

(€) The item represents subsidy income obtained by subsidiaries of the Group () ZBEEHEASEBEZHENEBRRAEBRMFRE
from the government for maintaining employee stability and expansion and BB - EREBEER A TRIIE
training. Relevant expenditures incurred during the reporting period were A - RIREHBEENHBERIERAK
recognised as government subsidies. FIFERE ©

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. WE KA
An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is as follows: REFELEHRMEKEDITOT
2022

—s—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETFIT
Interest on bank borrowings %877 f& 3 51 & 12,348 14,850
Interest on lease liabilities & & &5 & 46,183 28,479
58,531 43,329
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executives’ remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as
follows:

Bt 5 ¥R 3% B &

31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

EERRETHRASHMH

FRNEERRSTHRAENHHEE LT
A (BB QALY EE383(1)(a) * (b)
CRMIE  UERAREBREENZER) R
BIZE2HBHFETRMT -

2022 2021

—E-—F —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBT T

Fees #8& 600 600
Other emoluments: - th 3 B -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & ~ 285 & B ¥ F %5 13,293 12,121

Pension scheme contributions & {4 51 21 3k 80 56

13,373 12177

13,973 12,777

There were no discretionary bonuses or compensation paid for loss of
office or as inducement to join the Company for directors during the
year (2021: Nil).

(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the
year were as follows:

FABEREE D B A BIBIEAL S BER
BEIXMARRBNER(—FT - —F:
&) o

(@) BYFHITES
REAZNTEIUFNTESTNES
o -

2022

— =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETTT
Mr. Mampilly, Antony Francis Mampilly, Antony Francist 4= 200 200
Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John $ZEBI 3 5t 4 200 200
Mr. Qian Jing-jie #5554 200 200
600 600

There was no other emolument payable to the independent non-
executive directors during the year (2021: Nil).

0 2022 3R o LEBEF (BB ER AR

RAREE  EERABIIFNTES
XHEMEM( T =—F : &) -

) —



-
S

Bt 75 3R R B 5

31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors

{2k
RMB’000
ARBT T

31 December 2022
—E-__F+=-AHA=+-—H

Executive directors: #I{TE=% :

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9. EEREZBTHRAESEHME

(b) ITEERFATES

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
in kind

& - FEBE
REYR=
RMB’000
ARET T

Pension
scheme
contributions
BARE

s &I AR
RMB’000
AR¥ET T

Total
remuneration

HEfeE
RMB’000
ARBT T

Mr. Wang Nian-giang E/&58 5 4 = 8,781 40 8,821
Mr. Jiang Xiang-rong ;L [A148 % 4 = 4,512 40 4,552
- 13,293 80 13,373
Non-executive directors: EHITEE :
Mr. Wang Chuan-fu E{&4g5t 4 - - - -
Mr. Wang Bo T35t 4 - - - -
31 December 2021
T —f+-A=t+—H
Executive directors: $1{TE& % :
Mr. Wang Nian-giang £ /&58 5 4 - 8,060 28 8,088
Mr. Jiang Xiang-rong ;T [A) 48 5 4 = 4,061 28 4,089
- 12,121 56 12,177
Non-executive directors: JEITE S :
Mr. Wang Chuan-fu F{E@&5t4E - - - -
Mr. Wang Bo E 354 = = - -
There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief REAFERREEIZRITHRAER

executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
The five highest paid employees during the year included two (2021:
two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 9
above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining three
(2021: three) non-directors and highest paid employees are as follows:

Bt 5 ¥R 3% B &

31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

10. i BREFHHES

RAFEAR  AEERSHFMEEREMA
“ECFMRA)EF  EFMFRH
MR - AFREEB=R(ZF=—
FZR)FEFRESFMESNOFHF
BESIT

2022 2021
—EgE-= —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind #r& 284 & B ¥ H|Z 7,469 7,285
Pension scheme contributions 32k 4 51214 7k 119 84
7,588 7,369

There were no discretionary bonuses or compensation paid for loss
of office or as inducement to join the Company for the above highest
paid employees during the year (2021: Nil).

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

RMB2,500,001 to RMB3,000,000 A R #2,500,0017c 2 A R #3,000,0007T
RMB2,000,001 to RMB2,500,000 A R #2,000,0017tE A R #2,500,0007T

Number of employees
EEAH
2022 2021
—ZE_— - —4F
2
1

FRMER LTSS HFMNES I MIMAB
BEIEAT S BB i E E I AR R Ry 88 E) (=
T—F ) o

BUTHMWEENEESETSHIMEE A
g /(1 N

2
1

3 3
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31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

11.INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising
in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of the Group are
domiciled and operate.

Under the relevant income tax law, the PRC subsidiaries are subject
to corporate income tax (“CIT”) at a statutory rate of 25% on their
respective taxable income during the year.

BYD Precision renewed its status of a high and new technology
enterprise in 2021, and was entitled to a reduced enterprise income
tax rate of 15% from 2021 to 2023.

Huizhou Electronic renewed its status of a high and new technology
enterprise in 2021, and was entitled to a reduced enterprise income
tax rate of 156% from 2021 to 2023.

Xi'an Electronic which operates in Mainland China was entitled
to a reduced enterprise income tax rate of 15% of the estimated
assessable profits for the year pursuant to the Western Development
Policy.

Shantou Electronic was approved to be a high and new technology

enterprise in 2020, and was entitled to a reduced enterprise income
tax rate of 15% from 2020 to 2022.

BYD India is subject to income tax at a rate of 26% (2021: 26%).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .)2
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31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

11.INCOME TAX (Continued) 11. T S8 (&)
The major components of the income tax expense for the year are as FRATEHRAZAEZHEKIH 50
follows: ™

2022
—E-=

RMB’000
ARBT T

Current — China BN&f — &

——
—=_

RMB’000
AREETIT

Charge for the year £ A H 366,671 264,536
Current — Elsewhere BHA — E b it & 3,454 1,040
Deferred (note 27) #EE (Fi5£27) (289,173) (110,165)
Total tax charge for the year F RF I8 7 HH 4258 80,952 155,411
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at BRRARR REKIBDHEBRBIRATE
the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the Company and the AIVARE R 120K TE B 2 51 5 89 bR 5 518 71 BY
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the MIEX HEEER R EONHIE HH
effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e., the B UREAMREREVEEHRR) BEEREH
statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate, are as follows: REERWOT ¢
2022
—E_— - =F
RMB’000 % RMB’000
AR®T T % | ARETT
Profit before tax B ¢ Al 4 Tl 1,938,570 2,465,293
Tax at the applicable tax rate %8 FA % &+ & M 18 484,643 25 616,323 25
Lower tax rate for specific provinces or enacted by
local authority & 7E & 17 3k & Hh i B8 & e 2 BRI 2 (255,312) (13)  (257,4098) (10)
Expenses not deductible for tax -~ A] #1753 &9 5 &2 28,546 1 26,851 1
Research and development costs and other
super-deduction as required by taxation laws
T 70 B 5 B AR IR Bt B A R 2 RT AN 40 (313,168) (16) (293,809 (12)
Tax losses utilised from previous periods
ERM AT EBMTIBER (47,156) () (53,437) ©)
Tax losses and deductible differences not recognised
AERTEEBEBR LA NN ER 183,399 9 116,891 5
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate
BRASEEBRRERARENOHRE L 80,952 4 155,411 6
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31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. 83 R EEREREEARBGEER
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 27
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount for the year is FRABRERRBNTIIRFEANE R B EER
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders EaFEE ARG RFAREITLREE
of the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of hntEFH 2,258, 204 SOOHx(_EZ—i :
2,253,204,500 (2021: 2,253,204,500) in issue during the year. 2,253,204,5000%) 5T &
No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share HE_T-_—_FR-_ZFT-_—F+-_A=+
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 —HBIEFE p#EEmsHERREN
in respect of a dilution as the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary BREXRERN - TRAARE lEﬁZ%iF;I’E
shares in issue during those years. EARMEETE S 2N BITEER -
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on: BREXRRFIRATEEHE :

2022
—E__F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT

Earnings Z |
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent,
used in the basic earnings per share calculation

AR EERERABNNF QR EBRERTE AREZHN 1,857,618 2,309,882

Number of shares
8 E

Shares &3
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year

used in the basic earnings per share calculation
ARG ESRERBINFAL BT ERRIMNETHE 2,253,204,500 2,253,204,500
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31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 413 - BERRE

Freehold Machinery Office
land and Leasehold and | equipment Motor |Construction
buildings |improvements | equipment | and fixtures vehicles | in progress Total

KARE HAE
THERT | RENREE | HERRE | REREE | #BIR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 | RMB000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000
ARBTR | ARMTR [ ARBTR | ARMTR [ AR®BTR | ARMTR [ ARBTR

31 December 2022 —E==fF+=-H=1—H

At 31 December 2021 and at 1 January 2022;
AE-—F+-A=t-AR=E-_=5-f-AH:

Cost f 1,763,237 1,454,856 19,097,643 1,701,460 56,204 841,945 24,915,345
Accumulated depreciation and impairment

ZHTERRE (379,608) (601,381)  (11,666,747)  (1,053,281) (32,790) - (13,733,807)
Net carrying amount 8 /¥ (& 1,383,629 853,475 7,430,896 648,179 23,414 841,945 11,181,538

At 1 January 2022, net of accumulated depreciation
and impairment

R-E-—F-F-R HBZHHERRE 1,383,629 853,475 7,430,896 648,179 23,414 841,945 11,181,538
Additions 37 57,224 531,100 2479323 486,522 14,314 900,250 4,468,733
Disposals & o = (141,339) (2,479) 212 (513) (144,059)
Depreciation provided during the year £ RTER (57,576) (294,957)  (1,905,699) (294,833) (9,523) - (2,562,588
Exchange realignment [ 5 8% (2,005) = (375) (80) (66) (101) (2,627)
Transfers 838 554,387 = 290,487 7,067 = (851,941) =

At 31 December 2022, net of accumulated
depreciation and impairment
RIBZZE+ZA=+—R NREAFERAE 1,935,659 1,089,618 8,153,293 844,376 28,411 889,640 12,940,997

At 31 December 2022:

RZB-Zf+-fA=1+-R:
Costﬁm 2,371,487 1,985,056 21,602,174 2,124,788 65,868 889,640 29,039,913
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
ZHMERNE (435,828) (896,338) (13,448,881)  (1,280,412) (37,457) - (16,098,916)
Net carrying amount SR & 1,935,659 1,089,618 8,153,203 844,376 28,411 889,640 12,940,997
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

31 December 2021 —E-—%+-f=1+—H

At 31 December 2020 and at 1 January 2021:
R-B-FEt-A=t-AR-F-_-F-f-H:

Freehold
land and

Leasehold

buildings | improvements

KAFE
THRET | HENFRE

RMB'000

RMB'000

ARBTR | ARETR

Machinery
and
equipment

ARBTL

Office
equipment
and fixtures

(2
RMB'000
ARETT

Motor
vehicles

L]
RMB'000
ARETT

13. % - BB RRE &)

Construction
in progress

FEIR
RMB'000
ARBTT

+
RMB'000
ARBTT

Cost F A& 1,539,435 1,106,298 16,755,545 1,421,264 46,778 432312 21,301,632
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
RAMERAE (334,959) (357,089)  (10,026,277) (862,002) (28,584) - (11,608,911)
Net carrying amount Bk /% (& 1,204,476 749209 6,729,268 559,262 18,194 432312 9,692,721
At 1 January 2021, net of accumulated depreciation

and impairment
RZB-—F-F—H HBREHNERRE 1,204,476 749209 6,729,268 559,262 18,194 432312 9,692,721
Additions 237 11,872 348,558 2,093,117 333,986 12886 1014270 3,814,689
Disposals i & = = (57,765) (6,678) (1458) = (65,901)
Depreciation provided during the year AT E &/ (47,297) (244,292)  (1,718,807) (238,523 (6,184) - (2,255,103
Exchange realignment [ 5 5% (4,549) = 233 (201) (24) (327) (4,868)
Transfers &2 219,127 = 384,850 333 = (604,310) =
At 31 December 2021, net of accumulated

depreciation and impairment
RIB--F+ZA=1+-0 NBRZAMERHE 1383629 853475 7,430,896 648,179 23414 841,945 11,181,538
At 31 December 2021:
RZF--F+-A=+-R:
Cost 1,763,237 1454856 19,007,643 1,701,460 56,204 841,945 24915345
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
ZAMERNE (379,608) (601,381)  (11,666,747) (1,053,281 (32,790) - (13,733,807)
Net carrying amount & B % (& 1,383,629 853475 7,430,896 648,179 23414 841945 11,181,538
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14.LEASES 14.

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of leasehold land,
buildings and machinery and other equipment used in its operations.
Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land
from the owners with lease periods of 44 to 99 years, and no ongoing
payments will be made under the terms of these land leases. Leases
of buildings generally have lease terms between 1 and 20 years.
Machinery and other equipment generally have lease terms of 1 to
5 years and/or are individually of low value. Generally, the Group is
restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the
Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the
movements during the year are as follows:

"~

Bt 5 ¥R 3% B &

31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

HE

REBEEREBEA
AEERELERERANSBEE L
BT HMEREEEPRAANEMEER
A THESR - RIEZF L AEHRR -
A+ WAETE &+ (TR E R 44E99%F)
FIEfEH —RMEMR - B EEETHON
Ko BFTHENE—RB1E20%F - #2R
REAMBHEOEH -—RB/1ESF - R
BEREERE —&RMs  AEENEHE
AEBUINEEREEREEE -

@ RHAEAE
RER  ARBEREEENEEE
KRBT

Machinery

Leasehold and other
land Buildings | equipment Total

BFHER
HE L BF HAbk et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R | ARE TR | AR TR | ARETR
As at 1 January 2021 R=F=-—F—H—H 574,113 623,890 3,504 1,201,507
Additions &7 111,817 61,753 268 173,838
Disposals 1 & - (13,124) - (13,124)
Depreciation charge T &M X (13,021) (283,986) (1,046) (298,053)
Exchange realignment [& i, 58 22 (759) (1,818) (350) (2,927)

As at 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022

RZB_—F+-_A=+—HARZZF__F—H—H 672,150 386,715 2,376 1,061,241
Additions 378 70,644 714,357 3,143 788,144
Disposals & = (33,011) = (33,011)
Depreciation charge T &R 2 (15,591)  (334,044) (1,185)  (350,820)
Exchange realignment [& 57, 78 2 8,477 2,034 63 10,574
As at 31 December 2022 —E - —F+ - A=+—H 735,680 736,051 4,397 1,476,128
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31 DECEMBER 2022 =& = =41 —=-H=+—H

14.LEASES (Continued) 14. HE (4)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) KEBEREBAE
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during HEARGEMNREELEAN

the year are as follows:

RMB’000
ARET T

ZENT

2021
—E-—F

RMB’000
ARETTT

Carrying amount at 1 January ' — A — B 8V ERE B 509,765 735,580
New leases ¥ & 710,239 41,520
Accretion of interest recognised during the year & R #2752 &)1 0 46,183 28,479
Payments 13X (341,266) (295,814)
Carrying amount at 31 December R +—= A =+—HMEKRHEE 924,921 509,765
Analysed into: 24T 4

Current portion i 21 &5 333,646 135,990

Non-current portion JE; BB 5 591,275 373,775

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 36 to
the consolidated financial statements.

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are
as follows:

(©

HERENIHASTRA G R
=M 36N B EE -

B E A BRI AR BB
T

2022 2021

—E__F B —4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

Interest on lease liabilities T8 & & &F & 46,183 28,479

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets {§ 1 & &= BT E RS2 350,820 298,053

Expense relating to short-term leases £252 B E ARIRIF 114,027 124,854
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets

HEEEEENEABRNAX 7,116 1,470

Total amount recognised in profit or loss R85 R K 44 5 518,146 452,856
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. LEASES (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases certain of its properties and vehicles under operating
lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require
the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental
income recognised by the Group during the year was RMB32,627,000
(2021: RMB30,419,000).

At 31 December 2022, the undiscounted lease payments receivable
by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases
with its tenants are as follows:

"~

Bt 5 ¥R 3% B &

31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

14.7HE (&)

FEBEREEA G
(@) HEBIEERLRE OB REH
A1 HEE -

AEEERALRAA
AEERBECEHELHHBEETHE
LEd o  HEKR —BRERKERLHGH
& WIRIEERIRTH SRS T AHE
CHE - AEERFRAERHNHEESRAL
AR¥32,627,0000 (ZE=—F : ARK
30,419,0007T) °

R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H  XxEER
R B FH P AY N A R A 2 T S R Bk B
MR RITEEWAENROT

2022 2021

—E-—F B

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBTT

VAT not VAT not

inclusive inclusive

(TEEEER) | (TeEBER)

Within one year —&F X 39,095 14,801
After one year but within five years —F & {BRFA 18,071 439
57,166 15,240
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31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

15.PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 15. AN FIE - HbEWERR R EME
OTHER ASSETS E

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
—_E__ —E - —F

+=A=+-8| t=A=1-A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T ARBF T

Non-current portion: JEREI 2D :
Prepayments for items of property, plant and equipment

M - BB &R EIE B AR 1,263,122 921,156
Current portion: FE % :
Deposits and other receivables &4 K H i & I BR 2% 1,300,440 1,591,553
Impairment allowance Ji 1B &5 (153) (316)
1,300,287 1,591,237
Prepayments — current & (< 238 — 75 &) 57,782 65,442
1,358,069 1,656,679
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to FillEHRAMBEENEeREEEBER
receivables for which there was no recent history of default and HA P £ 45 /] 5138 K 8 HA 5108 B0 8% 19 FE Uk AR
past due amounts. At 31 December 2022, an impairment loss of R R—ZE-_—_FE+=-A=+—H "B
RMB153,000 (2021: RMB316,000) has been provided. sHRREEE ARK153,0000 (=T = —

£ 1 AR¥316,0007T) °
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31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. Htt B & &

Software

/4GS

RMB’000
ARBT T

31 December2022 —E_-__F+=-H=+—H

Cost at 1 January 2022, net of accumulated amortisation

RZE-—F—A—BHEKA ks Rt 9,758
Additions #&37 2,436
Amortisation provided during the year 4 A4 £ 7 & (3,476)
At 31 December 2022 R —ZE=-—F+-HA=+—H 8,718
At 31 December 2022: AT - —F+-A=+—H :

Cost AN 36,369
Accumulated amortisation 2 514 £ (27,651)
Net carrying amount 8k [ F(& 8,718

Software

LIS

RMB’000
ARETTT

31 December 2021 —E2-—F+—-fF=+—H

Cost at 1 January2021, net of accumulated amortisation

RZZTZ—F—A—HRKA - Tk RaTE 8,914
Additions 37 4,694
Amortisation provided during the year = A1 #4 §5 7 & (3,850)
At 31 December 2021 R —ZF - —%+-HA=+—H 9,758
At 31 December 2021 R—ZE-_—F+_-_A=+—8 :

Cost A 37,320
Accumulated amortisation 2 514 5 (27,562)
Net carrying amount 85 [ F (& 9,758
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31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

17.OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 17. M EREISRmEE

2022 2021

—E-= —E—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARBT T

Listed equity investments, at fair value 18 %E  MA R EE= = 14,415

Other unlisted investments, at fair value E 13 ET1RE - A AR EEF = 335,800 155,800

335,800 170,215
The above equity investments at 31 December 2022 were classified R —FE - —F+_A=+—HHE=
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as the Group WEDBERBARARBEFTELFTABERN
has not elected to recognise the fair value gain or loss through other CTHMEE WIHHARAEERT REZER
comprehensive income. FFAEMEEEREN AR BEYKEE

e
18.INVENTORIES 18. &

2022 2021

—E-= —E_—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBTIT

Raw materials JR M &} 3,181,247 2,402,959

Work in progress £ & 613,548 317,267

Finished goods Z.AK i 13,230,623 7,835,802

Moulds held for production #7484 E B E B 20,988 11,221

17,046,406 10,567,249
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Bt 5 ¥R 3% B &

31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

19. B E 5 IR =X

2022 2021
—E-= —E—F

RMB’000
ARBT T

RMB’000
ARETTT

Trade receivables JEUE 5 BR 7K 10,495,823 9,279,580
Impairment JF{E (24,414) (39,231)
10,471,409 9,240,349

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit.
The credit period is generally two to three months. Each customer
has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control department
to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
senior management. At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had a certain concentration of credit risk as 9% (2021: 18%) and
27% (2021: 44%) of the Group’s trade receivables were due from the
Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers, respectively.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

An aging analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance,
is as follows:

AEFBEEXFPHNEBIRAANZ BRRTY
X - EEHBERAMNE=MEA - 8EZFF
BRAERSERR - AREBFERKD
B EE R ERERREE - YRAERE
HIEPIAR D EERR - RREREEH
BEMANER RREHKR  ARLAEE
9% (ZE=—%F : 18%) R27T%(ZF = —
F44%)MEREZERD B AR EHE
RAEPRAARBTPRF  BARE AR
ETEESTRER - AEELEREER
B o RFERT A T AR EmEIME
E - RWEBRFIINETHE

RBEHR  RUESERREZEH R
MREBRBBEROREITAOT :

2022 2021

=== —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBTTT

Within 90 days 90% A 9,862,438 8,730,521
91 to 180 days 91E 180K 595,953 507,384
181 to 360 days 181 £ 360X 13,018 2,444
10,471,409 9,240,349
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31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19. EIRE Z IR (48)
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade EWE SRR ERN BB REEEHET M
receivables are as follows: ™
2022
—=—-= —=—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBTIT
At beginning of year A& 4] 39,231 111,360
impairment losses/(Reversal of impairment losses), net
EEE OREEERED)FHE 3,341 (8,148)
Amount written off as uncollectible 4 4 4 2 U [5] #) 5k 18 (18,158) (63,981)
At end of the year IR R 24,414 39,231
There are no significant changes in the loss allowance. EERENEEAEY -
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a RERE B HARBEEBREEETRES
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision - UErEEHMEEBE - BEXERA
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer BEUSEEANSEFAPBERZERER S
segments with similar loss patterns by product type. The calculation HEREHEARE - ZetERBR TR NELS
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money R EBNEEERRSREGBHTES
and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the E@EBALEEMH - EW#%&%X%@#R
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of FEAMGE X HEEER - —8mE &
future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off WE SRR NaAERE —F B AR EE
if past due for more than one year and are not subject to enforcement B & - BT LAMSE -
activity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the
Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2022

Bt 5 ¥R 3% B &

31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

19. B B 5 fR X (&)
AT &SRB R E SRR ERRERE
fEE)(E SRR ER

R=B=—=F+=A=+—8

Aging as at 31 December 2022
—g——

—_—_—

EtZA=t-HbER

Within 90 days | 91to 180 days | 181 to 360 days Over 1 year
90HA 91HZ180H 181623608 1EN0E

Expected credit loss rate BEIE E B iR % 0.22% 0.22% 0.22% 100.00% 0.23%

Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) R EI#4(E (A I T 7t) 9,883,853 597,250 13,047 1,673 10,495,823

Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BEIE E BB (ARET L) 21,416 1,207 28 1,673 24,414
As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+=HA=+—H

Aging as at 31 December 2021

s = o) 3

Within 90 days | 91to 180 days | 181 to 360 days Over 1 year
90BA 91HZE180H 181HZ360H 1EE
Expected credit loss rate T #f{z S 1B X 0.21% 0.21% 021% 100.00% 0.42%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) R AE(ARE T ) 8,748,850 508,450 2,449 19,831 9,279,580
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHEEBEARSETT) 18,329 1,066 5 19,831 39,231
The net carrying amount of due from the holding companies and fellow EXFEERIERARERRARZWB AT 2
subsidiaries included in the above are as follows: BREVFENT

2022 2021

=== —E—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BT T ARETTT

Due from the ultimate holding company & U & 4212 i% /A Bl 5k 155,744 159,650
Due from the intermediate holding company [ 4/ /7142 f% A Eﬂlﬁ 146,623 150,390
Due from fellow subsidiaries F& U5 [F] 2 Fi 8 A A1 I8 4,364,498 1,380,173
Due from other related parties J& & H th B 58 77 7118 5,988 2,899
4,672,853 1,693,112

The balances are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and on credit terms
similar to those offered to the major customers of the Group.

EZ%%@%JEETEW %gﬂﬁﬁ ¥ {5 K

Crp) 2022 4 o LEME T (ER)ERAE > : : }
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31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

20. RECEIVABLES FINANCING 20.

W ERE

2022 2021
—E_— —ET-—4F

=

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTTT

Bank acceptance bills $8 1775 i, 2 197,404 349,350

Trade receivables EUE Z Bk 5k 5,167,489 2,647,025
5,364,893 2,996,375

Less: other comprehensive income — change in fair value

B HitdRe s - An BEEE 16,834 9,211
5,348,059 2,987,164

The Company has changed the business model for a portion of its
receivables to target both to receive the contractual cash flows when
due and the sales. Accordingly, this portion of the receivables is
classified as a financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive
income (which can be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods).

The Group reclassified bills receivable into financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income, presented as receivables
financing. As of 31 December 2022, the accumulated impairment
provision for receivables financing provided by the Group was
RMB280,000 (31 December 2021: RMB264,000).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21.CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND RESTRICTED

Bt 5 ¥R 3% B &

31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

AN RERBRITERUARZREBITF

BANK DEPOSITS =
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREETIT
Cash and bank balances I8 & R iR 17444 () 6,243,678 2,824,741
Time deposits & 877 & 20,633 353,745
6,264,311 3,178,486
Less: Pledged deposit J& : B #E1ER (i) (20,633) (351,244)
Restricted bank deposits 5 [ #l|$R 1717 7% = (2,501)
Cash and cash equivalents IR & &5 & 5B 6,243,678 2,824,741
Notes: Biat -

(i) At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to RMB2,255,753,000
(2021: RMB1,257,423,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

(i) At 31 December 2022, bank deposits of RMB20,633,000
(2021:RMB351,244,000) was pledged for guarantee credit.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

i) RBEHR XEBUARE(TAR
BIDAENREERBRITEHRBARKE
2,255,753,000c(ZE - —F : AR
1,257,423,0007T) - AR ERALBA
H &8 - MR %A B A A SN B 5
BIR4EE EERNEEERE  A5H
BEESBEREETINEZFMRITHEA
REHMAHEME -

i) RZBZZF+_A=+—H RITEKX

AR#20,633,000t(ZTE=—F : AR
351,244,0007T) B IR IERIEE -

R IR S B RITE A TR F 8
FIEHENFIL - BITBBREEAER
MR IR R BB RTNE
7 o

Crp) 2022 4 o LEME T (ER)ERAE > : : }
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22. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of the

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

2. ENESRIANRENSERE

RBEBMR - BNEZRIRENRER
HRAHNREITAT ¢

2022

—E-

——
—=_

RMB’000
ARETTT

RMB’000
ARBT T

Within 90 days 90 H A 21,490,421 11,320,806
91 to 180 days 91 H £180H 483,674 351,278
181 to 360 days 181 H £360H 21,630 44 997
1 to 2 years 1E24F 4,960 3,954
Over 2 years 2 A 1,610 2,950

22,002,295 11,723,985

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and normally settled
within terms of 30 to 180 days.

The balances due to the holding companies, fellow subsidiaries and
other related companies included in the above are as follows:

ERESEFTIRE - —RIZ30HZE180H
FREASZ I o

EXRE RN ERA R - RRHK B AR R
HEAEARGEHIT

2022 2021
—E -4

RMB’000
AREFIT

=Sl

RMB’000
ARBT T

Due to the ultimate holding company & < £ #4842 i% /A 7] 7k 18 129,779 71,850
Due to the intermediate holding company J& < Ff /M2 A% A 51 FUR 6,311,403 4,589,085
Due to fellow subsidiaries &1 [F Z B & A & B 13,011,472 5,083,646

19,452,654 9,744,581

The balances are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable on
demand.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .)2

Bt 5 ¥R 3% B &

31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

23.0THER PAYABLES, OTHER LIABILITIES AND 23. HENIRR - HhEBENREFTE
ACCRUALS A

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT

Contract liabilities & R & & (a) 686,485 484,603
Advance from customers B & F 2 (a) 27,445 30,204
Other payables E b & {< BR 3¢ (b) 2,718,369 2,087,011
Accrued payroll &t T& 1,848,551 1,574,283
Provision # & 140,330 =
5,421,180 4,176,101
Notes: Bt -
(@) Details of contract liabilities as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as @ NZZE_—FER=—F-_—F+=ZA=+—
follows: BERABEMNFBHINOT :

31 December 31 December
2022
S ——

—_—

+=BA=+-~8
RMB’000
ARBTT

Short-term advances received from customers & 4 & B 58 B EA 3k

Sale of goods E ¥4 & 686,485 484,603
Total contract liabilities & [B & (& 4258 686,485 484,603
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver goods. ARAEGBAEEARARE D E WS H 2
(o) Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of (o) EMERBERYAEE  FHEHRLE=E
three months. B o

Crp) 2022 4 o LEME T (ER)ERAE > : }
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24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 24.fTHESMTIA

2022
—s—-=

Assets

qE
RMB’000
ARBT T

Liabilities Assets Liabilities
=N BE BE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR | ARBTT | ARETTT

Foreign currency forward contracts 4N iz 54 [7] = 18,211 = =
Current portion i BI85 - 18,211 - -
25. DEFERRED INCOME 25, IR W A

2022 2021
—E-= —EF-—4F

=

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTTT

At 1 January R —H—H 150,037 147,054
Received during the year £ A E I 263,168 606,297
Released to the statement of profit or loss & [E 835 K (182,647) (603,314)
At 31 December W +=A=+—H 230,558 150,037
Less: Portion classified as current liabilities 35, : DA RE B &S - -
Non-current portion JEi7 8 &85 230,558 150,037

Various government grants have been received for basic research and
development activities. Government grants received for which related
expenditure has not yet been undertaken are included in deferred
income in the statement of financial position. A certain grant received
relating to an asset is also credited to deferred income and is released
to the statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of the
relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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Bt 5 ¥R 3% B &

31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

26.INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 26. 7t BIRITR HAMER
BORROWINGS

31 December 2022
—E-_—f+=-H=+-—H

Effective
interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
ERRIZE(%) FHE A ARET T
Current BNHA
Other borrowings repayable: & {2 & H fth £ 3K (a) 2.50 2023 2,004,306
—E-=F
2,004,306
(@) BYD Precision, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, obtained an (8 ANAREZEMBARILEABEBBEF
entrusted loan of RMB2,000,000,000 from BYD Co., Ltd. (‘BYD”), the HBERITEARR A REER A R L I8 A%
ultimate holding company of the Company, through China Merchants HABERAB (L) EREZTERARK
Bank. The loan was unsecured, and bore a fixed interest rate of 2.5%. 2,000,000,0007T ° ZE R AEEE - EE
FER2.5% o
27.DEFERRED TAX 27. BB IE
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year FANELEHIBREERBEESHWNT ¢

are as follows:

Deferred tax assets EEFRIBEEE

Depreciation

in excess of

depreciation | Impairment | Government

allowance of assets grants | Tax losses Total

EREL
BENE | HEWE | HARE | HEBA R fast
RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000 ( RMB'000 [ RMB'000 | RMB'000
ARBTR | ARMTR | ARRTR | ARMTR | ARBTR | ARETR

At1 January 2022 R=F = ZF—FA—H 126,609 62,659 16,087 249,415 (11) 454,759
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the statement of profit or loss
during the year (note 11)

FRRBERA/ (0B HELHE 1) (39,309) (36,749) 8,805 236,993 45,141 214,881
At 31 December 2022 ¥ =E==%#+=f=+—H 87,300 25,910 24,802 486,408 45,130 669,640
At 1 January 2021 R=B=—£—F—H 215,632 26,408 14,378 = = 256,418

Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the statement of profit or loss
during the year (note 11)

ERRBREGA/GIR) METHE M) (89,029) 36,251 1,709 249,415 (1) 198,341
At 31 December 2021 R=E=—4#+-A=+—H 126,609 62,659 16,087 249,415 (1) 454,759

0 2022 3R o LEBEF (BB ER AR
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31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

27.DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 27. EERTE ()
Deferred tax liabilities FEiEREEE

Withholding
taxes on the
earnings

Depreciation

Fair value
adjustment
arising from

in excess of
depreciation
allowance

trading
financial
assets
EECREE
EENAR
BEAE
RMB’000
ARET T

anticipated to
be remitted by
subsidiaries
AH#H
WEARE
BN FENH
RMB’000
ARET R

REREN
REBITE
RMB’000

ARBTR

st
RMB’000
ARBT R

At 1 January 2022 A=F-—%F—H—H = 657,211 = 657,211
Deferred tax (credited)/charged to the statement of profit or loss

during the year
FRARBEERGIA) /MR 0OELEHE 18,543 (92,835) (74,292)
At 31 December 2022 A= E-~#+—-F=+—H 18,543 564,376 582,919
At 1 January 2021 R=E=—F—F—H - 569,035 - 569,035
Deferred tax (credﬂed)/charged to the statement of profit or loss

during the year
FRARBREGIA), /MR OBERE - 88,176 - 88,176
At 31 December 2021 R=F=—F+=-A=+—A - 657,211 - 657,211

BERIAR  ETECHBEBEAELRARE
ERP kR KA EARE188,286,000
THEEEE(ZE-—F : ARK

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset with an amount of RMB188,286,000 (2021:
RMB253,312,000) in the statement of financial position. The following
is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group for financial 253,312,0007T) ° 5| AR B R E B
reporting purposes: MRS EREFRIEER DT ¢

RMB’000
ARETIT

Net deferred tax assets recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position

NE F AR R P RERRE TR IR E BEFE 481,354
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
RE RN R P RERRETHAR EFE 394,633
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27. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
following items:

Bt 5 ¥R 3% B &

31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

27.EFEF 18 (48)

I SEBLR B E ()
WARBATHB ERELEHRAEE

2022 2021
—E %

RMB’000
ARETIT

—ZFE=-=

RMB’000
AR®TR

Tax losses #1185 18 680,465 428,379
Deductible temporary differences A] 077 & B 14 = & 90,004 141,355
770,469 569,734

The above tax losses will expire in one to ten years for offsetting
against future taxable profits in which the losses arose. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of the above items as it is
not considered probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the above items can be utilised.

As at 31 December 2022, The Group recognized the relevant deferred
tax liabilities of RMB18,543,000 (2021: Nil) on earning anticipated to
be remitted by certain subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. Based on
a number of factors including management’s estimation of the need
for funds outside the PRC, the Group has not provided for withholding
income tax in respect of earnings that were expected to be retained by
the PRC subsidiaries and would not be remitted to foreign investors in
the foreseeable future.

EAFEBEBRAIR -2+ FARNREHE
EBEARRERDEN - ARBB/TA
A BE EE AE A 4K S B SR A gt A LA 8 |t
AEMIER - I RH _EAiIA B RERIE T
HIREE o

R-_ZE-_—F+_A=+—8 AKEEH
AETHEBRARRAIERRREEHNBF
HRARELERIES EAK18,543,000
TL(ZEZ—F &)  RESEEREEY
A K BE ASNYE & TR EETE R £ 18
AX - AEELELTEHETBENE QA
REBBETERAERRRELEINEES
WAFFHEEMA SRS -

MR 2022 4 o LEME T (ER)ERAE > :: }
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28.SHARE CAPITAL 28. IR A
Shares &)

2022 2021

—=-= —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT

Issued and fully paid 2 217 & 44 /&
2,253,204,500(2021: 2,253,204,500) ordinary shares

2,253,204,500/% (ZZF = — 4 : 2,253,204,500/%) & i 4,052,228 4,052,228
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as RARRAEBFMAT -
follows:
Number of
shares in issue Share capital
ERTROEA S
RMB’000
AR®T
At 1 January 2021 A=E-—F—H—H 2,253,204,500 4,052,228
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022
N_B_—F+_A=+—BRZZ-__F—H—H 2,253,204,500 4,052,228
At 31 December 2022 R=ZE = =ZF+=A=+—H 2,253,204,500 4,052,228
29. OTHER RESERVES 29. HAthf# &
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for AEBNREEBEEEMRAFERRATFE
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement NEBTRHREYEINUBEHREE145846
of changes in equity on page 145 of the financial statements. PHERFEHRNA -
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for business enterprises, RIBEECENMBEEFIRRE  ANEE
a portion of the profits of the Group’s entities which are registered in RAEFMNERENT s sfeEREs
the PRC has been transferred to the statutory surplus reserve, which PR TE A% BE T BERFEE o

is restricted as to use.
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30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Action against Foxconn

On 11 June 2007, a Hong Kong High Court action (the “June 2007
Action”) was commenced by a subsidiary and an affiliate of Foxconn
International Holdings Limited (the “Plaintiffs”) against the Company
and certain subsidiaries of the Group (the “Defendants”) for using
confidential information alleged to have been obtained improperly
from the Plaintiffs. The Plaintiffs discontinued the June 2007 Action on
5 October 2007 with the effect that the June 2007 Action has been
wholly discontinued against all the Defendants named in the action and
this finally disposed of the June 2007 Action without any liability to the
Defendants. On the same day, the Plaintiffs initiated a new set of legal
proceedings in the Court (the “October 2007 Action”). The Defendants
named in the October 2007 Action are the same as the Defendants
in the June 2007 Action, and the claims made by the Plaintiffs in the
October 2007 Action are based on the same facts and grounds in
the June 2007 Action. The remedies sought by the Plaintiffs in the
October 2007 Action include an injunction restraining the Defendants
from using the alleged confidential information, an order for the
disgorgement of profit made by the Defendants through the use of the
confidential information, damages based on the loss suffered by the
Plaintiffs and exemplary damages. The total damages sought by the
Plaintiffs in the October 2007 Action have not been quantified.

On 2 October 2009, the Defendants instituted a counter-action against
Foxconn International Holdings Limited and certain of its affiliates
for their intervention, by means of illegal measures, in the operations
involving the Company and certain of its subsidiaries, collusions,
written and verbal defamation, and the economic loss as a result of
the said activities.

As at the reporting date, the case remains in the process of
legal proceedings. After consulting the Company’s legal counsel
representing the Company for the case, the Board is of the view that
the estimate of ultimate outcome and amount to settle the obligation, if
any, of the litigation cannot be made reliably up to date.
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31.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF N.ERERERHET

CASH FLOWS

(@) Major non-cash transactions
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB717,500,000 (2021:
RMB62,021,000) and RMB717,500,000 (2021: additions of
RMB62,021,000), respectively, in respect of lease arrangements

for leasehold land, buildings, machinery and other equipment.

(@) EXFRERS
FR - AEEREELH  EF
BEREMZENHEZHENER
BEENMEGENIERESFTED
Al A ANREET717,500,0007T(ZF = —
F£: AR¥62,021,0007T) M AR
717,500,0007c(ZZE=—%F : REAR
#62,021,0007T) °

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (b) MEFEFELENEEES

2022

—E-=

Interest-bearing
bank borrowings

Lease liabilities

STESRITHER HEaE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR AR¥T T

At 1 January 2022 R=—& - —F—H—H - 509,765

Changes from financing cash flows g &R &R E L H) 2,001,306 (341,266)
New leases & = 710,239
Interest expense | 8.5 12,348 46,183
Foreign exchange movement SN & & (9,348) =
At 31 December 2022 W-_ZE - —_F+_-_A=+—H 2,004,306 924,921

2021 —E-—F

Interest-bearing
bank borrowings

Lease liabilities

AT BIRTTIER HEBRE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFIT AREFIT

At 1 January 2021 R—Z=-—F—HA—8 2,009,247 735,580
Changes from financing cash flows Bt &3 & i 8 & 5 (2,006,294) (295,814)
New leases #f & = 41,520
Interest expense Tl &5z 14,850 28,479
Foreign exchange movement 4)f& & ) (17,803) =
At 31 December 2021 R E-—F+-F=+—H = 509,765
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31.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF N.EHEESRERMT(E
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HERESRHHAE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated FREHEERERANEER SR
statement of cash flows is as follows: LATENT ¢
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Within operating activities &£ & &) A 121,143 126,324
Within investing activities & & /& B 70,644 111,817
Within financing activities &t & /& 8) A 341,266 295,814
32. COMMITMENTS 32, & iE
(@ The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of @ AEERMEHRESR T I E R

the reporting period: E

=

2022 2021
=== —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT

Contracted, but not provided for: B 5147 » B REHEREE -

Plant and machinery & & & # 25 753,413 898,980
Land and buildings 1= )2 #£=F 272,488 291,708
1,025,901 1,190,688

0 2022 3R o LEBEF (BB ER AR
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS B.ABEAIRS
(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial @ BZEMBBREREMBPIFLARS
statements, the Group had the following material transactions with h o REBSEBHB AR ERNETUT
related parties during the year: BEARS :

Nature of transactions

RAME

Sales of plant and machinery

HERE RS

Purchases of plant and machinery

BEREREE

Purchases of inventories

REER

Sales of inventories
HERFE

Lease and ancillary services payments

REREERBHR

Exclusive processing services received
ERUBZMIRS

@ BYD ELECTRONIC (INTERNATIONAL) COMPANY LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2022 5
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(i)

i)

(i)

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-RA=1—HLEE

Related parties 2022 2021
)y ZRIZE| —T--fF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT
Ultimate holding company 6,588 2,242
IR AT
Fellow subsidiaries 12,286 22,148
FELENG!
Ultimate holding company 20,627 18,102
REERRA
Fellow subsidiaries 4,272 87,151
GES NG
Ultimate holding company 197,317 9,585
RIEERAR]
Fellow subsidiaries 366,323 315,445
GESHIEYNG
Ultimate holding company 6,605 19,965
REERR A
Fellow subsidiaries 7,419,738 2,741,412
BRI VNG
Ultimate holding company 157,578 128,251
RERBRAT
Fellow subsidiaries 841,246 827,175
GESHIEYNG
Ultimate holding company 133,947 164,198
BRIRERATF
Fellow subsidiaries 124,033 368,995
RZMBAA



33.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

33.FEBLT X5 (&)

(Continued)

Nature of transactions

RAME

Exclusive processing services provided
RAEBR MRS

Agent fee for procurement service

FERBHAEES

Purchases automotive core components and
special-purpose electric vehicles

RRAERLEBHRESERE

Electricity fee received
WEEE

Purchases of batteries

REE)

Exclusive construction services received

BREEFRERS

(i)

(vii)

(v

@)

Related parties
BEA

Ultimate holding company
AR A E]
Fellow subsidiaries

BE- NG

Intermediate holding company
hNERAE

Fellow subsidiaries
RZMBERR

Fellow subsidiaries

EE)-PNG

Ultimate holding company
RIRERAR]

Fellow subsidiaries
RZMERR

Ultimate holding company
RISERAE
Fellow subsidiaries

BEL- NG

Fellow subsidiaries

EEL-NG

(&)

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1—HILEE

2022
oo

—_———

RMB’000
ARBTR

5,849

1,154,492

49,808

23,828

704,329

1,635

95,090

6,859

2,599,709

73,331

2021
—E-—F
RMB’000
ARETT
9,798

50,769

37,800

20,609

269,725

1,338

82,299

351

1,497,977

81,415

< 2022 3R o tLED
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S

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(Continued)
Notes:

(@)

0

(i)

(i)

()

(vi)

(vil)

(vii

=

()

The sales and purchases of plant and machinery were made at net
book values.

The sales and purchases of inventories were conducted in
accordance with prices and terms mutually agreed between the
parties.

The payments were charged on an actually incurred basis or in
accordance with terms mutually agreed between the parties.

The processing service fees and revenue were charged and received
for the depreciation of the relevant machinery and equipment during
the year ended 31 December 2022.

The agent fee for the procurement service was charged at a certain
percentage of the total amount of procurement provided by the fellow
subsidiaries and intermediate holding company on behalf of the
Group.

The purchases of automotive core components and special purpose
electric vehicles were made in accordance with prices and terms
mutually agreed between the parties.

The sales of power supply services were conducted in accordance
with prices and terms mutually agreed between the parties.

The purchases of batteries were conducted in accordance with prices
and terms mutually agreed between the parties.

The construction services were conducted in accordance with prices
and terms mutually agreed between the parties.

In the opinion of the directors, all the transactions were conducted in the
ordinary and usual course of business.

@ BYD ELECTRONIC (INTERNATIONAL) COMPANY LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2022 ——e

33. BB LT X5 (&)

(@)

(&)

Wizt -

)

(i)

(i)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

()

EER

HETT

HERBERE RS REFEE
o
LERBEFERENES T —BAEMN

B8 M IRTETT -

NRRERELSBERRET — A
BRI o

RBE_ZF__F+_A=+—H81i1t
FEALARAKSEMRENTEMX
15 R WCER B9 0 T AR 75 B B WA o

RERBREEDRARNE QAR
RN ZERARRRASEREORE
BB B TEDLLAER -

RUAERLEHERENEAEN
8 75 3R 2 RO B AR T BRI -

HERRIERE RS T HRAWBE
B S S IBRERETT -

BEENMRESH XA EOER
RAGFETT -

EERBIRES T ARBEHER
R AGFHETT ©

% %%x%ﬂ%ﬁ%%ﬁ BIEH
k%



33.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties:

BYD Precision, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
obtained an entrusted loan of RMB2,000,000,000 from BYD
Co., Ltd. (“BYD”), the ultimate holding company of the Company,
through China Merchants Bank. The loan was unsecured, and

bore a fixed interest rate of 2.5%.

Except for the entrusted loan to the ultimate holding company,
the balances with related parties are unsecured, interest-free and

have no fixed terms of repayment.

Details of the Group’s trade balances with the holding shareholder,
fellow subsidiaries and other related companies as at the end
of the reporting period are disclosed in notes 19 and 22 to the

financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had total lease liabilities with
these related companies under non-cancellable leases falling due

as follows:

Lease liabilities — current A& & (& — i &h

BTN
o

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 ¥R 3% B &

31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

33.FEBLT X5 (&)
(b) EREREEDT HOAERR -

RABEEWE QR @ iE =R e
FEBEEERITE AR ARKZERKRA R
tbEn R AR A E ([t il ) EEE
S EZAR2 000,000,0007T © :ZE
KBERR - BENEE25% °

BRBEEERARNERTERIN - HE
BomERSERER  2EREEE
B -

AEBERHERREZRBER - AXR
MEBARREMEERARNE S &R
ZHBRERM B HRRME19RME
22 °

R-E-_—_F+-_A=+—8  &&
EREAAHEEEEZSMEENT
MEIEEMNHERERENT

a3

2022
—E-=

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREETIT

Ultimate holding company & 4832 [% 2 7] 128,828 28,856
Fellow subsidiaries 7] Z M & A A 175,826 91,352

Lease liabilities — non-current FA & & & ~ 357 E)
Ultimate holding company fx #21% i% A 7] 97,949 =
Fellow subsidiaries [a Z {8 A 7] 129,403 33,761
532,006 153,969

As at 31 December 2022, the net carrying amount of right-
of-use assets relating to such rental contracts amounted to
RMB435,998,000 (31 December 2021: RMB100,811,000).

MR 2022 F3R o thini

RZZEZ=—F+=-A=+—H BH
ZEHCARMNERREERE FE
B ARMBEA359098,000T (Z 2= —F+
—A=+—H :100,811,0007T) °

EFEBERIA

P
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33.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 3B.AB IR S (1)
(€) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: () AEBFZEEABRRE
2022
—E__F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Short-term employee benefits %2 #i{E & 1& 7 13,987 12,815
Pension scheme contributions & k4 51 & 3% 80 56
14,067 12,871
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 9 to EEMNENE—PHFBERRPBRE
the financial statements. BI5EQ ©
The related party transactions in respect of items set out in (a) B EX(@fMESEERENEB RS
above also constitute connected transactions or continuing INMERK ET AR BISE14AZE AT R E Y #8228
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing RPUIFEBER S °
Rules.
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34.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2022

Financial assets

34.¢BMIAESE
T :
:g::
SRMEE

Financial

assets at

Financial fair value
assets at fair | through other
value through |comprehensive
profit or loss income
UAABESE | AAAEETE
Wit AB=H | B AHt4RE

SHEE (WBENEREE

RBEBRR ST A BENREEN

Mandatorily Financial

designated Debt assets at
as such investments | amortised cost Total

R AT B
WEEEA LR ERRE NemEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T ARET T ARET T
Trade receivables B E 5 8k 3 = = 10,471,409 10,471,409

Financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets

SPARNHE - AttEUGUEREEEN S REE 100,000 = 152,518 252,518
Receivables financing FEY B BLE = 5,348,059 = 5,348,059
Pledged deposits 2 #7751 = = 20,633 20,633
Cash and cash equivalents B4 kBE £ SEN = = 6,243,678 6,243,678
Other non-current financial assets E o 3T &)& #l 2 & 335,800 = - 335,800
435,800 5,348,059 16,888,238 22,672,097

< 2022 3R o tLED
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34.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY J.ERMITAEDEE)
(Continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments RBEHR ST A ENEREEN
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (Continued) T : (&)
2022 (Continued) “EBEF(#
Financial liabilities SHAE
Financial
assets
at fair value Financial
through assets
profit or loss at amortised
NAREEFE cost
Wit ABEH |AB AR AN G2
tRMEE HEmEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥T T ARMET T
Trade and bills payables fEfIE 5 IRk & B Z4E = 22,002,295 22,002,295
Derivative financial instruments $74 4 gt T & 18,211 = 18,211
Lease liabilities & & & - 924,921 924,921
Financial liabilities included in other payables
SFARMEMNERERNERAR - 2,718,369 2,718,369
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5+ 8 8817 & H b & 3% = 2,004,306 2,004,306
18,211 27,649,891 27,668,102

{ ::: }—< BYD ELECTRONIC (INTERNATIONAL) COMPANY LIMITED » ANNUAL REPORT 2022 5
N /



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .)2

B

5 ¥R & Y &

31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

34.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY MNecRMIESEE
(Continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments RBERR  SeMITASENEREEN
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (Continued) T : (8)
2021 —F_—F
Financial assets TREE

Financial

assets at

Financial fair value
assets at fair | through other
value through | comprehensive
profit or loss income
AR EEE

o A
A

MEREE

Mandatorily Financial

designated Debt assets at

as such investments | amortised cost

B2

WHEE AL BHRE NEMEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFT ARETT ARETT
Trade receivables M E S8R = = 9,240,349 9,240,349

Financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets

STARMHE - EttEUGUEREEEN S REE 100,000 - 315,243 415,243
Receivables financing FEW BBV E = 2,087,164 = 2,987,164
Pledged deposits B #1731 = = 351,244 351,244
Restricted bank deposits 3[R 51777 5% = = 2,501 2,501
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RkE 4 SEY = = 2,824,741 2,824,741
Other non-current financial assets £t JEEI S BE & 170,215 - - 170,215
270,215 2,987,164 12,734,078 15,991,457

< 2022 3R o tLED
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34.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY J.ERMITAEDEE)
(Continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments REERR ST A EAREED
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (Continued) T (8
2021 (Continued) 2 —F (8B
Financial liabilities cRaE
Financial
assets at fair Financial
value through assets at
profit or loss amortised
RAREBETE cost
WEt AIBESH) |ABSREK AN &
TREE NEmEE T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTTT ARBTIT ARBTIT
Trade and bills payables f&1< & 5 8k 5% & & =48 - 11,723,985 11,723,985
Lease liabilities 7 & & & - 509,765 509,765
Financial liabilities included in other payables
AAHMEMNERNSREAE - 2,087,011 2,087,011
- 14,320,761 14,320,761
35.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF B.EMIENAIABERAAEBER
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4
There are no significant differences between the carrying amounts and AEESBIANKREERARBETE
the fair values of the Group’s financial instruments. ERAER -
Management has assessed that the fair values of short-term deposits, EREEAMEHEHER ReEkRE
cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade receivables, ZEY  BEEPER - BRESERR - E
receivables financing, trade and bills payables, financial assets WHIERE  ENESERARENEE -
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables, financial FFATENFIE - e REMEREFRN®
liabilities included in other payables, amounts due from/to subsidiaries, BEE - sFAEMENERNEREE
amounts due from/to the ultimate holding company and the immediate FEYFEFTHI B A RIFIE - BB &
holding company approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to BERARREEERATREBAREE
the short term maturities of these instruments. EEHEEEES kN ETEHRRZETLA

BREMEE -
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35.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The Group’s corporate finance team headed by the finance manager
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the
fair value measurement of financial instruments. The corporate
finance team reports directly to the chief financial officer and the
audit committee. At each reporting date, the corporate finance team
analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation
is reviewed and approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation
process and results are discussed with the audit committee twice a
year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate
the fair values:

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices.

The fair values of the interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities. The changes in fair value as a result
of the Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings as at 31 December 2022 were assessed to be
insignificant.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments and receivables
financing with various counterparties. The carrying amounts of these
derivative financial instruments and receivables financing are the same
as their fair values. The derivative financial instruments and receivables
financing are measured using valuation techniques similar to forward
pricing, using present value calculations. The models incorporate
various market observable inputs including the credit quality of
counterparties and foreign exchange spot and forward rates. The
carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments and receivables
financing are the same as their fair values.

BTN
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B.EMTENAIABERAAEBEE

% (%)

MBRERENARERRMBEKER
HEEMTARNAEBEFENBRRMIE
Fr o B B 75 1B B B ) B 7 AR BE RN R T
ZEEWE - NEMEAY - AFAPKE
Gofrem I ABENED  WHETER
ERFEANEIEGAE HEHVBAE
BRRME - B ZEEBFMATwWA
BERERER - AimET R FEMBER

oo

TRMEERBBENAABENZIARE
B 577 (MIFRERBFREE)ENSH
THARZEEAR o TATARBRE
REHERAEE :

LTIBRARENAARBEDETSRERE

= ©

AERTEREMETNAABERBBME
BAEEUGKR EERBRFFEHE A
WIAMZRIAISHERITEBHRKE S
MERFGE R —_F+-A=+—
B ARAEBETEEBRITREMERD
FENERMEBRN AR BELETHE
WHREK o

AEFBRZEHFHITLITESB T AR
EMRERE - ZFTESR T ANREK
RERENEAEERENQAEEMN
Rl fTAESR TARBYFARENARE
BAHEPEBBUEEROE - 1t
FEAFATATSAERBAZE - &
BHFHEEERE - URIINERH KEH
EX - ZENMETRITAREBRFERE
MEREEREAABEMER -

P
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF B.EMTENAABERAAEBERE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (&)
Fair value hierarchy AREEER
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of TRHAEPAEBESMTANARBEE
the Group’s financial instruments: [E 4%
Assets measured at fair value: U BB EREE -
As at 31 December 2022 R-B--_H+-A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

DABEAEREANBAE

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable | unobservable
markets inputs inputs

ERT IS EXTHE | EATABE

HHE M AE NEAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(E-R) (E=R) (BE=8) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®T T ARBT T ARBT T

Receivables financing FEYF IR & = 5,348,059 = 5,348,059

Financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets

STATERRIE - At ERERR R EMEEN S REE - 100,000 = 100,000

Other non-current financial assets K 3En &4 R EE = = 335,800 335,800
- 5,448,059 335,800 5,783,859
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .)2

35.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021

ARBTT

Bt 5 ¥R 3% B &

31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

B.EMTEANAABERAAEBERE
(&)
AREBEEESRE)
KA EEGTENEE - (&
RZZE=—F+=A=+—~H

Fair value measurement using

MABEHEERNBAER

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable | unobservable
markets inputs inputs
BB EXEE | EXTABR
R (E 0PN PN
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—R) (BZ&) (BE=H) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT

Receivables financing FEY B L& - 2,987,164 = 2,987,164

Financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets

SATEMATUR - BRI R AN EENSREE = 100,000 = 100,000

Other non-current financial assets Z 1 3E 814 A& & 14,415 = 155,800 170,215
14,415 3,087,164 155,800 3,257,379

0 2022 3R o LEBEF (BB ER AR
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF B.EMIENAAEBERAAEERE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) i (18)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AREBEEESRE)
Liabilities measured at fair value: KA IEBEGTZEAEE -
As at 31 December 2022 R=-B-_—F+=HF=+—H

Fair value measurement using

MABEFEEANBAE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable | unobservable
markets inputs inputs

ERT EARTUBE | EAFUEE

KR E M AE A B
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(1) (F=) (B=#) @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARET R ARETR AR%T R

Derivative financial instruments $T4£ 4 & T & = 18,211 = 18,211
- 18,211 - 18,211
There were no financial liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 RZZE_—F+_A=+—8 WEURQ
December 2021. AEBEFENSRERE -
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements FR - F-REEF_F2ETEAAEE
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 SrEEE TEAF-HEAREL(ZE
(2021: Nil). Z—F )
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:

As at 31 December 2022

Bt 5 ¥R 3% B &

31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

B.EMIENAABERAABEE
& (&)
PREEERE
ERBLALEBEMEE
R-BZZH+=-A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

MABEFERANBAE

Quoted
prices in
active
markets

Significant
observable

inputs
EXAER

Significant
unobservable
inputs
ERTAEE
AR
(Level 3) Total
(E=H) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETR AR®TR AR®T R

ERHSH
HE NBAE

(Level 1)
(1)

(Level 2)
(F=)

Loan from ultimate holding company & & &2 & E 5k

- 2,004,306 - 2,004,306

- 2,004,306 - 2,004,306

There were no financial liabilities disclosed at fair values as at 31
December 2021.

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than derivatives,
comprise bank loans, balances with related companies and cash and
bank balances. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks
and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group has no significant interest
risk as the Group did not have long-term debt obligations with floating
interest rates.

RZZE_—F+_A=+—8 WEURQ
ABEFEMNSREAE -

36. A ERE B R RBEK

AEENTESRIAGTEIARING
BIRITER - BEERARNEHRARRS
RRITHER - WEERTANTERRTD
RASENEBEEES - AEEBHEM
TREREERAEG MERBHEEKE
EHRWE SRR N ENESRX -

AEBTRTIAMEEANTBRERSINME
Rk EERREABDETCRER EFE
BRI R BT XA &8 & TR It F AR
HERR °

F = & B

R ZFRZT_—F+ZHA=+—
B AEBITEEAFNERR - HEAR
EEWVHEZERPESFEME -

0 2022 3R o LEBEF (BB ER AR
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36.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND  36. B % R B2 B 2 & BUK (8)

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other
than the units’ functional currencies. In addition, certain portions of
the loans from related companies are denominated in currencies other
than the RMB. The Group tends to accept foreign currency exchange
risk avoidance or allocation terms when arriving at purchase and sale
contracts. The Group takes rolling forecast on the foreign currency
revenue and expenses and matches the currency and the amount
incurred so as to alleviate the impact on business due to exchange
rate fluctuations.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the United States
dollar exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair values of monetary
assets and liabilities) and the Group’s equity.

2022 —F==F
If RMB weakens against United States dollar fi A ¥ 34,2 Tz (&
If RMB strengthens against United States dollar fi#i A R ¥ 5 2 T FHE

SME LB
FEEEXRZFERRR - ARARKER
EEUAYIFZEMNNEEEETHE
B lbsh BETREBERFNEFTIAA
REAINNEEINE - REBEMNER
B B A [R5 A o SN R e 3K 0 B {5k
Ko AREHINERA KA BEITREA
Bl BEERER AT - URREX
KEHEBELENTE -

TRIRERAEMBEHRE TENIE)
T AEERBAEN(ES ’ﬁ%éﬁz&’é\t\
MARBEED) MASERENHREHR
HETEXA RS IERBNGURE -

2021 ZE - —%F
If RMB weakens against United States dollar fiti A R ¥ 3,2 Tz (&
If RMB strengthens against United States dollar it A R ¥ 5 2 T FHE

Increase/
(decrease)
in United Increase/
States dollar (decrease) Increase/
exchange in profit (decrease)
rate before tax in equity*
ExER | BRBIADEF =
#in,GEd) [#n, GRd) | #in, (L)
% RMB’000 RMB’000
ART T | AR¥TR
5 245,691 245,691
(5) (245,691) (245,691)
5) (44,391) (44,391)
5) 44,391 44 391

*

Excluding retained profits and exchange fluctuation reserve
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties.
It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure
to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly based
on past due information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at 31
December. For listed receivables financing, the Group also monitors
them by using external credit ratings. The amounts presented are
gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 31 December 2022

12-month ECLs
T={8A
BHEEER

Stage 1
K&

RMB’000
AR%TR

36.

Stage 2
F-R&
RMB’000

AR®TR

BTN
o

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 ¥R 3% B &

31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

M EREEERERBEE

FERR
AEEEERATREREBEENE = THET
BE - ARENBRAEMBEAENEE
HRFNEFPETEREEZER ° I
RUERERBEIER  MAKERKR
MERIETEKX -

B AR A K& FREER

TRINFERAEEEERRENEEE R
kEERBEAKA - T EENEH
ERRIFEAEEMBANEBERARE 1
B ESHER) UER+ZA=+—H
MERBERDE - i EMBREFIRRE M
 AEBTVEBERINBEEF LT
B-EJNNSRATHEENRER

m =

o B i

R=B==Ft+=A=+—H

Lifetime ECLs

FRABEHEEER

Simplified

Total

@zt
RMB'000
ARET T

Stage 3
E=[RBR
RMB'000

ARET

approach
L1973
RMB’000
ARBTR

Trade receivables” FEY(E 555" = > = 10,495,823 10,495,823
Financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets
FTAERE - A ERER R EENSREE 152,671 = = = 152,671
- Normal* - E&*™ = = = = =
Recelvables financing FER BB E 5,364,893 = = = 5,364,893
Pledged deposits 2 #7175 20.633 = = = 20.633
Cash and cash equivalents 54 KR & 5 EY 6,243,678 = = = 6,243,678
11,781,875 - - 10,495,823 22,277,698
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36.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND  36. B % R B2 B 2 & BUK (8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued) B AR O R FREER (&)
As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—H

12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+=f8A
g

ERNEHEEBE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 8 approach
Ca F_RR F=RR 3 t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT
Trade receivables* YL E 5 5R30 - - - 9,279,580 9,279,580
Financial assets included in prepayments,

other receivables and other assets
STABNGE - K EW RS R EEN S REE

= Normal* - [E&** 315,558 - - - 315,558
Recelvables financing fE R B R E 2,996,375 = = = 2,996,375
Pledged deposits 2 A7z 351,244 = = = 351,244
Restricted bank deposits &5 #1821777 3 2,501 = = - 2,501
Cash and cash equivalents B4 LR 2 S B 2,824,741 - - - 2,824,741

6,490,419 - - 9,279,580 15,769,999

*  For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach * AEKERERESIRERNBREREMAGL
for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in = AEBBEEMENER NI EmEMT
note 19 to the financial statements. 19%: 7% o

* The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other * RARBHBERBEREHEHECREER
receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they are M ERAREERB AR INE - 5T A
not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets FENRIE HUERERREMEENS
had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. MEEFEERWRAIEE] -
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36.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND  36. B % R & B2 B 2 & BUR (8)

POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents
or have available funding through an adequate amount of committed
facilities from banks and related companies to meet its commitments
over the foreseeable future in accordance with its strategic plan. At
the end of the reporting period, all of the Group’s financial instruments
would mature in less than one year.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted

payments, is as follows:

Financial liabilities

On | Less than
demand | 3 months

EEX | PR=fEA
RMB’000 | RMB’000
AR®RTR [ AR®TR

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

ATERITREMER = 12,500
Trade and bills payables B & ZER R EMNEE 6,570 21,490,421
Lease liabilities & & & - 121,886
Other payables E & BR3 68,538 1,670,467

RBESRRE
AEENBREEBRABHRITREAER
AAENEERE  RETHNRE LR
CEEVHABRAES  UREHEKR
FHEERI B RARBEITEAGE - RREH
R AEERENERTASR —FR2
5 -

AEEREEBAROSBEBRIEAF K
FER M RMBIE AT

AR

2022
—E_CE
3to

less than 1to Over
12 months 5years 5years

BHR

TR | —ELf | BBIF £
RMB’000 [ RMB’'000 ( RMB’000 | RMB’000
ARERTR [ARBTR | ARBTR | ARBTR

2,028,750 - - 2,041,250
505,304 - - 22,002,295
207,005 372,792 383,770 1,085,453
979,364 - - 2,718,369

75,108 23,295,274

3,720,423 372,792 383,770 27,847,367

0 2022 3R o LEBEF (BB ER AR
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36.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND  36. B % R B2 B 2 & BUK (8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) FREE & Bk (E)
Financial liabilities (Continued) THEEE)

On Less than

demand

EZK
RMB'000
ARBTTT

D=

3 months

A

RMB'000
ARBTTT

3to

less than
12 months
ZEANRE
BHR
+=f@A
RMB’000
ARBTT

Over
5 years

1to
5 years

—ERF
RMB'000
ARBTTL

BAnE RE
RMB'000 |  RMB'000
ARBTT | ARETT

Trade and bills payables & & 2 ER L ERNFiE 6,904 11,320,806 396,275 = - 11,723,985
Lease liabilities 18 & & & = 79,400 72,924 145,980 401,797 700,101
Other payables E it & <8R 3% 93,125 1,093,689 900,197 = - 2,087,011

100,029 12,493,895 1,369,396 145980 401,797 14,511,007
Capital management B EE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2021.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by equity. The Group’s policy is to maintain the gearing ratio
as low as possible.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37.DIVIDENDS

Proposed final RMB0.165 (2021: RMB0.103) per ordinary share
REABERTBRARKE0165T(ZT=—F : AR¥0.1037T)

Bt 5 ¥R 3% B &

31 DECEMBER 2022 —F = =4+ =-H=4+—H

37- Hﬁ/%\

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F

RMB’000
ARBT T

RMB’000
ARETTT

371,779 232,080

371,779 232,080

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

38. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety

In the ordinary course of business, the Group has factored a part
of receivables to financial institutions without recourse for its short-
term financing needs, and has entered into non-recourse receivables
factoring agreements with a number of banks to transfer certain
receivables to those banks (the “Receivable Factoring”). Under
certain receivable factoring agreements, the Group is not required
to undertake default risks and the delayed repayment risk from the
debtors after the transfer of receivables, and all risks and rewards
related to the ownership of the receivables are transferred. The
definition of termination of financial assets is met. Therefore, the
Group derecognised the receivables under the factoring agreements
at carrying amount. As at 31 December 2022, the carrying
amount of transferred receivables under the relevant factoring
agreements amounted to RMB13,658,802,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB19,794,790,000), and the loss related to derecognition amounted
to RMB20,423,000 (31 December 2021: RMB13,079,000).

39.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 of
RMBO0.165 per ordinary share (tax inclusive) was proposed pursuant
to a resolution passed by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2023.
This intended to distribute cash dividends of RMB371,778,743 in
aggregate based on the total share capital of 2,253,204,500 shares of
the Company as at 28 March 2023. The proposal of the final dividend
is subject to consideration and approval at the Company’s forthcoming
general meeting. This proposed dividend is not reflected as dividend
payable in the consolidated financial statements.

MR 2022 3R o LEBEF (BB ER AR

AEERBZRBREAFARABRERRE
ERRAF RS AR AIEE -

EREEER

EEEERANSRHEE
AEBETEARESTRAE R E TR
DEBBR A E BB E S NREL SR
& - W B % RIRTTR] S B W R A JE LK
ERIREWE B TEREREET
ZERIT(REKEZRE]D - #E5TER
ERREBHET  AEETEZREREK
BR SN B G 18 MO 1E 75 A B AU R B RN IE B 32 3K
Ebk - BEEBREKERTEEZITERNR
SMMB - FEAREESMEEKRY - &
It AEEHZRE RS T 8 FE KR IR
REAERNEER R _—_F+=
A=+—H HEBEREHETCLEED
FEWAR AR EE A AR 13,658,802,000
T(ZEZ—F+_A=+—H: ARK
19,794,790,0007T) + B K R AR B A /&S
BAARKE20,423,000C(ZE - —F+ =
A=+—8 : AR%13,079,0007T) °

39. HEHREH

BEEEER _ZE-_=ZF=A=-1+\HBE
BRAZR  BERpBE_T-_—_F+
ZAZT—HLEFESRSREBRA
R¥0.165T () R B o bL B #
ERNARRR-_ZE-_=FE=A=_+NRH
2,253,204,500 8 IR B E D IRE AR
#371,778,743 LIRS B - RER B
BERAFSRARREERRAS LEE

HEZRFAIEE - AXERBERELEES
HHBREREABEMRE -
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 40. KD B 2 B AR R &R
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the Company BAARANMERR 2T BRAEKNE
at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BT

2022 2021
—_=E__ —EF - —4F

=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS #Rg1&E

Investments in subsidiaries & & B A 7 21,771,090 20,202,294
Right-of-use assets {# A& = 293 137
Total non-current assets 3E7R 8 & E 4B 21,771,383 20,202,431
CURRENT ASSETS #REBI & E
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables Fa {718 « 174 [ H b fE W BR 3K 10 14
Trade receivable [EUE 5 8RR 29,576 =
Due from subsidiaries &Y% f & A 7178 4,206,028 3,868,160
Cash and bank balances I8 & N iR 1T 45 64 97,667 2,471
Total current assets 78 & E & E 4,333,281 3,870,645
CURRENT LIABILITIES # & & &
Due to subsidiaries &1~ B A &) 7018 446,263 13,448
Contract liabilites & R & & 22,021 30,885
Trade payables fE{J & 5 BRX 1,009 1,440
Total current liabilities 7 Eh & E 4258 469,293 45,773
NET CURRENT ASSETS # & &EFE 3,863,988 3,824,872
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES kB & &
Lease liabilities THE & & 302 200
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EE&ERAEBEE 25,635,371 24,027,303
Net assets & & F1E 25,635,069 24,027,103
EQUITY ##
Share capital i&4~ 4,052,228 4,052,228
Other reserves H i # 21,582,841 19,974,875
Total equity 1z 4258 25,635,069 24,027,103

Wang Chuan-fu T &3§ Wang Nian-qiang T2

Director # % Director €%
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 40. A A 2 B B AR R 3k (&)
COMPANY (Continued)
Note: KtaF -
A summary of the Company’s other reserves is as follows: RARIME RGBSR T
Fair value
reserve of
financial
assets at
fair value
through other Exchange
comprehensive Fluctuation Retained
income reserve profits
UAREETE
Wit AEMERE
BENERMEE HME
HAREERE RE R BFaA st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARMT T AR¥TT AR¥TT
At 1 January 2021 R=E=—%—H—H (204) (174,467) 18,394,736 18,220,065
Profit for the year & €% ¥l = = 2,309,882 2,309,882
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
BEIRINETSHE = 5R = (3,308) = (3,308)
Expected credited loss for receivables financing
AR B EHREEEE (8,742) = = (8,742)
Total comprehensive income for the year A E 4x & M 858 (8,742) (3,308) 2,309,882 2,297,832
Final 2020 dividend =2 — B4R HIfE 5. - = (543,022) (543,022)
At 31 December 2021 and at 1 January 2022
R—E-_—F+-A=+—HER=ZE-_—F—F—H (8,946) (177,775) 20,161,596 19,974,875
Profit for the year 3 ¥l = = 1,857,618 1,857,618
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
BRERINEBHE N 5 = (9,965) = (9,965)
Expected credited loss for receivables financing
EUHIERENESREEEE (7,607) = = (7,607)
Total comprehensive income for the year N4 [E 47 & W 25 4058 (7,607) (9,965) 1,857,618 1,840,046
Final 2021 dividend —Z — —F R HiZ B - - (232,080) (232,080)
At 31 December 2022 R =Z = =F+=A=+—H (16,553) (187,740) 21,787,134 21,582,841
41. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 41. BRI E|w &
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by M RREBREEFEN T -_=ZF=A=
the board of directors on 28 March 2023. TN BEH I T -

0 2022 3R o LEBEF (BB ER AR
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g\ FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FHBREE

RESULTS E 3

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—-HLEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
- “ECF | ZE2RF| ZENF| ZENF

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFR | ARBTL | ARBTL | ARBTI| ARETT

(Restated)
(&5
REVENUE g A 107,186,288 89,056,978 73,121,075 53,028,376 41,047,139
Cost of sales $# &K A (100,836,020) (83,027,813)  (63,492,232) (49,071,048) (36,875,156)
Gross profit F 7 6,350,268 6,029,165 9,628,843 3,957,328 4,171,983
Other income and gains E AL A Rz 1,508,534 656,763 485,118 561,599 558,070
Government subsidies B 5 # B 178,687 585,261 391,757 236,979 287,390
Research and development costs A 7% #2512 ik A (3,969,376)  (3,308,296)  (2,913,274)  (2,087,846)  (1,588,654)
Selling and distribution costs #4& & 5 $#8K AX (535,437) (274,578) (236,855) (256,786) (229,238)
Administrative expenses 1T 5 (1,234,549)  (1,041,338) (673,164) (619,132 (535,819)
Impairment losses on financial assets, net
CREAEREERFE (3,193) 7,785 1,694 (15,961) (57,333)
LLoss on disposal of financial assets at amortised cost
BEERERKATENSHEENBE (20,423) (13,079) (896) (21,195) (42,805)
Other expenses H 53 (277,410) (133,061) (391,088) (27,568) (27,762)
Finance costs & i 48 (58,531) (43,329) (71,333) (31,218) =
PROFIT BEFORE TAX & Bi Al Al 1,938,570 2,465,293 6,220,802 1,696,200 2,535,832
Income tax expense FT{S i 7 % (80,952) (155,411) (779,431) (98,555) (347,212)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

AR TERFEAREEERA 1,857,618 2,309,882 5,441,371 1,597,645 2,188,620
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BE & B &

TOTAL ASSETS & E#A1E 56,994,373  41,175282 37,976,088 28,026,974 26,051,172
TOTAL LIABILITIES & &# (& 31,359,304 17,148,179 15,703,795 11,037,501 10,225,840
Total equity 254258 25,635,069 24,027,103 22,272,293 16,989,473 15,825,332
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